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CHARACTERISTICS OF THE GROWTH ENTERPRISE MARKET (“GEM”) OF THE STOCK
EXCHANGE OF HONG KONG LIMITED (THE “STOCK EXCHANGE”)

GEM has been positioned as a market designed to accommodate companies to which a higher investment
risk may be attached than other companies listed on the Stock Exchange. Prospective investors should
be aware of the potential risks of investing in such companies and should make the decision to invest
only after due and careful consideration. The greater risk profile and other characteristics of GEM mean
that it is a market more suited to professional and other sophisticated investors.

Given the emerging nature of companies listed on GEM, there is a risk that securities traded on GEM
may be more susceptible to high market volatility than securities traded on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange and no assurance is given that there will be a liquid market in the securities traded on GEM.

Pursuant to Chapter 36 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Growth Enterprise Market (the “GEM
Listing Rules”) of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”), the Securities and Futures
Commission (the “SFC”) regulates First China Financial Network Holdings Limited (the “Company”) in relation to the
listing of its shares on GEM of the Stock Exchange. The SFC, The Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited and
the Stock Exchange take no responsibility for the contents of this report, make no representation as to its accuracy
or completeness and expressly disclaim any liability whatsoever for any loss howsoever arising from or in reliance
upon the whole or any part of the contents of this report.

This report, for which the directors of the Company (the “Directors”) collectively and individually accept full
responsibility, includes particulars given in compliance with the GEM Listing Rules for the purpose of giving information
with regard to the Company. The Directors, having made all reasonable enquiries, confirm that, to the best of their
knowledge and belief that: (i) the information contained in this report is accurate and complete in all material respects
and not misleading or deceptive; (ij) there are no other matters the omission of which would make any statement
in this report misleading; and (iij) all opinions expressed in this report have been arrived at after due and careful
consideration and are founded on bases and assumptions that are fair and reasonable.

FEEBEXSARAB(EXMDAIER(RIRRDZEHE

BIEBRMEMN  DAHELERBERIALTH AT AREREAKMAFRM—BELTHTES - FERE
BMALTERTHRRENZFLATNEERAR LERECBEHAAAMNEE RS ELHRERTE - IEROBSEKER
HHERTRAIEREESCFERAMERRESE -

HREIRBREHTZASBHENE  ARIXREECEHTREREBXMEIREFTZEHFRIBXZTIHR
BEKR AREIZREEEXREEZEHFTHAIRERZHS -

RIEZEHEXGH ARG ([HX ) EIFRES LTHRABIR KR LTHER)FEICE - 5B EHEEEEEE
BRAF(ERADRORBELXEIRER LTHE ARESRHEFLERLZRES((ZER)EE - ZES &
RGREEFERAFIRYERITH A REZABTMTREE  HEERY KT BT T EXEABY  WHEXT
BT A K & 2 BV LA A7 OB T E L LA KREE AR T 5/ B A B AIE B (E

A ETBEEIRZR LTRANZREIRBEEAALRZEN - AR EEF(EF)E A& AR L5 #IE
EHEM - EFHIEL — R BEEHEER  BRSHRAREE (A REFBEERNEEEXNT R EER T
B ABERGHMFL S ()N B EWEERAEMERNERETEATFHRE R (i) KB EHFE—IERE
FEEFLZE WUARAFREEZERBABRRBERE -



Contents

B %

Corporate Information A 7] & ¥+ 2
Chief Executive’s Statement 17 K 425, 5 & 4
Directors and Senior Management Profile & & & &1 A B B E 11
Directors’ Report & &€ #f & 16
Corporate Governance Report 1 % &34 3R & 28
Independent Auditors’ Report ¥8 37 % 81 b 3R & 38

Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and

Other Comprehensive Income 4R & B 5 M H 2 @R AR EK 40
Statements of Financial Position 8175 ik %t 3% 2% 43
Statements of Changes in Equity A% # & ) 3R & 46 .
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows 4R &R &R 2% 47 y

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 4R & B 78 R 5= [t 51

Financial Summary B4 7% #f 2

The English text of this annual report shall prevail over the Chinese text in case of inconsistencies.

RERZPEXAMAEMBEE AR RE -



CORPORATE INFORMATION
AFEH

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
Wang Wenming (Chairman)

Lee Yiu Sun (Chief Executive Officer)
Wang Jiawei

Song Binyang

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR
Liu Runtong

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Zhang Benzheng
Tony | Tong

Li Jianxing

Chen Shu Wen

COMPLIANCE OFFICER
Lee Yiu Sun

COMPANY SECRETARY
Lee Yiu Sun

COMPOSITION OF BOARD COMMITTEES

Audit Committee
Tony | Tong (Chairman)
Zhang Benzheng

Li Jianxing

Chen Shu Wen

Remuneration Committee
Zhang Benzheng (Chairman)
Wang Wenming

Lee Yiu Sun

Song Binyang

Tony | Tong

Li Jianxing

Chen Shu Wen

Nomination Committee
Zhang Benzheng (Chairman)
Wang Wenming

Wang Jiawei

Tony | Tong

Li Jianxing

Chen Shu Wen

First China Financial Network Holdings Limited Annual Report 2013

PITES
EXAEE)

R (TTICAREL)

ITRE

RBE5

EHRITES
2 ER

BIAEPITES

SRAIE
JE %

FRET
R 1 XX

BEEEE
TR

ATHE
IR

EFEEEE

ERXEET
E&(EE)
RALE
FRIT
FR A1 3C

FWNESE
RALE(EE)
T X
S
RB 5

JE 1%

FRT

BR 45§ X

REBEEEE
RAIE(EE)
T X8
ITEE

JE %

FRET

FR 1 XX



CORPORATE INFORMATION
AFEH

REGISTERED OFFICE
Century Yard, Cricket Square
Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box 2681
Grand Cayman KY1-1111
Cayman lIslands

HEAD OFFICE AND PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS
16th Floor, CMA Building

No. 64-66 Connaught Road Central

Hong Kong

COMPANY WEBSITE
www.firstchina.hk

STOCK CODE
08123

PRINCIPAL BANKER

Wing Hang Bank, Limited
161 Queen’s Road Central
Hong Kong

AUDITORS

HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited
Certified Public Accountants

31st Floor, Gloucester Tower

The Landmark, 11 Pedder Street
Central, Hong Kong

LEGAL ADVISERS

On Hong Kong Law

Phillips Solicitors

3506, Tower 1, Lippo Centre
89 Queensway

Central, Hong Kong

PRINCIPAL SHARE REGISTRAR AND TRANSFER OFFICE
Royal Bank of Canada Trust Company (Cayman) Limited

4th Floor, Royal Bank House

24 Shedden Road, George Town

Grand Cayman KY1-1110

Cayman lIslands

HONG KONG BRANCH SHARE REGISTRAR AND
TRANSFER OFFICE

Hong Kong Registrars Limited

46th Floor, Hopewell Centre

183 Queen’s Road East

Wanchai, Hong Kong

BEEMEHKREERRLF

of it 3 B2

Century Yard, Cricket Square
Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box 2681
Grand Cayman KY1-1111
Cayman lIslands

BMMERERETEZS LM
BEFIR

T 5 &+ 64-665:
mEeXE

1618

AT

www.firstchina.hk

B 34X 5%
08123

EEEREBIT
KXZFIRITHR AR
BB

2R KNEF1615

B &0 ED

EEestil EHAR AR
BB EEIAT
EBFR
ETHNREEMES
HETITRESE

ERER
BEEEFE
Phillips {3 Al 55 7 Ff7
EARIR

& §% 38895
NEF 0 FE—HI3506E

Bz 6338 F & 5C 4 R

Royal Bank of Canada Trust Company (Cayman) Limited

4th Floor, Royal Bank House

24 Shedden Road, George Town

Grand Cayman KY1-1110
Cayman lIslands

FEERMABFRERLSE

EBBEBRARARA
BEET

2/ KRB R1835%

B A L4612

TE-ZFER



CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S STATEMENT
THRZHRSE

BUSINESS REVIEW

In year 2013, as the real estate market in Hong Kong was buoyant
and the market value of the investment property of our Group has
been appreciated significantly, the Board decided to dispose the
investment property at HK$56.0 million and recorded a gain of
approximately HK$8.9 million in which to enhance the working capital
of the Group.

On 19 August 2013, an aggregate of 429,996,000 placing shares
have been successfully placed by the placing agent to no less than
six independent placees at the placing price of HK$0.121 per placing
share. The net proceeds of approximately HK$50.9 million from the
placing were intended to be used as general working capital of the
Group and as funds for future development of the existing business
of the Company and other business when investment opportunities
arise.

The domestic stock market remained in the doldrums during the
year, and the traditional business model of the securities industry
encountered great challenges. Investors were prudent and cautious
in their investments, resulting in the turnover in securities business
in Hong Kong of our Group dropped approximately 51.3% to
approximately HK$2.0 million compared with year 2012. Moreover,
as PRC government tightened the regulatory control, there was no
income recorded in the provision of stock information and research
services in China.

Due to the adverse market condition, the securities business and
business of provision of stock information and research services in
China of the Group were disappointed, our Group commenced to
involve precious metals spot trading and brokerage business during
the year. A non-wholly owned subsidiary of the Company, & 3Il & i
BittE L BEEAMR AR (transliterated as Shenzhen Guoyin Brilliant
Precious Metals Ltd.) was incorporated on 9 July 2013. During the
year under review, precious metals spot trading and brokerage
constituted over 85% revenue of the Company and earned some
profit.
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CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S STATEMENT
THRZHRSE

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Results of the Group

The revenue and operating result of the investment property for
the year ended 31 December 2013 are presented as discontinued
operation. The comparative figures in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income for the year ended 31
December 2012 have been restated accordingly.

The Group recorded total turnover from continuing operations of
approximately HK$14.8 million for the year ended 31 December
2013 as compared to approximately HK$9.2 million for the previous
year, there was an increase of approximately HK$5.6 milion or of
approximately 61.2%. The sharply increase of turnover was mainly
attributable to the revenue of commission income from precious
metals brokerage and spot trading profit on precious metals
contracts.

Loss for the year amounted to approximately HK$34.0 million, of
which loss of approximately HK$43.3 million was from the continuing
operations and profit of approximately HK$9.3 million was from
the discontinued operation, compared with loss of approximately
HK$39.4 million for the corresponding year. The loss has narrowed
due to increase of profit from discontinued operation of approximately
HK$5.1 million of last year to approximately HK$9.3 million for the
year ended 31 December 2013 and decrease of impairment of
intangible assets, and other receivables to the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income for the year under
review.
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CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S STATEMENT
TTHRAEHEE

FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued)

Liquidity and financial resources

The equity attributable to the owners of the Company amounted
to approximately HK$116.2 milion as at 31 December 2013,
representing an increase of approximately HK$18.0 million, or 18.4%
from that of 31 December 2012. The increase was mainly due to the
placement of 429,996,000 ordinary shares at the price of HK$0.121
per share. Its effect is counteracted by the effect from loss for the
year attributed to owners of the Company for the year under review.

The Group’s net current assets as at 31 December 2013 amounting
to approximately HK$72.1 million (2012: HK$3.6 million). The significant
increase was the result of disposal of the investment property for a
total cash consideration of HK$56.0 million and repayment of relevant
bank borrowings. As at 31 December 2013, the Group’s cash and
bank balances are approximately HK$83.1 million (2012: HK$20.4
million) of which approximately HK$6.0 million were held on behalf of
clients in trust and segregated accounts. As at 31 December 2013,
the Group’s total borrowings amounted to approximately HK$14.2
million (2012: HK$33.1 million). Of this, approximately HK$1.8 million is
repayable within one year. The borrowings were secured by charges
over the Group’s land and building as well as corporate guarantees
issued by the Company. Taking into account of the amount of liquid
assets in hand, the Board is of the view that the Group has sufficient
financial resources to meet its ongoing operational requirements.

The Group manages the foreign exchange exposure arising from
its normal course of business activities and investments in foreign
operations by funding its local operations and investments through
cash flows generated from business transactions locally. As at the
end of the year, the Group did not have any material un-hedged
foreign exchange exposure or interest rate mismatch.

Capital Structure

As at the end of 2013, the total number of the Company’s shares
was 4,458,960,120 shares, after issuing of 429,996,000 ordinary
shares by the way of placements, the total net amount was applied
as general working capital of the Group and as funds for future
development of the existing business of the Company and other
business when investment opportunities arise.
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CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S STATEMENT
TTHRAEHEE

FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued)

Precious Metals Spot Trading and Brokerage

The new formed segment played the significant part in the result for
the year. It recorded approximately HK$12.7 million or of representing
85.6% in turnover from continuing operations for the year ended 31
December 2013. This segment commenced business in August 2013,
its principal business included the sales, distribution and trading of
silver. Due to lying in the elementary stage, it recorded an operating
gain of approximately HK$0.1 million during the year under review.

Securities Brokerage and Trading Platform

Total turnover of these units recorded were approximately HK$2.1
million for the year ended 31 December 2013, compared with
approximately HK$4.2 million for the same period last year. The units
recorded a loss of approximately HK$3.6 million compared with a
loss of approximately HK$4.3 million for the corresponding period.
Decline in revenue of securities brokerage and trading platform
segments due to weak retail equity market sentiment and keen
competition in the industry.

Stock Information and Research Services

Due to the PRC Government tightened regulatory control, this
segment income has slowed down in recent years. This segment
did not record any income for the year ended 31 December 2013
compared with approximately HK$4.9 million for the same period last
year. This segment reported an operating loss before income tax
expenses of approximately HK$13.0 million, representing a decrease
of loss of approximately HK$6.5 million or of approximately 33.3%
compared with that of last year.

Wealth Management Services

Since the market is poor, being affected by the external factors, the
total fee income of the wealth management division stayed at the
same level as last year during the year under review. This segment
recorded an insignificant profit for the year.

Corporate Finance Services and Trading and Principal
Investments

These segments did not record any income during the year under
review.
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CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S STATEMENT
THRZHRSE

CHARGES ON ASSETS

Property, plant and equipment and investment property of the Group
with a carrying amount of approximately HK$35.6 million (2012:
approximately HK$83.7 million) were pledged for banking facilities
granted to the Group.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
As at 31 December 2013, the Group did not have any contingent
liabilities (2012: Nil).

MATERIAL ACQUISITION AND DISPOSAL OF
SUBSIDIARIES/FUTURE PLAN FOR MATERIAL
INVESTMENTS

There was no other material acquisition/disposal which would have
been required to be disclosed under the GEM Listing Rules for the
year under review. At present, the Group has no concrete plans for
any material investments.

EMPLOYEE INFORMATION

As at 31 December 2013, the Group had a workforce of 210
employees (2012: 74). The total staff costs, including directors’
emoluments, amounted to approximately HK$15.4 million for the year
ended 31 December 2013 (2012: approximately HK$13.5 million).

The Group’s remuneration policies are reviewed on an annual basis
and commensurate with the industry pay level. The remuneration
package includes basic salary, provident fund, medical benefits and
discretionary bonus. The Group has also adopted a new share option
scheme as an added incentive for its employees. During the year, the
Company had not granted any new share option to any director or
employee.

OUTLOOK

In August 2013, the Group has commenced precious metals spot
trading and brokerage business and has earned some profit during
the year 2013. The Group has confidence in the precious metals
spot trading and brokerage business in China and plan to expand
our business in this market. Similar to the precious metals, the Group
also expects good prospect of electronic spot trading of petroleum.
Thus, a subsidiary of the Company, BEZ5HZXMRCEI)EEA
Al (transliterated as First China Securities Consultancy (Shenzhen)
Co., Ltd) has bought a license and became a member of 1t 5 A S
RBERMBERAR (transliterated as Beijing Petroleum Exchange
Limited). The Group is planning to commence the business of the
electronic spot trading and brokerage of petroleum in 2014.
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CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S STATEMENT
THRZHRSE

OUTLOOK (continued)

Besides the business of spot trading and brokerage of precious
metals, the Group also engaged in the incorporation of a proposed
joint venture company named YA BB ZEESBRSFLERA
A (transliterated as Shenzhen Qianhai First China Precious Metals
Exchange Centre Limited) in Qianhai, Shenzhen, PRC. It has been
conditionally approved by FAITARBFEREERSHAE
(The Development of the Shenzhen Municipal Government Financial
Services Office) and is waiting for their relevant final approval. Then,
it will be an associated company of our Group. The proposed joint
venture company will principally engage in the business of wholesale
spot trading and retail sales of precious metals (excluding gold),
provision of an electronic spot trading platform and market services
and the relevant advisory services. The Group owned 38% of the
proposed joint venture company and has invested RMB19,000,000 in
March 2014. For further details, please refer to the announcements
of the Company dated 30 December 2013, 26 February 2014 and 15
March 2014.

In addition, the Group starts to engage in the development and
management of the security system for the students in various
schools across different provinces in PRC (“School Safety Network
Scheme”). The School Safety Network Scheme is organized and
monitored by A E T —R#HEE £ E (China Next Generation
Education Foundation)(“CNGEF”), a charitable foundation managed by
Education Department in the PRC. A wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Group, FINEERLHEE R BR AT (transliterated as Shenzhen
First China School Safety Network Technology Company Limited)
shall be responsible for School Safety Network Scheme including
the maintenance and management of the electronic student cards
and the relevant peripheral devices and CNGEF shall be responsible
for the contact of local education department of various cities and
provinces in PRC to promote the donation and use of electronic
student card. The operation of the School Safety Network Scheme
may generate revenue to the Group.

The Company proposed to donate up to RMB5 million and 5 million
sets of electronic student cards and peripheral devices to CNGEF
for the purpose of the School Safety Network Scheme. During the
year, the Company had donated RMB1 million to CNGEF. The rest
and major part of donation is conditional and subject to the CNGEF
procuring students in China using the electronic student card which
may lead the Company to generate revenue to the Group.
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CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S STATEMENT
THRHEZERSE

OUTLOOK (continued)

In addition, as mentioned in the announcement of the Company
dated 26 February 2014, the Group had commenced a negotiation
concerning a possible acquisition of a company engaged in electronic
student card business. At this stage, the Group has not entered
into any written agreement, memorandum of understanding, letter of
understanding or intention concerning the possible acquisition.

In the coming year, besides maintaining the securities business and
business of provision of stock information and research service in
China, the Group will continuously develop precious metals spot
trading and brokerage business, precious metals exchange centre
business, petroleum spot trading and brokerage business and
electronic student card business. The Group also looks for new
business opportunities and new markets for the Group.

| would like to take this opportunity to thank our shareholders, Board
of Directors, our staff and business partners for their continuous
support and commitment.

By order of the Board

Lee Yiu Sun

Chief Executive Officer
Hong Kong, 21 March 2014

First China Financial Network Holdings Limited Annual Report 2013
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Wang Wenming, aged 51, is the Chairman of the Company. Mr.
Wang obtained an EMBA degree in X312 T K5 (Dalian University of
Technology) and he is a senior operator (&4 AX & R) and researcher (Aff
7t 8) of Chinese Academy of Social Sciences.

Mr. Wang had established (1) & %7 #4380 ORII) BPR AR (First China
Securities Consultancy (Shenzhen) Co., Ltd) (“First China Shenzhen”),
@ FY= BN %%T?Z?ﬁﬁ [ A7) (Shenzhen Wealth Alliance Networking
Co, Ld) and () RINEBRFEULEEBR QR (Shenzhen Sky
Picture Communications Co., Ltd) which engages in stock information
advice, I.T. network and audio and video production respectively. Since
the appointment of Mr. Wang Wenming as the Director of First China
Shenzhen, under his leadership, First China Shenzhen has achieved
growing revenue, profits, and industry recognition in 2003 and 2004.
As a result, it was selected by the Futian District Government of the
Shenzhen Municipality as one of “Shenzhen Futian District’s Top
100 Taxpaying Enterprises” with annual tax payment of over RMB10
million. Mr. Wang has been elected as a Congressman of the People’s
Congress for Shenzhen Municipality since 2005, Deputy Chairman of
both Enterprise Alliance Association and Entrepreneur Association of
Futian District of Shenzhen Municipality since 2005, Deputy Chairman
of Shenzhen Chamber of International Investing & Financing, Shenzhen
Association of Enterprises with Foreign Investment, Shenzhen Liaoning
Enterprises Association and Shenzhen Liaoning Chamber of Commerce
since 2009, Deputy Chairman of Shenzhen Entrepreneur Association
and Shenzhen Enterprise Confederation, China since 2010, Council
Member of Guilin Overseas Friendship Association since 2013.

Mr. Wang is the father of Mr. Wang Jiawei and the father-in-law of
Ms. Song Binyang.

Mr. Lee Yiu Sun, aged 56, is the Chief Executive Officer of the
Company and joined the Group in May 2000. Mr. Lee has over 20
years of experience in the securities and financial service sector.
Starting from 1998, Mr. Lee is the committee member of Election
Committee of Hong Kong for Legislative Council and Chief Executive.
Since 2009, Mr. Lee is being the committee member of Guangdong’s
Association for Promotion of Cooperation between Guangdong,
Hong Kong & Macao, the Perm. Honorary President of Hong Kong
Securities Association. Mr. Lee was formerly the Managing Director
of Celestial Asia Securities Holdings Limited. Mr. Lee was a Council
Member of the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited from 1997
to 1999 and a Committee Member of the Chinese Gold and Silver
Exchange Society from 1994 to 1999. Mr. Lee was also the member
of the Banking and Financial Services Training Board of Vocational
Training Centre in Hong Kong from 2000 to 2007 and the member
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ESRAEREEANEREE

of Investors Education Advisory Committee of Securities and Futures
Commission from 2008 to 2010. He was the member of Financial
Services Advisory Committee of Trade Development Council from
2008 to 2012 and the Chairman of the Hong Kong Stockbrokers
Association from 2007 to 2009. Mr. Lee holds a Master of Arts
Degree in Accounting and Finance, and is an associate member of
the Chartered Institute of Management Accountants and a fellow
member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.

Mr. Wang Jiawei, aged 27, obtained a Bachelor of Science in
Mathematics at Imperial College London in the United Kingdom in
2009 and a Master of Science in Finance at City University London
in the United Kingdom in 2010. From October 2010 to July 2011,
he was a market analyst of the investment department in Shenzhen
Shouguan Investment Co., Limited in the PRC. Since August 2011,
Mr. Wang has been a manager of First China Securities Limited, a
subsidiary of the Company.

Mr. Wang is the son of Mr. Wang Wenming and the spouse of Ms.
Song Binyang.

Ms. Song Binyang, aged 26, obtained a Bachelor of Science in
Mathematics with Management at Imperial College London in the
United Kingdom in 2009 and a Master of Science in International
Business Economics at City University London in the United Kingdom
in 2010. Since 2010, she has been a manager of the import and
export department at Yunnan Depond Resources Co., Limited in the
PRC, which engages in the trading of iron ore, manganese and coal,
with exports from Australia.

Ms. Song is the daughter-in-law of Mr. Wang Wenming and the
spouse of Mr. Wang Jiawei.

First China Financial Network Holdings Limited Annual Report 2013
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NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Mr. Liu Runtong, aged 40, obtained Bachelor Degree from
Department of Chinese of Nankai University in 1996 and world economy
postgraduate diploma from Jilin University in 2002. He also holds
qualifications of economist, registered securities investment consulting
analyst and registered insurance broker issued by various professional
organizations in China. For the past 13 years, Mr. Liu has held different
positions in various financial media institutions and financial services
institutions in Mainland China. During his tenure from 1998 to 2002 as
a responsible person for marketing the newspaper “Securities Times”,
he participated in establishing the “Panorama Network” (www.pbw.
net), a well-known securities website in China and acted as its major
responsible person. In 2000, he acted as consultant in establishing and
operating the program “Securities Times” produced by “China Central
Television”. From 2002 to 2007, he served as “Program Supervisor”
in “Shenzhen Stock Exchange Shenzhen Securities Information Co.,
Ltd”, where he participated in setting up and managing “Trading
Day”, the 24-hour PRC program regarding securities. Because of his
outstanding performance, he was elected as one of the “Ten Best Staff”
of the “Shenzhen Stock Exchange” in 2004. Mr. Liu had 13 years of
management experience in financial multimedia platform and financial
services industry in China.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Professor Zhang Benzheng, aged 74, graduated with a Bachelor
Degree from the Faculty of Engineering Physics of the Tsinghua
University in 1965. He was a visiting scholar in the Brookhaven National
Laboratory of USA and the Stuttgart University of Germany. He was the
vice director of the Tsinghua University R&D department and the general
manager of Tsinghua University Science and Technology Corporation.
During the period from 1999 to 2002, he held various senior positions
in two companies listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange, namely
Tsinghua Unisplendour Limited and Tsinghua Unisplendour Guhan
Group Corporation. He was the chairman and legal representative
of Tsinghua Unisplendour Guhan Group Corporation and president
of Tsinghua Unisplendour Limited before he left these companies in
2002. He then joined Tsinghua Unisplendour (Group) Corporation in
2002 and was its president until 2004. Professor Zhang is currently the
general vice president and secretary of the Beijing Non-Governmental
Science & Technology Entrepreneurs Association. With his remarkable
business leadership as well as exploratory initiatives, Professor Zhang
had made tremendous contribution to the companies he worked for.
He has not only gained compliments from the society at large, but has
also won a series of honors. In 1997, Professor Zhang received the
national prize of “The Third Term Science and Technology Light Award
for Qutstanding Scientific and Technological Entrepreneur”. In 2000, he
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won the “Hong Kong Bauhinia Cup Outstanding Entrepreneur Award”
and the “Entrepreneurial Talent” award issued by the Beijing Non-
Governmental Science and Technology Entrepreneurs Association. In
2002, he was selected as the first lot of “Zhongguan Village Outstanding
Entrepreneurs”. Prof Zhang is currently an independent director of Beijing
Lanxum Technology Co., Ltd (@ company listed on Shenzhen Stock
Exchange, Stock Code: 300010).

Mr. Tony | Tong, aged 46, is presently an independent non-executive
director and Chairman of the Audit Committee of the Company. Mr.
Tong currently also serves as Consultant of Guangdong Dena Law
Firm and director of Shenzhen Dena Management Consulting Co.
Ltd. Mr. Tong graduated from the University of Minnesota with a
Bachelor Degree in Mechanical-Industrial Engineering. Previously Mr.
Tong served as Consultant at Andersen Consulting (now known as
Accenture), Adjunct Professor at the University of Minnesota USA,
and a fellow of the Hong Kong Institute of Directors. Mr. Tong is the
inventor of “Internet Work Flow System” (US Patent Number 6,012,066)
and is a frequent speaker on technology investment. Mr. Tong has
over 20 years of experience in management consulting, financing and
technology investment in USA and China. He is co-founder of Pacific
Financial Services Ltd and PacificnetVentures.com, a renowned
venture capital investor in China. Mr. Tong was CEO and director of
Pacificnet (Nasdaq listed) from 2000 to 2007, and an independent
non-executive director and a member of the audit committee of
Garron International Limited (HKSE stock code: 01226) from 2007
to 2010. Mr. Tong was named “Asian Gaming 50” by Inside Asian
Gaming Magazine in 2008.

Mr. Li Jianxing, aged 56, graduated from Shanghai Maritime
University with a bachelor degree in accounting. He also received
a Master Degree in Business Administration from Canisius College
of Buffalo. Mr. Li has over 20-year experience working in the field
of accounting and corporate finance and has substantial experience
in management in various listed companies, investment business,
investor relations and project management. He was the senior
manager of both the investment department and finance department
of China Everbright Holdings Co., Ltd from April 1998 to June 2000.
He served as the Chief Finance Officer for Intermost Corporation
from 1999 to 2003. From April 2003 to February 2004, he was a
General Manager of Investor Relations in China Resources Power
Holdings Co., Ltd. He has been a director of Concord Investment
Holdings Limited since 2004.

First China Financial Network Holdings Limited Annual Report 2013
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Mr. Chen Shu Wen, aged 59, graduated from 3 1b8f&E KE
(Dongbei  University of Finance and Economics) with a bachelor
degree in Economics and obtained a master degree and a phD in
Economics from F#AEZ (Jilin University). He is a qualified PRC
lawyer currently practising at E# X AR E AT (Liaoning Tianhe
Law Firm). Mr. Chen has substantial management and leadership
experience serving in the PRC government. He commenced his
career as the deputy county chief of the Benxi Manchu Autonomous
County, Liaoning Province, PRC, in 1992 and became the director
(EME) of REMLERGINELZESE (Benxi City Commission for
Restructuring the Economic Systems) from 1995. He was the vice
director general (Bl E1) of REMHINEBEE S AELZE S (Benxi
Foreign Trade & Economic Cooperation Committee) from 1998 until
2001. Since 2003, Mr. Chen has been the professor and the tutor for
doctorate students at KEI T KB NHE IR ELEBERT (School
of Public Administration and Law of Dalian University of Technology).
He is currently a director of FEIAERR & E(EE)BRHERAF
(China Dalian International Cooperation (Group) Holdings Ltd) (Shenzhen
Stock Exchange Stock Code: 000881).
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The Directors are pleased to present their annual report together with
the audited consolidated financial statements of the Company and
the Group for the year ended 31 December 2013.

CORPORATE INFORMATION
The Company was incorporated on 24 May 2001 as an exempted
company with limited liability in the Cayman Islands under the
Company Law of Cayman Islands.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company. The principal
activities and other particulars of the Company’s subsidiaries are set
out in Note 21 to the consolidated financial statements.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2013 are
set out in the Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other
Comprehensive Income on pages 40 to 42.

The Directors do not recommend the payment of a dividend nor
transfer of any amount to reserves for the year ended 31 December
2013 (2012: Nil).

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment of the
Group and the Company during the year are set out in Note 17 to
the consolidated financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL
Details of the movements in share capital of the Company are set
out in Note 31 to the consolidated financial statements.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

Under the Companies Law of the Cayman lIslands, the share
premium of the Company is available for distribution as dividends to
its shareholders subject to the provisions of its Memorandum and
Articles of Association and a statutory solvency test. In accordance
with Article 137 of the Articles of Association of the Company,
dividends may be declared and paid out of the profits of the
Company or from any reserves set aside from profits which the
Directors determine to be no longer needed. With the sanction of
an ordinary resolution, dividends may also be declared or paid out
of share premium account. Accordingly, the Company’s reserves
available for distribution was HK$nil as at 31 December 2013.

First China Financial Network Holdings Limited Annual Report 2013
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DIRECTORS
The Directors of the Company during the year and up to the date of
this report were as follows:

Executive Directors

Wang Wenming (Chairman)

Lee Yiu Sun (Chief Executive Officer)
Wang Jiawei (@appointed on 3 May 2013)
Song Binyang (appointed on 3 May 2013)

Non-executive Director
Liu Runtong

Independent Non-executive Directors
Zhang Benzheng

Tony | Tong

Li Jianxing

Chen Shu Wen

In accordance with Articles 87(1) of the Company’s Articles of
Association, Mr. Wang Wenming, Mr. Liu Runtong and Mr. Chen Shu
Wen will retire from office by rotation and being eligible, will offer
themselves for re-election at the forthcoming annual general meeting.
All the remaining Directors shall continue to hold office.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

None of the Directors proposed for re-election at the forthcoming
annual general meeting has a service contract with the Company or
any of its subsidiaries which is not determinable by the employing
company within one year without payment of compensation other
than statutory compensation.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S INTERESTS AND
SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES
AND DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY

As at 31 December 2013, the interests or short positions of the
Directors and chief executive of the Company in the shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company or any of its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO)
which were notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including
interests or short positions which they are taken or deemed to have
taken under such provisions of the SFO), or which were required,
pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in the register
referred to therein, or which were required, pursuant to Rules 5.46
to 5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules, to be notified to the Company and
the Stock Exchange, were as follows:

(@) Long positions in shares of the Company

EERITHERNREQB KRG - B
BROREHZEBRIKE

RZE—ZF+-_A=+—H BFEKARQ
BITHBHEEARARR K EE AR EZECE
ERBEHFRBEGFIEXVE) 2 &G - HHE
BORESS  BEREBEESNMNBEGIE
XV*B%?&S"*BE%EAK A) N B 22 PiT 2 1

AE (BIEREBEES KB EENAEBIK
Xﬂﬁzﬁ%&" EXRIEHEB 2 EZ A R) -
SR 1B 75 5 I BR E & 1 5535216 7B L 8 0 %
R EEMRZEDZHIAE - WETFE\J
¥R TR BFE546E5671EBMERA
R Rz EmIORB T

(@) REITRHGZEFAR

Number of shares

& & 8B
Approximate
Personal Family Corporate percentage of
Name of Directors Interests Interests Interests Total shareholding
EEng B A #E 2 REBHED AT#EE VY BOABRESL
Wang Wenming F X HH 450,212,307 145,116,650 — 595,328,957 13.35%
(Note 1) Cigza))
Lee Yiu Sun Sy 110,060,000 — — 110,060,000 2.47%
Wang Jiawei T=E 202,043,628 = — 202,043,628 4.53%
(Note 2) (i 5E2)
Song Binyang KI5 — 202,043,628 — 202,043,628 4.53%
(Note 2) (Kt 5E2)
Liu Runtong 21|55 1 2,646,000 — — 2,646,000 0.06%
Note: B &
0 Mr. Wang Wenming held 450,212,307 shares of the Company. Ms. Chen 1) F B 5 A B450,212,307 Ik A A B IR D o F

Dongjin, the spouse of Mr. Wang Wenming, held 145,116,650 shares
of the Company. As such, Mr. Wang Wenming was deemed to be
interested in 595,328,957 shares of the Company.

2) Mr. Wang Jiawei held 202,043,628 shares of the Company. Ms. Song

Binyang, the spouse of Mr. Wang Jiawei, was deemed to be interested
in 202,043,628 shares of the Company.

First China Financial Network Holdings Limited Annual Report 2013

SCBA St A 2 BB R & IE &2+ 5145,116,650
BARARKD - At TEXHEERBRBAEFTE
595,328,957 AN A B fe {0 Z fE 25 ©

@ T2 {ERE+8202,043628 N AR - 5=
BhAZRBRY B L LA A R202,043,628
AR R R A = o



DIRECTORS’ REPORT
EFEEHRG

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S INTERESTS AND
SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES
AND DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY (continued)

EERITHERNREQB KRG - A
BROREHZEBRRE(E)

(b) Long positions in underlying shares of the Company (b) MREATHEARHBZETE
Share option scheme of the Company AR AlERE Z
Since the share option scheme adopted by the Company RARRZZEZE—F+ A+ EBEEK
on 17 December 2001 (the “Old Share Option Scheme”) has meEREFE(EERETEDE
expired on 16 December 2011. The Company adopted a new RZZE——FF+ZA+BEH - &xQ
share option scheme on its AGM held on 21 June 2012 (the AIRZE——FNA-+—B8|T2K
“New Share Option Scheme”) which complies with Chapter 23 REFASHEMNTHEBIERETHR
of GEM Listing Rules. B 2823 2 3 U8 M i 5t &) ([ 37 08 M
&I °
The following table discloses the details of the share options TEREBEERTHRAENEBEE=Z
held by the Directors and chief executive to subscribe for —=F+ - A=t+—HIFEMHFEAEA
shares of the Company during the year ended 31 December REARRRRGD 2 BARERFS
2013:
Number of share options
R EYE
Outstanding Cancelled/ Outstanding
as at Granted Exercised lapsed as at
Name of 1 January during during during the 31 December Exercise
Directors Date of grant 2013 the year the year year 2013  Option period price (HK$)
R=¥-=% R=B-=%
—A—H E£RE#E +t=-A=t+-8 TEE
EEEH REHBEH HMRTHE FRBH FRTE VES: HRTHE BREHR (7T
Wang Wenming  13/04/2010 11,682,577 - - 11,682,577 13/04/2010-12/04/2020 0.419
F X H —Z—-%F “T-TFMA+=RZE
mA+=H —Z-_TFWMA+=H
Lee Yiu Sun 13/04/2010 31,861,575 - - 31,861,575  13/04/2010-12/04/2020 0.419
TR —Z—-%F “T-TFMA+=RZE
mA+=H —Z-_TFWMA+=H
Lee Yiu Sun 05/09/2007 4,248,210 - - 4,248,210 05/09/2007-04/09/2017 0.215
TR —ZTTtF “ZTtHFNARERZE
NLAAAB “Z—+FNAMA
Liu Runtong 13/04/2010 31,861,575 - - 31,861,575  13/04/2010-12/04/2020 0.419
28 —Z—-%F “T-TFMA+=RZE
mA+=H —Z-_TFWMA+=H
Zhang Benzheng  13/04/2010 2,124,105 - - 2124105 13/04/2010-12/04/2020 0.419
RAIE —Z—-%F “T-TFMA+=RZE
mA+=H —Z-_ZTFWMA+=H
ERMEREEBERLT —B-=F5H
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S INTERESTS AND EER{THABNAASTIRG  HE
SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES BHREREHFZEZRRE(Z)

AND DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY (continued)

(c) Short positions in underlying shares of the Company (c)

REAATHBAKRGBZRE

Number of shares

B 43 8 B

Approximate

Personal Corporate percentage of

Name of Director Interest Interest shareholding

ESHE 1B A HE 25 ASHEE BAKHRE DL

Lee Yiu Sun (Note 3) 50,000,000 - 112%
2 23 (Mt sE3)

Note: B 5

Q) Pursuant to an option deed dated 31 August 2005, Asia Network
Holdings Limited entered into an option deed with Mr. Lee Yiu Sun (“Mr.
Lee”) whereby Mr. Lee granted Asia Network Holdings Limited an option
to purchase all or part of his 50,000,000 shares in the Company at such
time and such price when Mr. Lee intends to transfer or dispose of all
or part of the shares to any person during the period commencing on
31 August 2005 till the date when Mr. Lee ceases to be interested in the
shares.

Save as disclosed above, during the year, none of the Directors
nor the chief executive of the Company had or was deemed to
have any interests and short positions in the shares, underlying
shares or debentures of the Company or its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which
were required () to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO
(including interests and short positions which they were taken
or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO); or (i)
are required, pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, to be entered
into the register referred to therein; or (iii) are required, pursuant
to Rules 5.46 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules, to be notified
to the Company and the Stock Exchange.

20 First China Financial Network Holdings Limited Annual Report 2013

@) BERSMA_ZETAENA=T—HBZE
& #E 2% - Asia Network Holdings Limited
BEFRHAE(FRAEDT L ERE
R E I T HE B T Asia Network
Holdings Limited f& f& 1 - AJ A== T HF
NAZ+—HAREZEETHEBRGE
mEAILHRRERIEEE BRI R
MFERMALE  UBBEERBAZLE
#§74 250,000,000 A~ 2 B i 19 2 & &b 3k
EREBS -

R EXFIEIN RAFEE HESE
ERARFITHAFHNARA X EAE
BOAE (EERBHEBMERIZEXVED)
ZBM - HERNIESFTHEE RE
BREGEMERIOXR  MO)RE
EHREEERDIEXVEBETRSS HA
HMEARR LB (BREFRIER
HZRBEGRIBBIEKEFLR S
WA 2w MOk R) I RIERE 5 R
HI 5 {5 B 8362154 78 52 A #% 1 Pt &
RO S (i) AR R A AR LT AR R 555.46
E567TIRAB MG ARA] MEEAFT
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ AND OTHER PERSONS’
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES AND
UNDERLYING SHARES OF THE COMPANY

So far as is known to any Directors of the Company, as at 31
December 2013, the following persons (not being a Director of the
Company) had interests in the shares or underlying shares which were
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the
provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO as recorded in
the register required to be kept under section 336 of the SFO:

FERRRAMBMATITRELT KRG R
16 BA AR 1 2 4 2 R ik

BARRESEMHM R_T—=F+-A=
T—H REZBHFRHBERIIFIB6HRTFE
Z Bk - PIAL (LIFARFES)
REMDHAAEEROT  HECERESF N
EIRBIFEXVERFE2835 B R A& AR A
KB APz Rt

(a) Long positions in shares of the Company (@ RELATRHBZHFE
Approximate
percentage of
Name of shareholders Capacity Number of shares shareholding
R EHE 5 5 BHBHE #SOBRESH
Wang Wenming and Chen Dongjin (Note 1) Beneficial owners 595,328,957 13.35%
F B B PR A2 (P RE1) EmfEAA

Note: B 5 :

1) Ms. Chen Dongjin held 145,116,650 shares of the Company. Ms. ©) PR & I 22 £ 5 145,116,650 A 2 7] f%
Chen Dongjin is the spouse of a director of the Company, Mr. Wang heRMABLZTARAARIES T XHLE
Wenming, who held 450,212,307 shares of the Company. As such, they Z BRAB - ifn E SCEA S A # 5 450,212,307 %
were deemed to be collectively interested in 595,328,957 shares of the AARRG - At - BREWERLRFE
Company. 595,328,957k AR A & B {7 ©

(b) Long positions in underlying shares of the Company (b) MAEAATHEABRHGBZETE
Approximate
percentage of
Name of shareholders Capacity Number of shares shareholding
R ZE 5 BHHEE #SMOBRESH
Wang Wenming and Chen Dongjin (Note 2) Beneficial owners 11,682,577 0.26%
F B K PR A& 2 (BT 3E2) EmfEAA
Note: B 5F
@ Pursuant to the Share Option Scheme, Mr. Wang Wenming was granted @) RIEBRESE RZZE-—ZFMOA+=

on 13 April 2010 share options, the number of shares underlying which
was adjusted on 15 June 2010, to subscribe for 11,682,577 shares of
the Company. Ms. Chen Dongjin is the spouse of Mr. Wang Wenming
so they were deemed to be collectively interested in the share options to
subscribe for 11,682,577 shares of the Company.

H - T XA 5 A 5% A 52 811,682,577 %
AAmkmz EREGEERNDEHBERZ
E-BENATHAELRBE)  BRE
TEDEXHEEZERB REEHE
B R A ] 528 B511,682,5778% A~ A &) %
B2 RBRRAE -

BEEMERKXEEERLE —T-—=FF%K
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ AND OTHER PERSONS’
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES AND
UNDERLYING SHARES OF THE COMPANY (continued)

(b) Long positions in underlying shares of the Company
(continued)

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2013, the
Company had not been notified of any other person (other
than the Directors whose interests are set out in the section
“Directors’ and Chief Executive’s Interests and Short Positions
in Shares, Underlying Shares and Debentures” above) who
had an interest or short position in the shares or underlying
shares of the Company and was required to be recorded in
the register required to be kept under Section 336 of the SFO
and/or was directly or indirectly interested in 5% or more of the
issued share capital carrying rights to vote in all circumstances
at general meetings of any other members of the Group.

DETAILS OF THE OPTIONS GRANTED BY THE
COMPANY

Share Option Schemes of the Company

The Company has adopted a share option scheme under which the
Directors or employees of the Company or its subsidiaries or certain
other persons may be granted share options to subscribe for shares
of the Company subject to the terms and conditions stipulated in the
Scheme.

Since the share option scheme adopted by the Company on 17
December 2001 (the “Old Share Option Scheme”) has expired on 16
December 2011. The Company adopted a new share option scheme
on its AGM held on 21 June 2012 (the “New Share Option Scheme”)
which complies with Chapter 23 of GEM Listing Rules.

(1) Summary of the Scheme

() Purpose of the Scheme
The purpose of the Scheme is to provide the people and
the parties working for the interest of the Group with an
opportunity to obtain equity interest in the Company, thus
linking their interest with the interest of the Group and
thereby providing them with an incentive to work better
for the interest of the Group.
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(b) REATHEEARBZEE(E)

BREXEEEN R_FT—=F+=A
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TIRARHEBE%I A FHEE -

FAERLBREFR

FAEI B HESE
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TR R%ABIATE 2 R R R MR E R E IR
BURBARA Z B
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DETAILS OF THE OPTIONS GRANTED BY THE
COMPANY (continued)

Share Option Schemes of the Company (continued)

(1) Summary of the Scheme (continueq)

(i)

(i)

()

Participants of the Scheme

Pursuant to the Scheme, the Company may grant share
options to (i) employees of the Company (whether full-
time or part-time) or any of its subsidiaries or associated
companies; (i) Directors (whether Executive Directors,
Non-executive Directors or Independent Non-executive
Directors) of the Company or any of its subsidiaries or
associated companies; (i) suppliers of goods and/or
services to the Company or any of its subsidiaries or
associated companies; and (iv) professionals engaged
by the Company or any of its subsidiaries or associated
companies.

Total number of shares available for issue under the
Schemes

As at 31 December 2013, the total number of shares
available for issue under the New Share Option Scheme
was 402,896,412 shares, representing 9.04% of the total
issued share capital.

The maximum aggregate number of shares which may be
issued upon exercise of all outstanding options granted
and yet to be exercised under the New Share Option
Scheme and any other share option schemes of the
Group must not in aggregate exceed 30% of the shares
of the Company in issue from time to time. No options
may be granted under any schemes of the Company
(or its subsidiary) if this will result in such limit being
exceeded.

Maximum entitlement of each participant

The maximum number of shares of the Company issued
and to be issued upon exercise of the options granted
and to be granted pursuant to the Scheme and any
other share option schemes of the Company (including
the Pre-IPO Share Option Plan) to each participant in any
12-month period up to the date of grant of the options
shall not exceed 1% of the total number of shares of the
Company in issue, save for those share options already
granted under the Pre-IPO Share Option Plan.

BEEMEHKREERRLF

FAEREBRESFRK(E)

FAEI RIS E ()
(1) ZFEIZHEE)
i) ZitEz2HEE

(i)

()

BIEZETE > AT AT AU TA
THREBRE: - )ARFIZEE
G %1 A% VNS
B AR KB E AR ZIEE:
(ii) A2 &) 3k B AE ] B9 B A =) ok B
BREIZCESZ(TRAWITES
ERITEEXBIUIERITESE)
(il <A &) sk E AT {aT B B8 A B) 3k B
ENRLZEm & RS AR
K (iv) AR &) s BT H @ A el 5k
BE NRIFTEREZEEAL -

ZETEH T A #{TZR 7 ABH

R-Z—=F+-A=+—8"
BEMERET S THET R
5 48 81 5402,896,4120% - 152 &
BEITIRAE 29.04% °

RITERBEHFBRES LA
5 2 AT o] B A B B 5T B P X
BN FITEZABEARTTER
BB A 1T 2 B R K A8 K
TRBEARRTEEITRMNDZ
30% ° B R HE 8 HEAR
B A EEAEREATRER
NE(EMBRE) 2 E[EE
B o

ES2EL A ERER LIR
REBEEBRER DAL+
—EAHE 8R2EARTE
RIBZET 8 R ARBUER EME
S (BRERAMEER
BREFEMERRKERZ
BREMERTRAGEEITZA
REABENEBEE  RZTEBEER
NECETRODEE1%  HEDR
BB IR AR A RO R Bl R
Hz BB AR RS -
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DETAILS OF THE OPTIONS GRANTED BY THE
COMPANY (continued)

Share Option Schemes of the Company (continued)

(1) Summary of the Scheme (continueq)

V)

(Vi)

(vii)

Option Period

An option may be exercised in accordance with the terms
of the Scheme at any time during a period of not more
than ten years to be notified by the Board of Directors
of the Company (the “Board”) to each participant which
period of time shall commence on the date on which an
offer of the grant of an option is accepted or deemed
to have been accepted in accordance with the Scheme
and expire on the last day of such period as determined
by the Board. There is no minimum period for which an
option must be held before it can be exercised.

Payment on acceptance by option offer

HK$1.00 is payable by the participant to the Company on
acceptance of the option offer as consideration for the
grant and received by the Company within 14 days from
the offer date or within such offer period of time as may
be determined by the Board pursuant to the GEM Listing
Rules.

Basis of determining the exercise price

The exercise price per share of the Company under the
Scheme is determined by the Board and notified to each
participant and shall be no less than the highest of (i) the
closing price of the shares of the Company as stated in
the daily quotations sheet issued by the Stock Exchange
on the date of offer, which must be a day on which the
Stock Exchange is open for the business of dealing in
securities (“Trading Day”), (i) the average closing price
of the shares of the Company as stated in the daily
quotations sheets issued by the Stock Exchange for the
five consecutive Trading Days immediately preceding the
date of offer, and (i) the nominal value of a share of the
Company.
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DETAILS OF THE OPTIONS GRANTED BY THE
COMPANY (continued)

Share Option Schemes of the Company (continued)

(1)

2)

Summary of the Scheme (continued)

(vii)

Remaining life of the Scheme

The Old Share Option Scheme has expired on 16
December 2011. The New Share Option Scheme will
remain valid for a period of 10 years commencing on 21
June 2012 (save that the Company, by ordinary resolution
in general meeting or Board may at any time terminate
the operation of the New Share Option Scheme) and in
such event, no further options will be offered but the
provisions of the New Share Option Scheme shall in all
other respects remain in full force and effect.

Details of share options granted by the Company

On 5 September 2007 and 13 April 2010, options to subscribe
for 32,400,000 shares and 84,000,000 shares of the Company
respectively were granted to the Directors and certain
employees of the Company. As at 31 December 2013, details
of the outstanding options were as follows:

FAEREBRESFRK(E)

FAEI RIS E ()

(1)

2

Za B ZHEE (E)

BZATE 2 14 Br B AL

ERREAIER =T ——F+
ZRTARBERR - FERER S
AARZE——FANAZ+—HiE
T HEEE-EAER  BERARA
ARI(MBERSUEBRARR
FR)REBERILE BEZBAR
T ANEE— PR ERE  E
RS 2SR T At
FHEDETREB -

(Vi)

EAGFIREBREZHIE

R-EBEEL+FALARHEE-ZE—ZF
FOMA+=ZH DRlMESERARQA
T 18 8 % 1 7] iR #$32,400,000/% &
84,000,000 & AN A B I 102 BEARHE - I
—E-=F+ZA=+—8 " HKTE

BREZFHBWT
Number of share options
BRERE
Outstanding as Cancelled/ Outstanding as
at Granted Exercised lapsed at Exercise
1 January 2013 during during  during the 31 December price
Date of grant (Note) the year  the year year 2013 (Note) Option period (HK$)
R-B-=% R-®-=%
—B-H +=A=+-8
18 K AT EREH i3 K 1T TEE
RHEH (BiEE) FERREH EhiTE T’ (BiHaE)  EERRMEH R (#EJT)
13/04/2010 86,026,253 — - - 86,026,253  13/04/2010-12/04/2020 0.419
“T-TFMA+=H —Z-ZTENAT=HZE
“E_TFPAT=H
05/09/2007 4,779,236 — - - 4,779,236  05/09/2007-04/09/2017 0.215
—ET+FEAARA “ZETLFNARAE
—T—t+ENAMEA
Note: Pursuant to the Share Option Scheme, 32,400,000 shares and MR RBEBREE  ARFESFIR=ZZZ

84,000,000 shares of share options were granted by the Company on 5
September 2007 and 13 April 2010 respectively and were adjusted on 15
June 2010.

BEEMEHKREERRLF

+tFNARBR-ZZE—TFEWNA+=BE
11132,400,000/8% X.84,000,0004% f& A% 4 -
WRZE—ZFA+ABY Ll ERE
EL R -

TE-ZFER
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DIRECTOR’S RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Other than the share option scheme as described above and in
Note 33 to the consolidated financial statements, at no time during
the year was the Company or any of its subsidiaries a party to any
arrangements to enable the Directors to acquire benefits by means of
the acquisition of shares in, or debt securities (including debentures)
of, the Company or any other body corporate and neither the
Directors, nor the chief executive, nor any of their respective spouses
or children under the age of 18, had any right to subscribe for the
securities of the Company, or had exercised any such right during
the year.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

There was no contract of significance, save as disclosed in the
consolidated financial statements, in relation to the Group’s business
to which the Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party and in
which a Director of the Company had a material interest, whether
directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time
during the year.

LITIGATION

The Securities and Futures Commission (“SFC”) has served a petition
under the Securities and Futures Ordinance against one former
director (Mr. Yin Yingneng Richard) and two current directors (Mr.
Wang Wenming and Mr. Lee Yiu Sun) of the Company and the
Company in November 2012. SFC is seeking disqualification orders
against such directors and an order that the Company shall itself
or otherwise procure Aceview International Limited, a wholly owned
subsidiary of the Company, to bring court proceedings against
Fame Treasure Limited and/or other parties at fault to recover the
RMB18,692,000 dividend paid to it.

The civil proceeding is on-going and the Board has resolved that the
Company shall bear all responsibilities and liabilities, and reimburse
in relation to all professional and legal fees incurred by Mr. Wang
Wenming and Mr. Lee Yiu Sun, the current directors, concerning
the defence of the said civil proceeding. The Company shall further
indemnity the said current directors for all legal costs claimed by the
SFC in relation to the said civil proceeding.
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

For the year under review, the Group’s turnover attributable to its
five largest customers combined accounted for less that 6% of the
Group’s total turnover. The Group had no major supplier due to the
nature of principal activities of the Group.

PURCHASE, REDEMPTION OR SALE OF LISTED
SECURITIES

During the year, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries
purchased, redeemed or sold any of the Company’s listed securities.

COMPLIANCE WITH RULES 5.48 TO 5.67 OF THE GEM
LISTING RULES

The Company has adopted a code of conduct regarding directors’
securities transactions on terms no less exacting than the required
standard of dealings as set out in Rules 5.48 to 5.67 of the GEM
Listing Rules. The Company’s Directors have complied with such
code of conduct and the required standard of dealings.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
Articles of Association or the laws of the Cayman Islands which
would oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis
to existing shareholders.

AUDITORS

The accounts for the year ended 31 December 2013 were audited
by HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited whose term of office will
expire at the conclusion of the forthcoming annual general meeting of
the Company. A resolution for the re-appointment of HLB Hodgson
Impey Cheng Limited as the auditors of the Company for the
subsequent year is to be proposed at the forthcoming annual general
meeting of the Company.

On behalf of the Board
Lee Yiu Sun

Chief Executive Officer
Hong Kong, 21 March 2014
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
EXEBRSE

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Board assumes overall responsibility for the leadership and
control of the Group, including providing and setting the Group’s
directions and strategies in the interests of the Group. It believes
in good corporate governance and corporate governance practices
that promote investor confidence, development of the Group, and
transparency while having the long term interest of the Group and
enhancement of shareholders’ value as the ultimate objectives. It has
adopted the code provisions set out in the Corporate Governance
Code contained in Appendix 15 of the GEM Listing Rules (the
“Corporate Governance Code”). The Company was in compliance
with the Corporate Governance Code.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

In respect of the standard of dealings required of directors, the
Company has adopted a code of conduct regarding directors’
securities transactions on terms no less exacting than the required
standard set out in rules 5.48 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules.
The directors have complied with the Company’s code of conduct
regarding directors’ securities transactions.

THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Comprising of four executive and five non-executive directors (including
four independent non-executive directors), the present board has an
appropriate composition of directors. In ensuring that the Company
has an effective Board, the segregation of the role of Chairman
and Chief Executive Officer has been in place since the listing
of the Company on the Stock Exchange. Each of all of the non-
executive directors is appointed on a two-year term. The Company
has received from each of the independent non-executive directors
an annual confirmation of his independence pursuant to Rule 5.09 of
the GEM Listing Rules and is in the opinion that all independent non-
executive directors are independent. The present board is composed
of more than one-third of independent non-executive directors.

The present board of directors consists of:

Wang Wenming (Chairman)

Lee Yiu Sun (Chief Executive Officer)

Wang Jiawei (Executive Director)

Song Binyang (Executive Director)

Liu Runtong (Non-executive Director)

Zhang Benzheng (Independent Non-executive Director)
Tony | Tong (Independent Non-executive Director)

Li Jianxing (Independent Non-executive Director)

Chen Shu Wen (Independent Non-executive Director)
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
EREERE

THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)
The biographical details of the Directors are set out on pages 11 to
15 of this annual report.

Save as disclosed in the section headed “Directors and Senior
Management Profile” to this annual report, the Directors have no
other financial, business, family or other material/relevant relationships
with one another.

The Board is mandated to determine and review strategic objectives,
appoint and supervise senior management, approve quarterly, interim
and annual reports, and review the principal risks of the Group’s
business to ensure that these risks are within manageable limits. It is
also mandated to approve any substantial investment, acquisition or
disposal by the Company. Major corporate matters that are delegated
to the management include the execution of business strategies and
initiatives approved by the Board and the preparation of quarterly,
interim and annual reports for the Board’s approval.

Responsibilities, accountabilities and contributions of the
board and management

The Board should assume responsibility for leadership and control
of the Company and is collectively responsible for promoting the
success of the Company by directing and supervising its affairs. All
Directors should take decisions objectively in the interests of the
Company.

The Board reserves for its decision on all major matters relating
to policy matters, strategies and budgets, internal control and risk
management, material transactions (in particular those that may
involve conflict of interests), financial information, appointment of
directors and other significant operational matters of the Company.
Responsibilities relating to implementing decisions of the Board,
directing and coordinating the daily operation and management of
the Company are delegated to the management.
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EXEBRSE

THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continueqd) BEEg(E)
Responsibilities, accountabilities and contributions of the Ef HEHURHESTERTEENS
board and management (continued) B (&)
There were four board meetings during the year. The attendance of FRHEBITINAIEESEHE - EE 2 EEE
Directors at the board meetings was as follows: ERLEERAT:
Attendance
number of meetings
attended/ Number of
meetings during term
of service
HEE
HEEHRRE
Members 4= EREITERRE
Wang Wenming F A 4/4
Lee Yiu Sun R 4/4
Wang Jiawei (appointed on 3 May 2013) T RE(R_ZT—=FHA=-HEZT) 3/3
Song Binyang (appointed on 3 May 2013) R® B (R _Z—=FHA=HEZT) 3/3
Liu Runtong 218 4 4/4
Zhang Benzheng NI 4/4
Tony | Tong B & 4/4
Li Jianxing TETT 4/4
Chen Shu Wen BR 151 X 4/4
There was one general meeting during the year. The attendance of FRAERIT—ABRERE - EERNRERE
Directors at the general meeting was as follows: ZHEREMAT:
Attendance
number of meetings
attended/ Number of
meetings during term
of service
HEE
HEEHRRE
Members S EREITERRE
Wang Wenming EDq: 0/1
Lee Yiu Sun R 1/1
Wang Jiawei (appointed on 3 May 2013) T RE(R-_ZT—=FRHA=-HEZT) 0N
Song Binyang (appointed on 3 May 2013) RIHBG(R-_Z—=FH A=HEZT) 0/1
Liu Runtong 2 4R 0/1
Zhang Benzheng NI 0/1
Tony | Tong [ & 1/1
Li Jianxing TETT 1/1
Chen Shu Wen BR 151 XX 0/1
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
EXELBRSE

DIRECTORS’ TRAINING AND PROFESSIONAL
DEVELOPMENT

Pursuant to the Corporate Governance Code, all directors should
participate in continuous professional development to develop
and refresh their knowledge and skills. This is to ensure that their
contribution to the board remains informed and relevant.

During the vyear, Mr. Lee Yiu Sun, Mr. Tony | Tong and Mr. Li
Jianxing have attended training courses conducted by professional
parties. The attended directors have provided the Company with their
respective training records pursuant to the Corporate Governance
Code. All directors were provided with reading materials on relevant
rules and regulatory updates.

REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS

The Company has established a Remuneration Committee with
specific written terms of reference. The present Remuneration
Committee consists of a majority of independent non-executive
directors.

As at year end date, the present Remuneration Committee consisted
of seven directors, Professor Zhang Benzheng, Mr. Wang Wenming,
Mr. Lee Yiu Sun, Ms. Song Binyang, Mr. Tony | Tong, Mr. Li Jianxing
and Mr. Chen Shu Wen. Four out of the seven directors are
independent non-executive directors. Professor Zhang Benzheng,
being an independent non-executive director, is the chairman of the
committee. The Remuneration Committee’s role and function includes
making recommendations to the Board on the Company’s policy
and structure for remuneration of directors and senior management
and on the establishment of formal and transparent procedures for
developing policy on such remuneration. It also has the delegated
responsibility to determine the specific remuneration packages of all
executive directors and senior management.

The Company’s remuneration policies are determined on the basis of
the contributions of staff and directors. Long-term incentive schemes
for staff and directors include share options and cash bonuses.
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EXEBRSE

REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS (continued) EEie#E)
The Remuneration Committee held one meeting during the year and HEIZEE8@FRNET -k e%  KEHFEE
the attendance of its members was as follows: NS
Attendance
number of meetings
attended/ Number of
meetings during term
of service
HE=E
HEERRE
Members 54— FRETESE R
Zhang Benzheng kAN IE 1/1
Wang Wenming Eq 1/1
Lee Yiu Sun &3 1/1
Song Binyang (appointed on 3 May 2013) R®B[G(R-_Z—=FH A =HEZT) 1/1
Tony | Tong B & 11
Li Jianxing BRAT 1/1
Chen Shu Wen ReR A 32 1/1

During the year, the Remuneration Committee’s work includes making W FIMEE € s TIERERAITESH
recommendations to the Board on the remuneration of executve MlAESZEIRLEZ BEREBESHHE
Directors, ensuring that no Director or any of his associates is fIEEAZHEFEMECHIFH M o

involved in deciding his own remuneration.

NOMINATION OF DIRECTORS ESRA

The Company has established a Nomination Committee with ARABENLIRZEZES - WE M HEE
specific written terms of reference. As at year end date, Nomination  #[E  RF#AR - RELZE G HRANEHIR -
Committee consisted of six directors, Professor Zhang Benzheng, T X B4 FTEREXRA - FBEEE T
Mr. Wang Wenming, Mr. Wang Jiawei, Mr. Tony | Tong, Mr. Li {THRERREXAERBESEN ~EBE
Jianxing and Mr. Chen Shu Wen. Four out of the six directors are FHEPNEZRBUIIERITES - HFF T
independent non-executive directors. Professor Zhang Benzheng, JFHITEFRAEHKREZEGEF - Bk
being an independent non-executive director, is the chairman of RBTREZE®ZATHIKNE /B IEH
the committee. Thus the present Committee consists a majority of fTEF c IRBZLZEGZBELBERER
independent non-executive directors. The Nomination Committee’s TR EMBTESTT 28 E - AZ - 4
role and function includes, but is not limited to, reviewing the R ZT(L(BFEETR AL © A8 &4
structure, size, composition and diversity (including but not limited 5 - 15 - F#  XERHEESAFEK
to skills, knowledge and experience, gender, age, cultural and BFE) WHEMBZZEHREEZR D
educational background, or professional experience) of the board of EBRHEBEEESHERAETEETNAL:
directors on a regular basis and making recommendations regarding A RFIRZBIIENITESZ 2 IH LML -

any proposed changes; identifying and recommending individuals

suitably qualified to become board members; and assessing the

independence of independent non-executive directors.
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NOMINATION OF DIRECTORS (continued)
The Nomination Committee held one meeting during the year and the
attendance of its members was as follows:

EEREBE)
REZEETNET KGR NELERS
R0

Attendance

number of meetings
attended/ Number of
meetings during term

of service

i g %

HEERRE

Members B8 EREITEERRY
Zhang Benzheng kAN IE 1/1
Wang Wenming Eq: 1/1
Wang Jiawei (appointed on 3 May 2013) TEEMWR=ZZE—=FRA=-BEZT) 0/0
Tony | Tong B & 11
Li Jianxing BRAT 1/1
Chen Shu Wen BR 48f 32 1/1

On the nomination process, the Nomination Committee review
suggested the candidates for directorship having regard to the
candidates’ reputation and the specific skills or expertise that
these candidates can contribute to the Company in the light of the
structure, size, composition and diversity (including but not limited
to skills, knowledge and experience, gender, age, cultural and
educational background, or professional experience) of the board
of directors. Only candidates who have integrity and can provide
specific contributions to the Company thereby enhancing the value of
the Company are considered for nomination to the board of directors
by the Nomination Committee.

During the vyear, the Nomination Committee’s work included
reviewing two candidates for directorship, two memberships of the
Remuneration Committee and Nomination Committee, having regard
to their reputations and their specific skills, in view of their potential
contribution to the Company; it subsequently made recommendations
thereon to the board of directors.
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EXEBRSE

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company has established an Audit Committee with specific
written terms of reference. The Audit Committee consists of four
independent non-executive directors, Mr. Tony | Tong, Professor
Zhang Benzheng, Mr. Li Jianxing and Mr. Chen Shu Wen. Mr.
Tony | Tong, being an independent non-executive director, is the
chairman of the Committee. The Audit Committee’s role and function
includes making recommendations to the Board on the appointment,
reappointment and removal of the external auditor, and to approve the
remuneration and terms of engagement of the external auditor; review
and monitor the external auditors’ independence and objectivity and
the effectiveness of the audit process in accordance with applicable
standards; develop and implement policy on the engagement of an
external auditor to supply non-audit services; monitor the integrity
of financial statements, annual reports and accounts, half-yearly and
quarterly reports of the Company, and review significant financial
reporting judgments contained in them; review the Company’s
financial controls, internal control and risk management systems; and
review the Group’s financial and accounting policies, procedures and
practices.

The Audit Committee have reviewed the consolidated financial
statements of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2013
pursuant to the relevant provisions contained in the Corporate
Governance Code And Corporate Governance Report as set out in
Appendix 15 of the GEM Listing Rules and were of the opinion that
such statements had complied with applicable accounting standards
and that adequate disclosures had been made in respect thereof.

The Audit Committee held four meetings during the year and the
attendance of its members was as follows:
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Attendance

number of meetings
attended/ Number of
meetings during term

of service

i g 2

HEERRE

Members 54 =] FREBTEE R
Tony | Tong [ & 4/4
Zhang Benzheng kAN IE 3/4
Li Jianxing BREAT 4/4
Chen Shu Wen PR 481 32 3/4
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EXELBRSE

AUDIT COMMITTEE (continued)

The directors’ responsibilities for preparing the accounts and the
reporting responsibilities of the auditors are set out on pages 38 to
39.

The accounts for the year ended 31 December 2013 were audited by
HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited whose term of office will expire
at the conclusion of the forthcoming annual general meeting of the
Company. The Audit Committee has recommended to the Board that
HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited be reappointed as the auditors
of the Company at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the
Company.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

The Board is responsible for performing the functions set out in
the Code Provision D.3.1. The Board reviewed the Company’s
corporate governance policies and practices, training and continuous
professional development of directors and senior management, the
Company’s policies and practices on compliance with legal and
regulatory requirements, the compliance of the GEM Listing Rules,
and the Company’s compliance with the Corporate Governance Code
and disclosure in this Corporate Governance Report.

AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION

For the year ended 31 December 2013, the Group engaged its
auditors, HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited, to provide the following
services and their respective fees charged are set out below:
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INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board is responsible for the internal controls of the Group and
for reviewing its effectiveness. The Board requires management
to establish and maintain sound and effective internal controls.
Evaluation of the Group’s internal controls has been conducted by
management on an on-going basis to ensure that the system of
internal control is effective and adequate.

During the year, the Audit Committee’s work included having held
four meetings to liaise and discuss with the external auditors
and listening to reports from the management on the financial
management, financial statements and audit of the Company. It
was found that the management of the Company and its respective
subsidiaries performed their respective works wholeheartedly. They
have discharged their duties in good faith in line with their corporate
constitutions to make sure that the operations of the business run
compliantly. During the course of managerial control, advice and
recommendation is collected and forwarded for discussion in the
board meetings. There has been no significant issue arising out of
financial, operational, compliance and risk management controls in
the Group. Accordingly, the Board believed that there would be no
significant matter to be brought to the shareholders’ attention.

COMPANY SECRETARY

The Company Secretary of the Company is Mr. Lee Yiu Sun. The
Company Secretary assists the Board by ensuring good information
flow within the Board and that Board policy and procedures are
followed. He has taken no less than 15 hours of relevant professional
trainings to update his skills and knowledge in 2013.

First China Financial Network Holdings Limited Annual Report 2013

P &P B 4=

EXZ2 R aAREZAMERE RGBT R
BZARM BEFEEREEEREIAIE
TERUAFRBEZEMAAR - EEER
BRMASE 2 NERES I ARER A P BE 4%
REHBRIE R A -

FR - BERZEGzIFEEARTHRE
& ESNEZBEN BB R WREEE
ERMKER  MBERERABNZEIRE -
BRERAARAEBNMBARNEEZERZ D
2EMMITERE  THMBRRBRAFERRE
TEBEREHFELEKRREE REEB
Bh BEAMERERUEREERIESS
S LA - BEENMKEE  BIERRE -
EREENRERBREREZEHREEAME
BB - At EESHEREERETEFTE
PR BT

ATRE
ARBNRRMERTRI L - RAIWE
BREFEXNEZHEMRRRIFLERESE
EERRLEF UMXEEES - WX
E-ZFEEITO6E R RS
Al LA B 9 L % B Ko A o



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
EXELGHRE

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

Convening an extraordinary general meeting

Pursuant to Article 58 of the Articles and Associations of the
Company, any one or more shareholders holding at the date of
deposit of the requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid up
capital of the Company carrying the right of voting at general
meetings of the Company shall at all times have the right, by written
requisition to the Board or the Secretary of the Company, to require
an extraordinary general meeting to be called by the Board for the
transaction of any business specified in such requisition; and such
meeting shall be held within two months after the deposit of such
requisition. If within twenty-one days of such deposit the Board fails
to proceed to convene such meeting the requisitionist(s) himself
(themselves) may do so in the same manner, and all reasonable
expenses incurred by the requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of
the Board shall be reimbursed to the requisitionist(s) by the Company.

Shareholders may put forward proposals at general meeting of the
Company by sending the same to the Company at the principal
office of the Company in Hong Kong ten days before general
meeting.

Procedures for sending enquiries to the board

For putting forward any enquiries to the Board, shareholders
may send written enquiries to the Board of Directors/Company
Secretary at the Company’s head office. For the avoidance of doubt,
shareholder(s) must deposit and send the original duly signed written
requisition, notice or statement, or enquiry (as the case may be)
to the Company’s head office and provide their full nhame, contact
details and identification in order to give effect thereto. Shareholders’
information may be disclosed as required by law.

INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Company adheres to high standards with respect to the
disclosure all necessary information to the shareholders in
compliance with GEM Listing Rules. The Company strengthens
its communications with shareholders through various channels
including publication of interim and annual reports, press release
and announcements of the latest development of the Company in its
corporate website in a timely manner.

During the year ended 31 December 2013, there is no significant
change in the Company’s memorandum and articles of association.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT
I8 3L % B AT 3 &

B g6 EH A RA G
Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited

HLB

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
FIRST CHINA FINANCIAL NETWORK HOLDINGS LIMITED
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of First
China Financial Network Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages
40 to 167, which comprise the consolidated and company statements
of financial position as at 31 December 2013, and the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, the
consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and a summary of
significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

Directors’ responsibility for the consolidated financial
statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary
to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors’ responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit and to report our opinion
solely to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not
assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person
for the contents of this report. We conducted our audit in accordance
with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require
that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the
audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated
financial statements are free from material misstatement.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT
I8 3L % B AT 3 &

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors’
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditors
consider internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the directors, as
well as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial
statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the Group
as at 31 December 2013, and of the Group’s loss and cash flows
for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards and have been properly prepared in accordance
with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.

HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Kwok Kin Leung
Practising Certificate Number: P05769

Hong Kong, 21 March 2014
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
GFEEDREMEERARR

For the year ended 31 December 2013
HE-_Z—=6+-_A=+—BLEE

2013 2012
—g-=% —E——F
Note HK$ HK$
B 7 &I 75 T
(Restated)
(#& &%)
Continuing operations FHEGCEETRS
Revenue EER 5 14,809,860 9,185,990
Cost of sales 8 & B AR — (602,125)
Gross profit EF 14,809,860 8,583,865
Other income H AUz A 7 470,679 1,144,096
Employee benefits expenses B BfEFI X 10 (15,433,126) (13,491,384)
Depreciation of property, ME - EEREETE
plant and equipment 17 (4,525,365) (4,823,203)
Amortization of intangible assets | EE#E 19 (2,518,360) (2,451,900)
Impairment of goodwill EESN:AE 19 (3,700,843) (581,950)
Impairment of intangible assets mEERE 19 - (499,999)
Impairment of trade receivables & W B 5 5B RE 24 (119,484) (51,884)
Impairment of other receivables H b e Y 3R I8 R E - (874,185)
Write-down of inventories 5 & MR (5,036,720) (4,903,800)
Finance costs & KA 8 (457,438) (508,885)
Other operating expenses Hab &M (25,956,731) (25,899,123)
Share of losses of associates JEAG B & AR B 1B 22 — (328,356)
Loss before income tax bR ET1S T AT ES 1B 9 (42,467,528) (44,686,708)
Income tax (expense)/credit R (AX) e 13 (844,111) 181,522
Loss for the year from continuing REFEESZSEBEZ
operations FREE (43,311,639) (44,505,186)
Discontinued operation BRI EEER
Profit for the year from discontinued REERIEEEERBZFNRN
operation A1 15 9,333,152 5,097,537
Loss for the year FAEE (33,978,487) (39,407,649)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
GFEHEDREMEERARR

For the year ended 31 December 2013
HE-_Z—=6+-_A=+—BLEE

2013 2012
—g-=% —E——F
Note HK$ HK$
B 7 &I 75 T
(Restated)
(gL E )
Other comprehensive income: HibZHEU N :
Items that may be reclassified HErgt e EN 74
subsequently to profit or loss F2HEmZIEH
Currency translation differences: BHE N £
— Group — £HE 1,061,504 662,154
— Associates — BT 450 9,515
Release of translation reserve upon & — R B R R
disposal of a subsidiary 2 B B 3 (1 - (544,796)
Other comprehensive income for FAHEMEERKEA - BN
the year, net of tax 1,061,954 126,873
Total comprehensive expense for FATEMAZEE
the year (32,916,533) (39,280,776)
(Loss)/profit attributable to: FE1k (B518), %18 :
Owners of the Company ZINNETE PN 14 (34,033,645) (39,019,328)
Non-controlling interests FEVE R AE 55,158 (388,321)
(33,978,487) (39,407,649)
(Loss)/profit attributable to owners AAFHEAAEEUT &
of the Company arises from: EEAZ(BE)FHM:
Continuing operations FEQEE (43,366,797) (44,116,865)
Discontinued operation BT 9,333,152 5,097,537
(34,033,645) (39,019,328)
Total comprehensive (expense)/ FREGEEZERES),
income for the year attributable KN EE1E
to:
Owners of the Company ZIN/NEIE Z DN (32,972,409) (38,860,285)
Non-controlling interests E 55,876 (420,491)
(32,916,533) (39,280,776)

BEEMEHKREERRLF

—E-ZFFER
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
GFEEDREMEERARR

For the year ended 31 December 2013
HE-_Z—=6+-_A=+—BLEE

2013 2012
—g-=% —E——F
Note HK$ HK$
P 5 BT BT
(Restated)
(FEE )
Total comprehensive (expense)/ FREATIHBAEN,
income attributable to owners of L TFT&EELEZ
the Company arises from: 2EBEAX) WANEHE:
Continuing operations FECEE (42,305,561) (43,957,822)
Discontinued operation BRIFEEER 9,333,152 5,097,537
(32,972,409) (38,860,285)
(Loss)/earnings per share from FRAEXATIHRANEL
continuing and discontinued BERCRIEEEER
operations attributable to BR(EBE) BA
owners of the Company for
the year
Basic (loss)/earnings per share BRER(ER), BT
(HK cents) ()
From continuing operations REFFBEKLEE 16 (1.03) (1.10)
From discontinued operation REERIEREER 16 0.22 0.13
From loss for the year FRE IR (0.81) (0.97)
Diluted (loss)/earnings per share SR#E (BB AT
(HK cents) (L)
From continuing operations REFBKEET 16 (1.03) (1.10)
From discontinued operation REE LI EEET 16 0.22 0.13
From loss for the year FREIE (0.81) (0.97)
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STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION
BB &R

As at 31 December 2013
RZTE—=F+=A=+—H

The Group The Company
X%E AT
2013 2012 2013 2012
—E-=5 —E—— —F-=%K —E——
Note HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
(i & AT T AT
Non-current assets ERBEE
Property, plant and ME - WEREE
equipment 17 43,716,964 44,038,446 222,447 562,546
Investment property REME 18 - 46,500,000 - —
Intangible assets BYEE 19 2 6,121,855 - -
Statutory deposits and EEEREE R
other assets HiEE 20 6,907,850 2,030,000 - -
Investments in subsidiaries R KIBAR ZEE 21 - - 4,771,260 4,771,260
Investment in R —EE AR
an associate Z&E 22 15,920 15,470 - —
50,640,736 98,700,771 4,993,707 5,333,806
Current assets REEE
Inventories FE 23 694,038 5,458,255 - —
Trade receivables JEWE 5308 24 6,488,374 4,148,882 - -
Prepayments, deposits and B FE - HE K
other receivables H A FE U 5118 25 13,167,388 16,403,502 1,301,613 179,724
Amounts due from JE U B |88 2 B R 0B
subsidiaries 21 - — 79,206,519 68,462,951
Current income tax A] Ui [e] BN R T 15 7R
recoverable - 1,457,827 - —
Bank balances and cash  B{T# & LIRS 26 83,131,819 20,352,602 39,421,954 364,241
103,481,619 47,821,068 119,930,086 69,006,916
Total assets BERE 154,122,355 146,521,839 124,923,793 74,340,722

ERMEREEEERAT —T-FFR 43



44

STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION
BB R &R

As at 31 December 2013

R-_Z—=%+-A=t+—8

The Group The Company
xE AATF
2013 2012 2013 2012
—E-=5 —E—— —F-=%K —E——
Note HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
B & #I BT #EI BT
Current liabilities REAR
Trade payables e & 55 27 8,681,727 8,137,097 - -
Other payables and HEuEARER
accruals JEETFIA 28 7,421,149 2,978,423 2,084,136 777,500
Amounts due to JFE 1S B /B8 72 7
subsidiaries R 21 - - 14,503,942 1,285,991
Amount due to an JET— 82 A a)
associate A 22 298 290 - —
Current income tax BEFTSEHatE
liabilities 1,039,011 - - -
Borrowings B 29 14,206,092 33,066,172 - -
31,348,277 44,181,982 16,588,078 2,063,491
Net current assets MENEEERE 72,133,342 3,639,086 103,342,008 66,943,425
Total assets less current & ZE 48 1{8 if;
liabilities REARE 122,774,078 102,339,857 108,335,715 72,277,231
Non-current liabilities  JEFREEE
Deferred income tax RIEAMER
liabilities BfE 30 4,016,263 4197,812 - —
4,016,263 4,197,812 - —
Net assets EEFE 118,757,815 98,142,045 108,335,715 72,277,231
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STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION
BB &R

As at 31 December 2013
RZTE—=F+=A=+—H

The Group The Company
F: NS ¥ /|
2013 2012 2013 2012
—F-=F 2= —F-=f —F=
Note HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
B 7% BT AT BT AT
Capital and reserves ARG E
Share capital Br A 31 44,589,602 40,289,642 44,589,602 40,289,642
Share premium B fn =B 31 1,075,500,687  1,028,819,484  1,075,500,687  1,028,819,484
Special reserve SHIE 32 4,778,740 4,778,740 - -
Translation reserve BE 3 4 10,791,302 9,730,066 - -
Warrants reserve RIREEFE 36 223,224 223,224 223,224 223,224
Share-based compensation f% {7 i &
reserve s 33 23,254,749 23,254,749 23,254,749 23,254,749
Accumulated losses ZETEE (1,042,987,506) (1,008,953,861) (1,035,232,547) (1,020,309,868)
Equity attributable AT
to owners of the RPN
Company FE{h S 116,150,798 98,142,044 108,335,715 72,277,231
Non-controlling interests JF 1% I% # 2% 2,607,017 1 - -
Total equity EREE 118,757,815 08,142,045 108,335,715 72,277,231
Wang Wenming Lee Yiu Sun
EXH FREH
Director Director
EF EE

HEMCEEEEERAT —T-=H55% 45



STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
BREZBHHR

For the year ended 31 December 2013
HE-_Z—=6+-_A=+—RHILt=EE

Attributable to owners of the Company

AATHAARELE
Share-based Non-
Share Share Special  Translation Warrants compensation Accumulated controlling
The Group capital premium reserve reserve reserve reserve losses Total interests  Total equity
g3 1) Bx R E BRRE B DREERE ROBREE RithR BE  EERER EREE
HKS HKS$ HKS HKS$ HKS HKS$ HKS HKS$ HKS HK$
A B A B A B A B A B
(Note 31) (Note 31) (Note 32) (Note 36) (Note 33)
(ff3531) (Bi3E31) (ff3t32) (ff 3336 (ff3t33)
Balance as at 1 January 2012 RZZ-—F-A-Hz&H% 40,289,642 1,028,819,484 4,778,740 9,571,023 223,224 23254749 (969,934,533) 137,002,329 (3,857,730) 133,444,599
Total comprehensive expense for the year FR2ER X BE - - - 159,043 - - (39,019,328)  (38,860,285) (420,491) (39,280,776
Disposal of subsidiaries (Note 35(a)) I B A A (W 3%35() - - - - - - - - 3,978,222 3,978,202
Balance as at 31 December 2012 RZE-Zf+ZA=t+-8
pd ] 40,289,642  1,028,819,484 4,778,740 9,730,066 223,224 23,254,749 (1,008,953,861) 98,142,044 1 98,142,045
Balance as at 31 December 2012 ZETZAZT-RR
and 1 January 2013 T-ZE-A-HzEH 40,289,642 1,028,819,484 4,778,740 9,730,066 223,224 23,254,749 (1,008,953,861) 98,142,044 1 98,142,045
Total comprehensive expense for the year FR2EH T4 E - - - 1,061,236 - — (34,033,645  (32,972,409) 55,876  (32,916,533)
Capital contributions from non-controllng 312 i35+ &
interests - - - - - - - - 2,551,140 2,551,140
Issue of new shares by way of placements BB E& 1T 4,299,960 47,729,556 - - - - - 52,029,516 - 52,029,516
Transaction costs attrioutable to issue of ~ E{THR A EERAME
new shares - (1,048,353) - - - - - (1,048,353) - (1,048,353)

Balance as at 31 December 2013

44,589,602 1,075,500,687 4,778,740 10,791,302 223224 23,254,749 (1,042,987,506) 116,150,798 2,607,017 118,757,815

Share-based

compensation

The Company Share capital Share premium Warrants reserve reserve  Accumulated losses Total equity
LY B# et it (R DRER G E TR 15 4 1 RitBR ERAE
HKS HKS$ HKS HK$ HKS$ HKS
ey BT B ey BT BT
(Note 31) (Note 31) (Note 36) (Note 33)
(P 3t31) (Bi5E31) (ft5236) (f3+33)
Balance as at 1 January 2012 RZE-—F-f-B2k#H 40,289,642 1,028,819,484 223224 23,254,749 (1,010,868,290) 81,718,809
Total comprehensive expense for the year EREERATEER - - - - (9,441,578 (9,441,578)
Balance as at 31 December 2012 RZF-—6+-R=+-8H
288 40,289,642 1,028,819,484 223,224 23,254,749 (1,020,309,368) 72,277,231
Balance as at 31 December 2012 and RZE-Zf+ZA=1+-B
1 January 2013 k-E-=£-f-H
288 40,289,642 1,028,819,484 223,224 23,254,749 (1,020,309,868) 72,277,231
Total comprehensive expense for the year FNZEMATEE - - - - (14,922,679) (14,922,679)
Issue of new shares by way of placements BRARERTHRN 4,299,960 47,729,556 - - - 52,029,516
Transaction costs attributable to issue
of new shares BIOTRAEERSKAE - (1,048,353) - - - (1,048,353)
Balance as at 31 December 2013 =F+ZR=1t-8
288 44,589,602 1,075,500,687 223,224 23,254,749 (1,035,232,547) 108,335,715
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

=
ZEeEBRERER
For the year ended 31 December 2013
BE—Z-—=F+-A=+—-RALFE

2013 2012
—E—-=F —E——F
HK$ HK$
BT T
(Restated)
(s &%)
Cash flows from HETHFRRESRE
operating activities
Loss before income tax from continuing & B 43 45 18 & ¥ 75 ~
operations B FT 15 B A B 18 (42,467,528) (44,686,708)
Profit before income tax from RECKRIEEEEBK 2
discontinued operation B AT 15 B4 A ) 9,333,152 5,097,537
(33,134,376) (39,589,171)
Adjustments for: HTHFIEHE:
— Depreciation of property, — E - HERSETE
plant and equipment 4,525,365 4,823,203
— Share of losses of associates — ELBE R REE - 328,356
— Loss on disposal of property, — REYE KERZE
plant and equipment 2 BB 12,061 20,353
— Net fair value gains on — BHEEEZRAFERE
securities trading FE - (19,272)
— Gain arising on change in fair value — &&WE 2 A FEE
of an investment property FT 15 Wz - (4,400,000)
— Gain on disposal of an investment — HEREWEFREBU R
property (8,898,530) —
— Amortization of intangible assets — BREEEHH 2,518,360 2,451,900
— Impairment of goodwill — HERE 3,700,843 581,950
— Impairment of intangible assets — BB ERAE — 499,999
— Impairment of trade receivables — EWESHIERE 119,484 51,884
— Impairment of other receivables — HEtb W IR E - 874,185
— Write-down of inventories — FEMOR 5,036,720 4,908,800
— Loss on disposal of subsidiaries — HEWBARZEIE - 4,354,581
— Loss on acquisition of additional — B — R B AR EE SN
interest in a subsidiary w2 B - 58,346
— Interest income — MEKA (402,013) (591,834)

BEEMERKXEEERLE —T-—=FF%K
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH
GEREaRER

For the year ended 31 December 2013

BE-T-=6+-A=+—ALFE

FLOWS

2013 2012
—g-=% —T——F
HK$ HK$
BT T
(Restated)
(s &%)
Operating cash flows before BELSSEHRMZ
changes in working capital BERERE (26,522,086) (25,651,720)
— Statutory deposits and other assets — & ERe & H & E (4,877,850) (1,455,000)
— Inventories -8 (338,063) (10,215,543)
— Held-for-trading investments — BEEEKRE - 2,129,631
— Trade receivables — BWEZ A (2,458,976) 297,178
— Amounts due from associates — FEUHEEE A RIFRIE — 15,966,214
— Prepayments, deposits — ERIE - &e
and other receivables N E A & W 3 0R 3,236,114 15,745,462
— Segregated trust bank balances — BUERRPAR (250,463) 861,584
— Trade payables — B E5IA 544,630 (1,011,490)
— Other payables and accruals — EMENFRIEAER
J& 5T R IA 4,442,726 (11,023,860)
Cash used in operations BEHAZHRS (26,223,968) (14,357,544)
Income tax refunded BREMGHR 1,457,827 855,001
Interest received SR NS 402,013 591,834
Net cash used in operating EETHERAZR&FE
activities (24,364,128) (12,910,709)
Cash flows from investing activities I & EFHABHLRKE
Purchases of property, EEMZE B REMHE
plant and equipment (4,063,077) (128,518)
Purchases of intangible assets BEBREEE - (500,000)
Proceeds from disposal of property, e - R
plant and equipment NS RIE 30,220 —
Acquisition of subsidiaries, WM B AR
net of cash acquired MBRASRE - (8,637,348)
Net proceeds from disposal of an HEREMERS
investment property RIEF A 55,398,530 —
Disposal of subsidiaries, HEWBRR -
net of cash disposed NBRLERS - (375,364)
Net cash generated from/ BREFEELE (FA)
(used in) investing activities ZH&FE 51,365,673 (9,641,230)

First China Financial Network Holdings Limited Annual Report 2013



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

=
ZEeEBRERER
For the year ended 31 December 2013
BE—Z-—=F+-A=+—-RALFE

2013 2012
—g-=% —T——F
Note HK$ HK$
B 5 BT T
(Restated)
(s &%)
Cash flows from financing REESHMBRERE
activities
Proceeds from issuance of ordinary BITEBBRMOMERIE
shares 52,029,516 —
Payments for share issue expenses [ 31T 2 5% (1,048,353) —
Repayments of bank borrowings RITERZERK (18,860,080) (3,185,875)
Capital contributions from non- IEIERERITE
controlling interests 2,551,140 —
Net cash generated from/ REEEEL (FH)
(used in) financing activities Z2HR&FHE 34,672,223 (3,185,875)
Net increase/ (decrease) in cash HeRFE£%EER
and cash equivalents s (R EE 61,673,768 (25,737,814)
Cash and cash equivalents at FUzBHeskReEHEIEAR
beginning of year 14,561,958 39,650,030
Exchange gains on cash and RekReFEHEBCER
cash equivalents U %5 854,986 649,742
Cash and cash equivalents FRZEEREAS
at end of year %{EIEH 26 77,090,712 14,561,958
HENRPAEEEBERAR T ="FF#H
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
GREUMBHRME

For the year ended 31 December 2013
HE-_Z—=6+-_A=+—BLEE

1.

GENERAL INFORMATION

First China Financial Network Holdings Limited (the “Company”)
and its subsidiaries (together the “Group”) are principally
engaged in the provision of stock information and research
services, precious metals spot trading and brokerage services
in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”), provision of
securities and futures trading services, corporate finance
services and wealth management services in Hong Kong and
trading and principal investments.

The Company was incorporated as an exempted company with
limited liability in the Cayman Islands under the Companies
Law of the Cayman Islands. The Company’s registered office
is situated at Century Yard, Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive,
P.O. Box 2681, Grand Cayman KY1-1111, Cayman Islands. The
Company'’s principal place of business is situated at 16th Floor,
CMA Building, No.64-66 Connaught Road Central, Hong Kong.

The Company’s shares are listed on the Growth Enterprise
Market (“GEM”) of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange”).

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong
Kong doallars, while the functional currencies of certain subsidiaries
are presented in Renminbi (“RMB”). The Company has selected
Hong Kong dollar as its presentation currency as management
considered it is more beneficial to the users of the consolidated
financial statements. These consolidated financial statements
have been approved and authorized for issue by the board of
directors on 21 March 2014.

First China Financial Network Holdings Limited Annual Report 2013
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
GREUMBHRME

For the year ended 31 December 2013
HE-_Z—=6+-_A=+—BLEE

2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation
of these consolidated financial statements are set out below.
These policies have been consistently applied to all the years
presented, unless otherwise stated.

21

Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”). The consolidated financial
statements have been prepared under the historical
cost convention, as modified by the revaluation of an
investment property, which is carried at fair value.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with
HKFRSs requires the use of certain critical accounting
estimates. It also requires management to exercise
its judgment in the process of applying the Group’s
accounting policies. The areas involving a higher degree
of judgment or complexity, or areas where assumptions
and estimates are significant to the consolidated financial
statements are disclosed in Note 4.

BEEMEHKREERRLF

TES

ATBRE

RENEGAMBBRRARMN I IR
SETBEEINWT - B BEREN
HEBRRERMESHRFEERER -

21

EREE
RAEMBHRRDREEBMIER
EEA(FE MBS RS ERIDPT
B A MWK THIRIE £
AERRE UREENEEDL
(BAFEFAEELER -

BRB BV RELENREIMG
WRAFLETEZGIATH
NEXREEBNERASE S
BUREE LA MAFHRS
KPHE SR BEN cBE IR
BEFHEHGAEVBHRREEE
ECHE BRMEARE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ZEWERRME

For the year ended 31 December 2013
HE-_Z—=6+-_A=+—BLEE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)
Changes in accounting policy and disclosures
@  New and amended standards adopted by the

Group

Amendments to HKFRS 1 Government Loans

Amendments to HKFRS 7 Disclosures — Offsetting Financial
Assets and Financial Liabilities

HKFRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements

HKFRS 11 Joint Arrangements

HKFRS 12 Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities

HKFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement

Amendments to HKFRS 10, Consolidated Financial Statements, Joint

HKFRS 11 and HKFRS 12 Arrangements and Disclosure of

Interests in Other Entities: Transition
Guidance

Amendments to HKAS 1 Presentation of Items of Other
Comprehensive Income

HKAS 19 (as revised in 2011) Employee Benefits

HKAS 27 (as revised in 2011) Separate Financial Statements

HKAS 28 (as revised in 2011) Investments in Associates and Joint
Ventures

HK(FRIC)-Int 20 Stripping Costs in the Production Phase
of a Surface Mine

Amendments to HKFRSs Annual Improvements to HKFRSs

2009-2011 Cycle

Except for as described below, the application of
the above new and revised HKFRSs in the current
year has had no material impact on the Group’s
financial performance and positions for the current
and prior years and/or on the disclosures set out in
these consolidated financial statements.

First China Financial Network Holdings Limited Annual Report 2013
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
GREUMBHRME

For the year ended 31 December 2013
HE-_Z—=6+-_A=+—BLEE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Basis of preparation (continued)

Changes in accounting policy and disclosures

(continued)

21

@

New and amended standards adopted by the
Group (continued)

New and revised Standards on consolidation, joint
arrangements, associates and disclosures

In the current year, the Group has applied for
the first time the package of five standards on
consolidation, joint arrangements, associates and
disclosures comprising HKFRS 10 “Consolidated
Financial Statements”, HKFRS 11 ‘“Joint
Arrangements”, HKFRS 12 “Disclosure of Interests
in Other Entities”, HKAS 27 (as revised in 2011)
“Separate Financial Statements” and HKAS 28 (as
revised in 2011) “/lnvestments in Associates and
Joint Ventures”, together with the amendments to
HKFRS 10, HKFRS 11 and HKFRS 12 regarding
transitional guidance.

HKAS 27 (as revised in 2011) is not applicable to
the Group as it deals only with separate financial
statements.

The impact of the application of these standards is
set out below.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
GREUMBHRME

For the year ended 31 December 2013
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Basis of preparation (continued)

Changes in accounting policy and disclosures

(continued)

21

@

New and amended standards adopted by the
Group (continued)
Impact of the application of HKFRS 10

HKFRS 10 replaces the parts of HKAS 27
“Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements”
that deal with consolidated financial statements and
HK(SIC) Int-12 “Consolidation — Special Purpose
Entities”. HKFRS 10 changes the definition of
control such that an investor has control over an
investee when a) it has power over the investee,
b) it is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns
from its involvement with the investee and c) has
the ability to use its power to affect its returns. All
three of these criteria must be met for an investor
to have control over an investee. Previously, control
was defined as the power to govern the financial
and operating policies of an entity so as to obtain
benefits from its activities. Additional guidance has
been included in HKFRS 10 to explain when an
investor has control over an investee.

The directors of the Company made an assessment
as at the date of initial application of HKFRS 10 as
to whether or not the Group has control over the
investees in accordance with the new definition of
control and the related guidance set out in HKFRS
10, and concluded that the application of HKFRS
10 does not change any of the control conclusions
reached by the Group in respect of its involvement
with other entities as at 1 January 2013.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
GREUMBHRME

For the year ended 31 December 2013
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Basis of preparation (continued)

Changes in accounting policy and disclosures

(continued)

21

@

New and amended standards adopted by the
Group (continued)
Impact of the application of HKFRS 12

HKFRS 12 is a new disclosure standard and
is applicable to entities that have interests in
subsidiaries, joint arrangements, associates and/
or unconsolidated structured entities. In general,
the application of HKFRS 12 has resulted in more
extensive disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements.

HKFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement

The Group has applied HKFRS 13 for the first time
in the current year. HKFRS 13 establishes a single
source of guidance for, and disclosures about, fair
value measurements. The scope of HKFRS 13 is
broad: the fair value measurement requirements of
HKFRS 13 apply to both financial instrument items
and non-financial instrument items for which other
HKFRSs require or permit fair value measurements
and disclosures about fair value measurements,
except for share-based payment transactions that
are within the scope of HKFRS 2 “Share-based
Payment”, leasing transactions that are within the
scope of HKAS 17 “Leases”, and measurements
that have some similarities to fair value but are not
fair value (e.g. net realizable value for the purposes
of measuring inventories or value in use for
impairment assessment purposes).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
GREUMBHRME

For the year ended 31 December 2013
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2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Basis of preparation (continued)

Changes in accounting policy and disclosures
(continued)

21

@

New and amended standards adopted by the
Group (continued)
HKFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement (continued)

HKFRS 13 defines the fair value of an asset as the
price that would be received to sell an asset (or
paid to transfer a liability, in the case of determining
the fair value of a liability) in an orderly transaction
in the principal (or most advantageous) market
at the measurement date under current market
conditions. Fair value under HKFRS 13 is an exit
price regardless of whether that price is directly
observable or estimated using another valuation
technique. Also, HKFRS 13 includes extensive
disclosure requirements.

HKFRS 13 requires prospective application. In
accordance with the transitional provisions of
HKFRS 13, the Group has not made any new
disclosures required by HKFRS 13 for the 2012
comparative period. Other than the additional
disclosures, the application of HKFRS 13 has not
had any material impact on the amounts recognized
in the consolidated financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
GREUMBHRME

For the year ended 31 December 2013
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2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Basis of preparation (continued)

Changes in accounting policy and disclosures
(continued)

21

@

New and amended standards adopted by the
Group (continued)

Amendments to HKAS 1 Presentation of ltems of
Other Comprehensive Income

The Group has applied the amendments to HKAS
1 “Presentation of ltems of Other Comprehensive
Income”. Upon the adoption of the amendments to
HKAS 1, the Group’s “statement of comprehensive
income” is renamed as the “statement of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income”. The
amendments to HKAS 1 retain the option to
present profit or loss and other comprehensive
income in either a single statement or in two
separate but consecutive statements. Furthermore,
the amendments to HKAS 1 require additional
disclosures to be made in the other comprehensive
section such that items of other comprehensive
income are grouped into two categories: (a)
items that will not be reclassified subsequently
to profit or loss; and (b) items that may be
reclassified subsequently to profit or loss when
specific conditions are met. Income tax on items
of other comprehensive income is required to be
allocated on the same basis — the amendments
do not change the option to present items of
other comprehensive income either before tax or
net of tax. The amendments have been applied
retrospectively, and hence the presentation of items
of other comprehensive income has been modified
to reflect the changes.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ZEWERRME

For the year ended 31 December 2013
HE-_Z—=6+-_A=+—BLEE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2, XEEBERBEE)
POLICIES (continued)
2.1 Basis of preparation (continued) 21 REEEE)

Changes in accounting policy and disclosures

(continued)

@  New and amended standards adopted by the

Group (continued)

Amendments to HKAS 1 Presentation of ltems of
Other Comprehensive Income (continued)

Other than the above mentioned presentation
changes, the application of the amendments to
HKAS 1 does not result in any impact on profit

or loss,

other comprehensive income and total
comprehensive income.

(b)  New stanadards and interpretations not yet adopted
The Group has not early applied the following new
and revised HKFRSs that have been issued but are

not yet effective:

Amendments to HKFRSs

Amendments to HKFRSs

HKFRS 9
HKFRS 14

HKFRS 9, HKFRS 7 and HKFRS 39
Amendments

Amendments to HKFRS 10, HKFRS
12 and HKAS 27

Amendments to HKAS 19
Amendments to HKAS 32
Amendments to HKAS 36

Amendments to HKAS 39

HK(FRIC) — Int 21

58

Annual improvements to HKFRSs 2010 —
2012 Cycle?

Annual improvements to HKFRSs 2011 —
2013 Cycle*

Financial Instruments®

Regulatory Deferral Accounts®

Hedge accounting and amendments to
HKFRS 9, HKFRS 7 and HKAS 39°

Investment Entities’

Defined Benefit Plans: Employee
Contributions?

Offsetting Financial Assets and Financial
Liabilities'

Recoverable Amount Disclosures for Non-
Financial Assets'

Novation of Derivatives and Continuation
of Hedge Accounting'

Levies'
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
GREUMBHRME

For the year ended 31 December 2013
BE-_Z—=F+-A=+—HLEHFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)
Changes in accounting policy and disclosures
(continued)

®)

New standards and interpretations not yet adopted

(continued)
! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2014, with earlier application permitted.

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July
2014. Early application is permitted.

3 No mandatory effective date yet determined but is
available for adoption.

4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July
2014, with limited exceptions.

5 Effective for first annual HKFRS financial statements
beginning on or after 1 January 2016.

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments

HKFRS 9 issued in 2009 introduces new
requirements for the classification and measurement
of financial assets. HKFRS 9 was amended in
2010 to include requirements for the classification
and measurement of financial liabilities and for
derecognition, and further amended in 2013
to include the new requirements for hedging
accounting.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
GREUMBHRME

For the year ended 31 December 2013
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2.

60

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

Changes in accounting policy and disclosures

(continued)
(b)  New standards and interpretations not yet adopted
(continued)

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments (continued)

Key requirements of HKFRS 9 are described as
follows:

° All recognized financial assets that are
within the scope of HKAS 39 “Financial
Instruments: Recognition and Measurement”
are subsequently measured at amortized cost
or fair value. Specifically, debt investments
that are held within a business model whose
objective is to collect the contractual cash
flows, and that have contractual cash flows
that are solely payments of principal and
interest on the principal outstanding are
generally measured at amortized cost at
the end of subsequent reporting periods.
All other debt investments and equity
investments are measured at their fair values
at the end of subsequent accounting periods.
In addition, under HKFRS 9, entities may
make an irrevocable election to present
subsequent changes in the fair value of an
equity investment (that is not held for trading)
in other comprehensive income, with only
dividend income generally recognized in profit
or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
GREUMBHRME

For the year ended 31 December 2013
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Basis of preparation (continued)

Changes in accounting policy and disclosures
(continued)

21

®)

New standards and interpretations not yet adopted
(continued)
HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments (continued)

° With regard to the measurement of financial
liabilities designated as at fair value through
profit or loss, HKFRS 9 requires that the
amount of change in the fair value of the
financial liability that is attributable to changes
in the credit risk of that liability is presented
in other comprehensive income, unless the
recognition of the effects of changes in the
liability’s credit risk in other comprehensive
income would create or enlarge an accounting
mismatch in profit or loss. Changes in fair
value of financial liabilities attributable to
changes in the financial liabilities’ credit risk
are not subsequently reclassified to profit or
loss. Under HKAS 39, the entire amount of
the change in the fair value of the financial
liability designated as at fair value through
profit or loss was presented in profit or loss.

The new general hedge accounting requirements
retain the three types of hedge accounting.
However, greater flexibility has been introduced
to the types of transactions eligible for hedge
accounting, specifically broadening the types of
instruments that qualify for hedging instruments
and the types of risk components of non-financial
items that are eligible for hedge accounting. In
addition, the effectiveness test has been overhauled
and replaced with the principle of an ‘economic
relationship’. Retrospective assessment of hedge
effectiveness is also no longer required. Enhanced
disclosure requirements about an entity’s risk
management activities have also been introduced.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
GREUMBHRME
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2.

62

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Basis of preparation (continued)

Changes in accounting policy and disclosures
(continued)

21

®)

New standards and interpretations not yet adopted
(continued)
HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments (continued)

The directors anticipate that the adoption of HKFRS
9 in the future may have significant impact on
the amounts reported in respect of the Group’s
financial assets and financial liabilities. Regarding
the Group’s financial assets, it is not practicable to
provide a reasonable estimate of that effect until a
detailed review has been completed.

HKAS 32 Offsetting Financial Assets and Financial
Liabilities

The amendments to HKAS 32 clarify existing
application issues relating to the offset of financial
assets and financial liabilities requirements.
Specifically, the amendments clarify the meaning of
“currently has a legally enforceable right of set-off”
and “simultaneous realization and settlement”.

The directors do not anticipate that the application
of these amendments to HKAS 32 will have a
significant impact on the Group’s consolidated
financial statements as the Group does not have
any financial assets and financial liabilities that
qualify for offset.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
GREUMBHRME

For the year ended 31 December 2013
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2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Basis of preparation (continued)

Changes in accounting policy and disclosures
(continued)

21

®)

New standards and interpretations not yet adopted
(continued)

HKAS 36 Recoverable Amount Disclosures for Non-
Financial Assets

The amendments to HKAS 36 remove the
requirement to disclose the recoverable amount
of a cash-generating unit (CGU) to which goodwill
or other intangible assets with indefinite useful
lives had been allocated when there has been no
impairment or reversal of impairment of the related
CGU. Furthermore, the amendments introduce
additional disclosure requirements regarding the
fair value hierarchy, key assumptions and valuation
techniques used when the recoverable amount of
an asset or CGU was determined based on its fair
value less costs of disposal.

The directors do not anticipate that the application
of these amendments to HKAS 36 will have a
significant impact on the Group’s consolidated
financial statements.

The adoption of the above standards, amendments
and interpretations to existing standards in future
periods is not expected to result in substantial
changes to the Group’s accounting policies.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
GREUMBHRME

For the year ended 31 December 2013
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2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

2.2 Subsidiaries

2.2.1 Consolidation

A subsidiary is an entity (including a structured
entity) over which the Group has control. The
Group controls an entity when the Group is
exposed to, or has rights to, variable returns from
its involvement with the entity and has the ability
to affect those returns through its power over the
entity. Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date
on which control is transferred to the Group. They
are deconsolidated from the date that control
ceases.

@)

Business combinations

The Group applies the acquisition method
to account for business combinations. The
consideration transferred for the acquisition
of a subsidiary is the fair values of the
assets transferred, the liabilities incurred to
the former owners of the acquiree and the
equity interests issued by the Group. The
consideration transferred includes the fair
value of any asset or liability resulting from
a contingent consideration arrangement.
|dentifiable assets acquired and liabilities and
contingent liabilities assumed in a business
combination are measured initially at their
fair values at the acquisition date. The Group
recognizes any non-controlling interest in
the acquiree on an acquisition-by-acquisition
basis, either at fair value or at the non-
controlling interest’s proportionate share of the
recognized amounts of acquiree’s identifiable
net assets.

Acquisition-related costs are expensed as
incurred.

If the business combination is achieved in
stages, the acquisition date carrying value of
the acquirer’'s previously held equity interest
in the acquiree is re-measured to fair value
at the acquisition date; any gains or losses
arising from such re-measurement are
recognized in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
GREUMBHRME

For the year ended 31 December 2013
HE-_Z—=6+-_A=+—BLEE

2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
2.2 Subsidiaries (continued)

2.2.1 Consolidation (continued)

@)

Business combinations (continued)

Any contingent consideration to be transferred
by the Group is recognized at fair value at
the acquisition date. Subsequent changes to
the fair value of the contingent consideration
that is deemed to be an asset or liability is
recognized in accordance with HKAS 39
either in profit or loss or as a change to
other comprehensive Contingent
consideration that is classified as equity is not
re-measured, and its subsequent settlement
is accounted for within equity.

income.

The excess of the consideration transferred,
the amount of any non-controlling interest
in the acquiree and the acquisition-date fair
value of any previous equity interest in the
acquiree over the fair value of the identifiable
net assets acquired is recorded as goodwill.
If the total of consideration transferred, non-
controlling interest recognized and previously
held interest measured is less than the fair
value of the net assets of the subsidiary
acquired in the case of a bargain purchase,
the difference is recognized directly in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income.

Intra-group transactions, balances and
unrealized gains on transactions between
group companies are eliminated. Unrealized
losses are also eliminated. When necessary,
amounts reported by subsidiaries have
been adjusted to conform with the Group’s
accounting policies.

BEEMEHKREERRLF

2.

FESHBRBEE)

2.2 MEBATE)
221 &8 (&)

@)

XA (E)
SEHERENTMAK
AREBREBRHD
NFEFE KR
REEFABOLA
REAFENEERE
B REBEREGE
A3 R TE - £
BamRP R EREM
2HEEANE I RE
R DABERAK
ARETEHFE
Hig@rEaE#aD
N

PrEEAE - RIKE
77 B AE (] FE 42 B i =
& BB S AE ] 55 A R 4R
BB RSN
BEIE R FERRM
WREAIHREEFE
MRFEE HERE
PNGE ULt
BEME WEER
B EmRIFm R
o N TR R A R B 2
AR P UL RE BT 8
AR EEFENRF
B - HEZBHERHR
FeBmkEtEmE
WARK TR SZE
EBREEKE -

& B T AR R
5 BEHERSHHEK
HWFE HREE
Rdy - REREE
INTHE8Y o BB A A
WERRECLERE
FELFAE  UFE
REBAEE °

TE-ZFER

65



66

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
GREUMBHRME

For the year ended 31 December 2013
HE-_Z—=6+-_A=+—BLEE

2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
2.2 Subsidiaries (continued)

2.2.1 Consolidation (continued)

®)

©

Changes in ownership interests in subsidiaries
without change of control

Transactions with non-controlling interests
that do not result in a loss of control are
accounted for as equity transactions —
that is, as transactions with the owners of
the subsidiary in their capacity as owners.
The difference between fair value of any
consideration paid and the relevant share
acquired of the carrying amount of net assets
of the subsidiary is recorded in equity. Gains
or losses on disposals to non-controlling
interests are also recorded in equity.

Disposal of subsidiaries

When the Group ceases to have control, any
retained interest in the entity is re-measured
to its fair value at the date when control is
lost, with the change in carrying amount
recognized in profit or loss. The fair value is
the initial carrying amount for the purposes
of subsequently accounting for the retained
interest as an associate, joint venture or
financial asset. In addition, any amounts
previously recognized in other comprehensive
income in respect of that entity are accounted
for as if the Group had directly disposed of
the related assets or liabilities. This may mean
that amounts previously recognized in other
comprehensive income are reclassified to
profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ZEMERRME

For the year ended 31 December 2013
HE-_Z—=6+-_A=+—BLEE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

2. FEEHBRBMEE)

POLICIES (continued)

2.2 Subsidiaries (continued) 22 MEBATE)
2.2.2 Separate financial statements 222BUHBHEE
Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for KRB RE 2 ®ETIARK
at cost less impairment. Cost includes direct KBERBEZFETHE -
attributable costs of investment. The results of RANBEREEZEMN
subsidiaries are accounted for by the Company on KA B AR 2%EET)
the basis of dividend received and receivable. AR RQE TR B R E
WRIBARR o

Impairment testing of the investments in subsidiaries WIEEMBRARMES 2
is required upon receiving a dividend from these B HBAMNEBARRNIKE
investments if the dividend exceeds the total HEzzEBHR A B
comprehensive income of the subsidiary in the VUBmMEAZEERE
period the dividend is declared or if the carrying BEHRBEAE B ®RE AW
amount of the investment in the separate financial BWEEZ FEE(RERE)
statements exceeds the carrying amount in the BREE - A EWE A E R
consolidated financial statements of the investee’s BERMSREREH S
net assets including goodwill. WEETRERR -

2.3 Associates 23 BEAT

An associate is an entity over which the Group
has significant influence but not control, generally
accompanying a shareholding of between 20% and
50% of the voting rights. Investments in associates are
accounted for using the equity method of accounting.
Under the equity method, the investment is initially
recognized at cost, and the carrying amount is increased
or decreased to recognize the investor's share of the
profit or loss of the investee after the date of acquisition.
The Group’s investment in associates includes goodwill
identified on acquisition.

If the ownership interest in an associate is reduced but
significant influence is retained, only a proportionate
share of the amounts previously recognized in other
comprehensive income is reclassified to profit or loss
where appropriate.

The Group’s share of post-acquisition profit or loss is
recognized in the consolidated statement of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income, and its share of post-
acquisition movements in other comprehensive income
is recognized in other comprehensive income with a
corresponding adjustment to the carrying amount of the
investment.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
GREUMBHRME

For the year ended 31 December 2013
HE-_Z—=6+-_A=+—BLEE

2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.3

2.4

Associates (continued)

When the Group’s share of losses in an associate
equals or exceeds its interest in the associate, including
any other unsecured receivables, the Group does not
recognize further losses, unless it has incurred legal or
constructive obligations or made payments on behalf of
the associate.

The Group determines at each reporting date whether
there is any objective evidence that the investment in
the associate is impaired. If this is the case, the Group
calculates the amount of impairment as the difference
between the recoverable amount of the associate and
its carrying value and recognizes the amount adjacent to
“share of profit/(loss) of associates” in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income.

Profits and losses resulting from upstream and
downstream transactions between the Group and
its associate are recognized in the Group’s financial
statements only to the extent of unrelated investor’s
interests in the associates. Unrealized losses are
eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence of an
impairment of the asset transferred. Accounting policies
of associates have been changed where necessary to
ensure consistency with the policies adopted by the
Group.

Gain or losses on dilution of equity interest in associates
are recognized in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income.

Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent
with the internal reporting provided to the chief operating
decision-maker. The chief operating decision-maker, who
is responsible for allocating resources and assessing
performance of the operating segments, has been
identified as the executive directors that makes strategic
decisions.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
GREUMBHRME

For the year ended 31 December 2013
HE-_Z—=6+-_A=+—BLEE

2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
2.5 Foreign currency translation

(a)

(b)

Functional and presentation currency

[tems included in the financial statements of each
of the Group’s entities are measured using the
currency of the primary economic environment in
which the entity operates (“the functional currency”).
The consolidated financial statements are
presented in Hong Kong dollars (HK$), which is the
Company’s functional and the Group’s presentation
currency.

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into
the functional currency using the exchange rates
prevailing at the dates of the transactions or
valuation where items are re-measured. Foreign
exchange gains and losses resulting from the
settlement of such transactions and from the
translation at year-end exchange rates of monetary
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are recognized in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income.

Translation differences on non-monetary financial
assets and liabilities such as equities held at fair
value through profit or loss are recognized in
profit or loss as part of the fair value gain or loss.
Translation differences on non-monetary financial
assets, such as equities classified as available-for-
sale, are included in other comprehensive income.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
GREUMBHRME

For the year ended 31 December 2013
HE-_Z—=6+-_A=+—BLEE

2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
2.5 Foreign currency translation (continued)

(c)

(d)

Group companies

The results and financial position of all the group
entities (none of which has the currency of a
hyperinflationary economy) that have a functional
currency different from the presentation currency
are translated into the presentation currency as
follows:

° assets and liabilities for each statement of
financial position presented are translated at
the closing rate at the date of that statement
of financial position;

° income and expenses for each statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income are translated at average exchange
rates (unless this average is not a reasonable
approximation of the cumulative effect of
the rates prevailing on the transaction dates,
in which case income and expenses are
translated at the rates on the dates of the
transactions); and

° all resulting currency translation differences
are recognized in other comprehensive
income.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the
acquisition of a foreign entity are treated as assets
and liabilities of the foreign entity and translated at
the closing rate. Currency translation differences
arising are recognized in other comprehensive
income.

Disposal of foreign operation and partial
disposal

On the disposal of a foreign operation (that is, a
disposal of the Group’s entire interest in a foreign
operation, or a disposal involving loss of control
over a subsidiary that includes a foreign operation,
a disposal involving loss of joint control over a
joint venture that includes a foreign operation, or a
disposal involving loss of significant influence over
an associate that includes a foreign operation), all
of the currency translation differences accumulated
in equity in respect of that operation attributable to
the owners of the company are reclassified to profit
or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
GREUMBHRME

For the year ended 31 December 2013
HE-_Z—=6+-_A=+—BLEE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. B BREBEE)
POLICIES (continued)
2.5 Foreign currency translation (continued) 25 SEBREE)
(d) Disposal of foreign operation and partial (d HESIIEHZERBI)HE

disposal (continued) (#&)
In the case of a partial disposal that does not result WA BELTEBHAR
in the Group losing control over a subsidiary that SEXEHWBAR(BERE
includes a foreign operation, the proportionate share G INZETE) By I AE - R tl:
of accumulated currency translation differences BT RFTERKRE =S
are reattributed to non-controlling interests and BENHENIEIERER
are not recognized in profit or loss. For all other B AREBmAER - 5t
partial disposals (that is, reductions in the Group’s i EmE o b & (B E
ownership interest in associates or joint ventures BEREE NG REEDE
that do not result in the Group losing significant ZFTBEREER R ”J\I[T g
influence or joint control) the proportionate share of @ZZJX EBEEXEEATEN
the accumulated exchange difference is reclassified H? S HE)
to profit or loss. S AT RE

"‘ﬁéﬁ BEREHHA

=
EEHEA -

2.6 Property, plant and equipment 26 Y HBEREE

Property, plant and equipment are stated at historical cost VIZE - WS R R E IR E £ R ANR
less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment R ER RNBERBRYE -
losses. Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly FEELRAREEEREWEER
attributable to the acquisition of the items. Subsequent HEZHAX  HERAERES
costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or I E - A& BEF R R A
recognized as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when AEEBZERE KA S
it is probable that future economic benefits associated with EFN AR AEEREABEIER
the item will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can BBUEEMMRBERBRME) -
be measured reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced WEHRE D BREES LR -
part is derecognized. All other repairs and maintenance are FIEREMBEERRERES M
charged to the consolidated statement of profit or loss and HEEERE Bz R EMEEIK
other comprehensive income during the financial period in AR FHR -

which they are incurred.

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment is W BEREBZITEDNE
calculated using the straight-line method to allocate their ok RHEMFAIEAFE -
cost to their residual values over their estimated useful HERADEZHEFIAREE  FTA
lives, as follows: FHIOT

Land Over the term of leases + b 1% 7 4 4 Hf
Buildings 25 years e 254
Leasehold improvements Over the term of leases AEWEEE 1% 78 45 4 HR
Office equipment and furniture 3 to 5 years WAEHEREM 3ELE
Computer equipment 3 years ER R 34

Motor vehicles 3 to 10 years HEH 3FE104F

HEMCEEEEERAT —T-=H55% 71
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
GREUMBHRME

For the year ended 31 December 2013
HE-_Z—=6+-_A=+—BLEE

2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.6

2.7

Property, plant and equipment (continued)

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed,
and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each reporting
period.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately
to its recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount
is greater than its estimated recoverable amount.

Gains or losses on disposals are determined by
comparing the proceeds with the carrying amount and
are recognized in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income.

Investment properties

Investment properties, principally comprising leasehold
land and buildings, are held for long-term rental yields
or for capital appreciation or both, and that are not
occupied by the Group. They also include properties
that are under construction but with a plan to use as
investment properties in the future.

Investment properties comprise land and buildings under
operating leases.

Land held under operating leases are accounted for as
investment properties when the rest of the definition
of investment property is met. The operating lease is
accounted for as if it were a finance lease.

Investment properties are measured initially at its
cost, including related transaction costs and where
applicable borrowing costs. After initial recognition at
cost, investment properties are carried at fair value,
representing open market value determined at each
reporting date by external valuers. Fair value is based
on active market prices, adjusted, if necessary, for any
difference in the nature, location or condition of the
specific asset. if the information is not available, the
Group uses alternative valuation methods such as recent
prices on less active markets or discounted cash flow
projections. Changes in fair values are recorded in profit
or loss as part of a valuation gain or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
GREUMBHRME

For the year ended 31 December 2013
HE-_Z—=6+-_A=+—BLEE

2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Investment properties (continued)

Investment properties are derecognized either when they
have been disposed of or when the investment properties
are permanently withdrawn from use and no future
economic benefit is expected from its disposal.

2.7

2.8

Intangible assets

(a)

Goodwill

Goodwill arises on the acquisition of subsidiaries
and associates and represents the excess of the
consideration transferred over the Group’s interest
in net fair value of the net identifiable assets,
liabilities and contingent liabilities of the acquiree
and the fair value of the non-controlling interest in
the acquiree.

For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill
acquired in a business combination is allocated
to each of the cash-generating units (“CGUs”), or
groups of CGUs, that is expected to benefit from
the synergies of the combination. Each unit or
group of units to which the goodwill is allocated
represents the lowest level within the entity at which
the goodwill is monitored for internal management
purposes. Goodwill is monitored at the operating
segment level.

Goodwill impairment reviews are undertaken
annually or more frequently if events or changes
in circumstances indicate a potential impairment.
The carrying value of goodwill is compared to the
recoverable amount, which is the higher of value
in use and the fair value less costs of disposal.
Any impairment is recognized immediately as an
expense and is not subsequently reversed.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ZEWERRME

For the year ended 31 December 2013
HE-_Z—=6+-_A=+—BLEE

2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.8

2.9

2.10

Intangible assets (continued)

(b) Trading rights
Group’s intangible assets represent eligibility rights
to trade on or through the Stock Exchange and
on the Hong Kong Futures Exchange Limited. The
trading rights are carried at cost less accumulated
amortization and accumulated impairment losses.

(c) Software
The software has a finite useful life and is carried at
cost less accumulated amortization and impairment.
Amortization is calculated using the straight-line
method to allocate the cost of software over its
estimated useful life of 2 years.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Assets that have an indefinite useful life — for example,
goodwill or intangible assets not ready to use — are
not subject to amortization and are tested annually for
impairment. Assets that are subject to amortization are
reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not
be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognized for the
amount by which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds
its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the
higher of an asset’s fair value less costs to sell and value
in use. For the purposes of assessing impairment, assets
are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are
separately identifiable cash flows (cash-generating units).
Non-financial assets other than goodwill that suffered
an impairment are reviewed for possible reversal of the
impairment at each reporting date.

Discontinued operations

A discontinued operation is a component of the Group’s
business, the operations and cash flows of which can
be clearly distinguished from the rest of the Group and
which represents a separate major line of business or
geographic area of operations, or is part of a single
coordinated plan to dispose of a separate major line
of business or geographical area of operations, or is a
subsidiary acquired exclusively with a view to resale.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ZEMERRME

For the year ended 31 December 2013
HE-_Z—=6+-_A=+—BLEE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
2.10 Discontinued operations (continued)

When an operation is classified as discontinued, a single

2.11

amount is presented in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income, which
comprises the post-tax profit or loss of the discontinued
operation and the post-tax gain or loss recognized on
the measurement to fair value less costs to sell, or on
the disposal, of the assets constituting the discontinued
operation.

Financial assets

Classification

The Group classifies its financial assets in the following
categories: at fair value through profit or loss, loans
and receivables and available-for-sale. The classification
depends on the purpose for which the financial assets
were acquired. Management determines the classification
of its financial assets at initial recognition.

@  Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
are financial assets held-for-trading. A financial asset
is classified in this category if acquired principally
for the purpose of selling in the short term. Assets
in this category are classified as current assets.

(b)  Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial
assets with fixed or determinable payments that are
not quoted in an active market. They are included
in current assets, except for the amounts that are
settled or expected to be settled more than 12
months after the end of the reporting period. These
are classified as non-current assets. The Group’s
loans and receivables comprise “trade receivables”,
“deposits and other receivables” and “bank
balances and cash” in the statement of financial
position.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ZEWERRME

For the year ended 31 December 2013
HE-_Z—=6+-_A=+—BLEE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
2.11 Financial assets (continued)

Classification (continued)

(c)  Available-for-sale financial assets
Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivatives
that are either designated in this category or not
classified in any of the other categories. They
are included in non-current assets unless the
investment matures or management intends to
dispose of it within 12 months of the end of the
reporting period.

Recognition and measurement

Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are
recognized on the trade-date — the date on which the
Group commits to purchase or sell the asset. Investments
are initially recognized at fair value plus transaction costs
for all financial assets not carried at fair value through
profit or loss. Financial assets carried at fair value
through profit or loss are initially recognized at fair value,
and transaction costs are expensed in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income. Financial assets are derecognized when the rights
to receive cash flows from the investments have expired
or have been transferred and the Group has transferred
substantially all risks and rewards of ownership. Available-
for-sale financial assets and financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss are subsequently carried at fair
value. Loans and receivables are subsequently carried at
amortized cost using the effective interest method.

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value of
the “financial assets at fair value through profit or loss”
category are presented in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income within
“Other (losses)/gains — net” in the period in which they
arise. Dividend income from financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss is recognized in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income as part of other income when the Group’s right
to receive payments is established.

Changes in the fair value of monetary and non-monetary
securities classified as available-for-sale are recognized in
other comprehensive income.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
GREUMBHRME

For the year ended 31 December 2013
HE-_Z—=6+-_A=+—BLEE

2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

211

212

Financial assets (continued)

Recognition and measurement (continued)

When securities classified as available-for-sale are sold
or impaired, the accumulated fair value adjustments
recognized in equity are included in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income as “gains and losses from investment securities”.

Interest on available-for-sale securities calculated
using the effective interest method is recognized in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income as part of other income. Dividends
on available-for-sale equity instruments are recognized
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income as part of other income when the
Group’s right to receive payments is established.

Impairment of financial assets

Assets carried at amortized cost

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period
whether there is objective evidence that a financial asset
or group of financial assets is impaired. A financial asset
or a group of financial assets is impaired and impairment
losses are incurred only if there is objective evidence
of impairment as a result of one or more events that
occurred after the initial recognition of the asset (a “loss
event”) and that loss event (or events) has an impact on
the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset or
group of financial assets that can be reliably estimated.

Evidence of impairment may include indications that the
debtors or a group of debtors is experiencing significant
financial difficulty, default or delinquency in interest or
principal payments, the probability that they will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganization, and where
observable data indicate that there is a measurable
decrease in the estimated future cash flows, such as
changes in arrears or economic conditions that correlate
with defaults.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ZEWERRME

For the year ended 31 December 2013
HE-_Z—=6+-_A=+—BLEE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
2.12 Impairment of financial assets (continued)

Assets carried at amortized cost (continued)

For loans and receivables category, the amount of the
loss is measured as the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the present value of estimated future
cash flows (excluding future credit losses that have not
been incurred) discounted at the financial asset’s original
effective interest rate. The carrying amount of the asset
is reduced and the amount of the loss is recognized in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income. If a loan or held-to-maturity
investment has a variable interest rate, the discount rate
for measuring any impairment loss is the current effective
interest rate determined under the contract. As a practical
expedient, the Group may measure impairment on the
basis of an instrument’s fair value using an observable
market price.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment
loss decreases and the decrease can be related
objectively to an event occurring after the impairment
was recognized (such as an improvement in the debtor’s
credit rating), the reversal of the previously recognized
impairment loss is recognized in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income.

Assets classified as available-for-sale

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period
whether there is objective evidence that a financial asset
or a group of financial assets is impaired. In the case
of equity investments classified as available-for-sale, a
significant or prolonged decline in the fair value of the
security below its cost is also evidence that the assets
are impaired. If any such evidence exists for available-
for-sale financial assets, the cumulative loss — measured
as the difference between the acquisition cost and
the current fair value, less any impairment loss on that
financial asset previously recognized in profit or loss
— is removed from equity and recognized in profit or
loss. Impairment losses recognized in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income on equity instruments are not reversed through
the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
GREUMBHRME

For the year ended 31 December 2013
HE-_Z—=6+-_A=+—BLEE

2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

213

214

2.15

2.16

217

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realizable value. Cost is determined using the first-in,
first-out (FIFO) method. The cost of finished goods is
arrived at purchase cost. It excludes borrowing costs.
Net realizable value is the estimated selling price in the
ordinary course of business, less applicable variable
selling expenses.

Trade and other receivables

Trade receivables are amounts due from customers for
merchandize sold or services performed in the ordinary
course of business. If collection of trade and other
receivables is expected in one year or less (or in the
normal operating cycle of the business if longer), they are
classified as current assets. If not, they are presented as
non-current assets.

Trade and other receivables are recognized initially at
fair value and subsequently measured at amortized cost
using the effective interest method, less provision for
impairment.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents includes cash in hand,
deposits held at call with banks, other short-term highly
liquid investments with original maturities of three months
or less.

Share capital
Ordinary shares are classified as equity.

Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new
shares or options are shown in equity as a deduction,
net of tax, from the proceeds.

Trade payables

Trade payables are obligations to pay for goods or
services that have been acquired in the ordinary course
of business from suppliers. Accounts payable are
classified as current liabilities if payment is due within
one year or less (or in the normal operating cycle for the
business if longer). If not, they are presented as non-
current liabilities.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ZEWERRME

For the year ended 31 December 2013
HE-_Z—=6+-_A=+—BLEE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
2.17 Trade payables (continued)

Trade payables are recognized initially at fair value and
subsequently measured at amortized cost using the

effective interest method.

2.18 Borrowings

Borrowings are recognized initially at fair value, net of
transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently
carried at amortized cost; any difference between the
proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption
value is recognized in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income over the period
of the borrowings using the effective interest method.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the
Group has an unconditional right to defer settlement of
the liability for at least 12 months after the end of the

reporting period.

2.19 Borrowing costs

General and specific borrowing costs directly attributable
to the acquisition, construction or production of qualifying
assets, which are assets that necessarily take a
substantial period of time to get ready for their intended
use or sale, are added to the cost of those assets, until
such time as the assets are substantially ready for their

intended use or sale.

Investment income earned on the temporary investment
of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on
qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing costs

eligible for capitalization.

All other borrowing costs are recognized in profit or loss

in the period in which they are incurred.

2.20 Financial guarantee contracts

A financial guarantee contract is a contract that requires
the issuer to make specified payments to reimburse the
holder for a loss it incurs because a specified debtor
fails to make payments when due in accordance with the

terms of a debt instrument.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ZEMERRME

For the year ended 31 December 2013
HE-_Z—=6+-_A=+—BLEE

2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
2.20 Financial guarantee contracts (continued)

2.21

Financial guarantee contracts issued by the Group are
initially measured at their fair values and, if not designated
as at FVTPL, are subsequently measured at the higher
of:

o the amount of the obligation under the contract, as
determined in accordance with HKAS 37 “Provisions,
Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets”; and

° the amount initially recognized less, where
appropriate, cumulative amortization recognized in
accordance with HKAS 18 “Revenue”.

Current and deferred income tax

The tax expense for the period comprises current and
deferred tax. Tax is recognized in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income, except to the extent that it relates to items
recognized in other comprehensive income or directly in
equity. In this case the tax is also recognized in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, respectively.

Current income tax

The current income tax charge is calculated on the
basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted
at the end of the reporting period in the countries where
the Company’s subsidiaries and associates operate
and generate taxable income. Management periodically
evaluates positions taken in tax returns with respect to
situations in which applicable tax regulation is subject to
interpretation. It establishes provisions where appropriate
on the basis of amounts expected to be paid to the tax
authorities.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ZEWERRME

For the year ended 31 December 2013
HE-_Z—=6+-_A=+—BLEE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
2.21 Current and deferred income tax (continued)

Deferred income tax

Inside basis differences

Deferred income tax is recognized, using the liability
method, on temporary differences arising between the tax
bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts
in the consolidated financial statements. However,
deferred tax liabilities are not recognized if they arise from
the initial recognition of goodwill, the deferred income tax
is not accounted for if it arises from initial recognition of
an asset or liability in a transaction other than a business
combination that at the time of the transaction affects
neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss. Deferred
income tax is determined using tax rates (and laws) that
have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end
of the reporting period and are expected to apply when
the related deferred income tax asset is realized or the
deferred income tax liability is settled.

Deferred income tax assets are recognized only to the
extent that it is probable that future taxable profit will be
available against which the temporary differences can be
utilized.

Outside basis differences

Deferred income tax liabilities are provided on taxable
temporary differences arising from investments in
subsidiaries and associates, except for deferred income
tax liability where the timing of the reversal of the
temporary difference is controlled by the Group and it is
probable that the temporary difference will not reverse
in the foreseeable future. Generally the Group is unable
to control the reversal of the temporary difference for
associates. Only where there is an agreement in place
that gives the Group the ability to control the reversal of
the temporary difference not recognized.

Deferred income tax assets are recognized on deductible
temporary differences arising from investments in
subsidiaries and associates only to the extent that it
is probable the temporary difference will reverse in the
future and there is sufficient taxable profit available
against which the temporary difference can be utilized.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
GREUMBHRME

For the year ended 31 December 2013
HE-_Z—=6+-_A=+—BLEE

2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
2.21 Current and deferred income tax (continued)
Deferred income tax (continued)
Offsetting

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset
when there is a legally enforceable right to offset current
tax assets against current tax liabilities and when the
deferred income taxes assets and liabilities relate to
income taxes levied by the same taxation authority on
either the taxable entity or different taxable entities where
there is an intention to settle the balances on a net basis.

2.22 Employee benefits

(a)

Pension obligations

The Group operates a defined contribution
Mandatory Provident Fund retirement benefits
scheme (the “MPF Scheme”) under the Mandatory
Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance, for those
employees who are eligible to participate in the
MPF Scheme. Contributions are made based on
a percentage of the employees’ basic salaries
and are charged to the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income
as they become payable in accordance with the
rules of the MPF Scheme. The assets of the MPF
scheme are held separately from those of the
Group in an independently administered fund. The
Group’s employer contributions vest fully within
the employees when contributed into the MPF
Scheme, except for the Group’s employer voluntary
contributions, which are refunded to the Group
when the employee leaves employment prior to
the contributions vesting fully, in accordance with
the rules of the MPF Scheme. During the reporting
period, the total amount of forfeited contributions,
which arose upon employees leaving the MPF
Scheme and available to reduce the contribution
payable in future years was nil (2012: Nil).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
GREUMBHRME

For the year ended 31 December 2013
HE-_Z—=6+-_A=+—BLEE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
2.22 Employee benefits (continued)

(a)

(b)

Pension obligations (continued)

Retirement benefits to employees in the PRC
are provided through a defined contribution plan.
The Group is required to participate in a central
pension scheme operated by the local municipal
government. The Group is required to contribute
certain percentage of its payroll costs to the central
pension scheme. The contributions are charged
to the consolidated statement of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income as they become
payable in accordance with the rules of the central
pension scheme. The Group has no legal or
constructive obligations to pay further contributions
after payment of the fixed contribution.

Share-based compensation

The Group operates an equity-settled, share-based
compensation plan, under which the entity receives
services from employees as consideration for equity
instruments (options) of the Group. The fair value of
the employee services received in exchange for the
grant of the options is recognized as an expense.
The total amount to be expensed is determined by
reference to the fair value of the options granted:

° including any market performance conditions
(for example, an entity’s share price);

° excluding the impact of any service and non-
market performance vesting conditions (for
example, profitability, sales growth targets
and remaining an employee of the entity over
a specified time period); and

° including the impact of any non-vesting
conditions (for example, the requirement for
employees to save).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
GREUMBHRME

For the year ended 31 December 2013
HE-_Z—=6+-_A=+—BLEE

2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
2.22 Employee benefits (continued)

(b)

Share-based compensation (continued)
Non-market performance and service conditions
are included in assumptions about the number
of options that are expected to vest. The total
expense is recognized over the vesting period,
which is the period over which all of the specified
vesting conditions are to be satisfied.

In addition, in some circumstances employees may
provide services in advance of the grant date and
therefore the grant date fair value is estimated for
the purposes of recognizing the expense during the
period between service commencement period and
grant date.

At the end of each reporting period, the Group
revises its estimates of the number of options that
are expected to vest based on the non-marketing
performance and service conditions. It recognizes
the impact of the revision to original estimates,
if any, in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income, with a
corresponding adjustment to equity.

When the options are exercised, the Company
issues new shares. The proceeds received net
of any directly attributable transaction costs are
credited to share capital (hominal value) and share
premium.

The grant by the Company of options over its
equity instruments to the employees of subsidiary
undertakings in the Group is treated as a capital
contribution. The fair value of employee services
received, measured by reference to the grant
date fair value, is recognized over the vesting
period as an increase to investment in subsidiary
undertakings, with a corresponding credit to equity
in the parent entity accounts.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ZEWERRME

For the year ended 31 December 2013
HE-_Z—=6+-_A=+—BLEE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
2.22 Employee benefits (continued)

(c) Termination benefits

Termination benefits are payable when employment
is terminated by the Group before the normal
retirement date, or whenever an employee accepts
voluntary redundancy in exchange for these
benefits. The Group recognizes termination benefits
at the earlier of the following dates: (a) when the
group can no longer withdraw the offer of those
benefits; and (b) when the entity recognizes costs
for a restructuring that is within the scope of
HKAS 37 and involves the payment of termination
benefits. In the case of an offer made to encourage
voluntary redundancy, the termination benefits are
measured based on the number of employees
expected to accept the offer. Benefits falling due
more than 12 months after the end of the reporting
period are discounted to their present value.

2.23 Provisions

Provisions are recognized when the Group has a present
legal or constructive obligation as a result of past
events; it is probable that an outflow of resources will
be required to settle the obligation; and the amount has
been reliably estimated. Provisions are not recognized for
future operating losses.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the
likelihood that an outflow will be required in settlement is
determined by considering the class of obligations as a
whole. A provision is recognized even if the likelihood of
an outflow with respect to any one item included in the
same class of obligations may be small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of the
expenditures expected to be required to settle the
obligation using a pre-tax rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the obligation. The increase in the provision
due to passage of time is recognized as interest expense.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ZEMERRME

For the year ended 31 December 2013
HE-_Z—=6+-_A=+—BLEE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)
2.24 Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable, and represents amounts receivable
for goods supplied, stated net of discounts returns and
value added taxes. The Group recognizes revenue when
the amount of revenue can be reliably measured; when it
is probable that future economic benefits will flow to the
entity; and when specific criteria have been met for each
of the Group’s activities, as described below:

@)

Commission income from securities and futures
brokerage is recognized on a trade date basis.

Commission income from precious metal brokerage
is recognized on a trade date basis.

Fees and service income are recognized when the
relevant transactions have been arranged or the
relevant services have been rendered.

Realized gains or losses on spot trading on
precious metal contracts are recorded on a trade
date basis whilst unrealized fair value gains or
losses are recognized by translating the contract
amounts at the prices ruling at the end of each
reporting period.

Realized fair value gains or losses on securities
trading are recorded on a trade date basis whilst
unrealized fair value gains or losses are recorded
on change in fair value on the reporting period.

Interest income is recognized using the effective
interest method. When a loan and receivable is
impaired, the Group reduces the carrying amount
to its recoverable amount, being the estimated
future cash flow discounted at the original effective
interest rate of the instrument, and continues
unwinding the discount as interest income. Interest
income on impaired loans and receivables is
recognized using the original effective interest rate.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
GREUMBHRME

For the year ended 31 December 2013
HE-_Z—=6+-_A=+—BLEE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2, FEESHHBRBERE)
POLICIES (continued)
2.24 Revenue recognition (continued) 2.24 WiRtERR (&)

(@ Rental income from investment property is @ XgEBEWEZASKA
recognized in the consolidated statement of profit REEBEBHANAEZZE
or loss and other comprehensive income on a e Ba kEM2EEK
straight-line basis over the term of the lease. ABEMER o

2.25 Leases 2.25 F 4

Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and FLYEB R 2 @ Ko B R K& [B1 3R

rewards of ownership are retained by the lessor are REBEARBZHLY 95 A&

classified as operating leases. Payments made under Y - BEBELEHEOZN A

operating leases (net of any incentives received from (EHRE L E AR ZEM

the lessor) are charged to the consolidated statement BER) REAERZNHEEHRRA
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income on a e BEaRkEMEERKARE

straight-line basis over the period of the lease. X8 o

2.26 Related parties 2.26 FRAEANTL
A party is considered to be related to the Group if: IUTATHERBERNEEBEE
i -

(@ the party is a person or a close member of that @ ZALTABFTEUATEHD
person’s family and that person AT SEZEA TR
() has control or joint control over the Group; 0] 2 1) ok 3 [R) 438 i) A &

;
(i) has significant influence over the Group; or iy HEAEBEBEKNF
235
(i) is a member of the key management iy BASEEBEFIAE
personnel of the Group or of a parent of the FRRIMFEZEEREA
Group; g
or B4

(o) the party is an entity where any of the following ) ZATAERBETIEM
conditions applies: M@ A
()  the entity and the Group are members of the () ZEBAXEBEEBEFR

same group; —SBHKERR:
(i)  one entity is an associate or joint venture of iy ZEEBARSEE®
the other entity (or of a parent, subsidiary or BiE RR A B
fellow subsidiary of the other entity); (N ZEEAERE—F
BENEAT - WEBA

GEAEE A,
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ZEMERRME

For the year ended 31 December 2013
HE-_Z—=6+-_A=+—BLEE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
2.26 Related parties (continued)
(b) (continued)
(i) the entity and the Group are joint ventures of
the same third party;

(iv)  one entity is a joint venture of a third entity
and the other entity is an associate of the
third entity;

(v)  the entity is a post-employment benefit plan
for the benefit of employees of either the
Group or an entity related to the Group;

(viy  the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by
a person identified in (a); and

(viij a person identified in (g)() has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of
the key management personnel of the entity (or
of a parent of the entity).

Close members of the family of a person are those family
members who may be expected to influence, or be
influenced by, that person in their dealings with the entity.

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
3.1 Financial risk factors
The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial
risks: market risk (including currency risk, fair value
interest rate risk, cash flow interest rate risk and price
risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The Group’s overall risk
management program focuses on the unpredictability of
financial markets and seeks to minimize potential adverse
effects on the Group’s financial performance.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
GREUMBHRME

For the year ended 31 December 2013
HE-_Z—=6+-_A=+—BLEE

3.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
Financial risk factors (continued)
Market risk

3.1

(@

()

(i)

Foreign exchange risk

Transactional currency exposures arise from
the sales or purchases by operating units
in currency other than the unit’s functional
currency. The Group’s exposure to foreign
currency risk is minimal as almost all of the
Group’s revenue and costs are denominated
in the functional currencies of the operating
units. The Group manages the foreign
exchange exposure arising from its normal
course of business activities and investments
in foreign operations by funding its local
operations and investments through cash
flow generated from business transactions
locally. The Group currently does not have
a foreign currency hedging policy. However,
the management monitors foreign exchange
exposure closely and will consider hedging
significant foreign currency exposure should
the need arise.

Price risk

The Group was not exposed to significant
price risk during the years ended 31
December 2013 and 2012.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
GREUMBHRME

For the year ended 31 December 2013
HE-_Z—=6+-_A=+—BLEE

3.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
Financial risk factors (continued)
Market risk (continued)

3.1

(@

(i)

Cash flow and fair value interest rate risk

During the years ended 31 December 2012
and 2013, the Group is exposed to cash
flow interest rate risk due to the fluctuation
of the prevailing market interest rate on
bank deposits and borrowings which carry
prevailing market interest rates. Borrowings
issued at variable rates expose the Group
to cash flow interest rate risk. The directors
considered that the Group’s income and
operating cash flows are substantially
independent of changes in market interest
rates.

As at 31 December 2012 and 2013, the
Group’s cash flow interest rate risk relates
primarily to its variable rate bank deposits and
borrowings. The Group currently does not use
any derivative contracts to hedge its exposure
to interest rate risk. However, management
will consider hedging significant interest rate
exposure should the need arise.

As at 31 December 2012 and 2013, if interest
rates on the bank deposits and borrowings
had been decreased by 50 basis points
with all other variables held constant, the
Group’s pre-tax loss for the years ended 31
December 2012 and 2013 would decrease by
approximately HK$155,000 and HK$61,000
respectively.

BEEMEHKREERRLF

3.

MBREGERE)
31 MBEKREEE)
(a) HHEREE)
(i) B2 RERLFEF
X7 7
BHE_Z——FKk=

E—=F+=-A=+
—HIEFE BARIE
RITMH A EEFFEH
BITHEREEEZR
TMHBFERE - &K
SERHEBEREFN
KR - BFEF X
BEH o EREREE
‘¥R R EFER
B EERANEH
WA B IR SR
EXBBLATIEF
REH) o

RZE—ZFK=F
—=#F+-A=+—
B XAEEZHRESR
EfERKBFTEHEE
RITERREBEZF
BN EBHE AEH
BRI M\ A AT
EEKEREmE 2
FIERB - A 0
FE EHEBZE
B8 E XF XA

LA
(T}
2

i

o

RZE——FR=F—
=F+-A=+—8"
TEFTE H i 4
TEZBRAT Wi
OEFEEENET
PRSOME A 25 - A& E
HEZZ——FR=-F
—=fF+-A=+—H
IFFEZBRBAER
g 2 BT B& 49155,000
7 7T }61,0007% T °

TE-ZFER

91



92

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
GREUMBHRME

For the year ended 31 December 2013
HE-_Z—=6+-_A=+—BLEE

3.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
Financial risk factors (continued)

3.1

(b)

(c)

Credit risk

The Group reviews the recoverability of its financial
assets periodically to ensure that potential credit
risk of the counterparty is managed at an early
stage and sufficient provision is made for possible
defaults. In addition, receivable balances are
monitored on an ongoing basis and the Group’s
exposure to bad debts is not significant.

The credit risk of the Group’s other financial
assets, which comprise cash and cash equivalents
and trade receivables, arises from default of the
counterparty, with a maximum exposure equal to
the carrying amounts of these instruments.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group
has certain concentrations of credit risk as
approximately 35% (2012: 49%) and 87% (2012:
94%) of the Group’s trade receivables were due
from the Group’s largest trade debtor and the
five largest trade debtors respectively. Further
quantitative data in respect of the Group’s exposure
to credit risk arising from trade receivables are
disclosed in Note 24 to the consolidated financial
statements.

Liquidity risk

Ultimate responsibility for liquidity risk management
rests with the board of directors. The Group
manages liquidity risk by maintaining adequate
reserves and reserve borrowing facilities, by
continuously monitoring forecast and actual cash
flows and matching the maturity profiles of financial
assets and liabilities.

At 31 December 2013, the Group had a bank
borrowing with carrying amount of approximately
HK$14,206,000 (2012: HK$33,066,000) (Note 29).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
GREUMBHRME

For the year ended 31 December 2013
HE-_Z—=6+-_A=+—HILt=EE

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continueqd) 3. HMBRAREEE
3.1 Financial risk factors (continued) 31 BMBEMKBRERE)
(c) Liquidity risk (continued) (c) HEELELE)
The maturity profile of the Group’s financial liabilities AEBEBRAEERRSEH
as at the reporting period, based on the contractual BRERBESORITREMAR
undiscounted payments, was as follows: ZEEIRWNTE
On demand Total
or within Between Between Over undiscounted Total carrying
1year 1and2years 2and5 years 5 years cash flow amount
RERY RFHR
D1E 1228 2E5% 5ENE ReRESH GREE
HKS$ HK$ HK$ HKS$ HK$ HK$
BT BT BT BT BT BT
2013 —B-=%
Trade payables ENESHE 8,681,727 - - - 8,681,727 8,681,727
Other payables Hfth R
and accruals REFT B 7,421,149 - - - 7,421,149 7,421,149
Amount JE A — B & AR
due to an associate TR 298 - - - 298 298
Borrowings (Note) R (M) 15,784,917 - - - 15,784,917 14,206,092
2012 —B--F
Trade payables ENESHHE 8,137,097 - - - 8,137,097 8,137,097
Other payables Hfth B3R
and accruals R g R 2,978,423 - - - 2,978,423 2,978,423
Amount JE A — B & AR
due to an associate HR 290 - - - 290 290
Borrowings (Note) ERAGED) 37,389,948 - - - 37,380,948 33,066,172
Note: Bank loans with a repayment on demand clause are Wi BEk gng BIESH VR
included in the “on demand or within 1 year” time band TEESEFRBEA ST
in the above maturity analysis. At 31 December 2013, the HAMMRE qtjz DIME] 2
aggregate undiscounted principal amounts of the bank BRNHEER R-T—=
loans amounted to HK$15,784,917 (2012: HK$37,389,948). #+—-A=+—8 877
Taking into account the Group’s financial position, the BHAFBEALES /\;ej
directors do not believe that it is probable that the 15,784,917 mw(Z & — =
banks will exercise their discretionary rights to demand 4 : 37,389,048 7T) i &
immediate repayment. The directors believe that such KREBZBHE R NE &
bank loans will be repaid over a period of 9 (2012: 10) ERERITARAKAEITIE
years in accordance with the scheduled repayment dates EBERAIE R EERE -
set out in the loan agreements. EFERE RERTEE

HREBEERGEMEZET
BREH RoFE(ZT—=
F0F) BB AEE -

EENEEEERERATY —T-=F5R 93
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ZEWERRME

For the year ended 31 December 2013
HE-_Z—=6+-_A=+—BLEE

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
3.2 Capital risk management

Certain of the Group’s subsidiaries are regulated by the
Securities and Futures Commission of Hong Kong (the
“SFC”) and are required to comply with certain minimum
capital requirements according to the rules of the SFC. In
addition, the Group’s objectives when managing capital
are to safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern in order to provide returns for shareholders
and benefits for other stakeholders and to maintain an
optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the
Group may adjust the amount of dividends paid to
shareholders, return capital to shareholders or issue new
shares.

The Group monitors capital on the basis of the debt-
to-adjusted capital ratio. This ratio is calculated as net
debt divided by adjusted capital. Net debt is calculated
as total debt (including current and non-current liabilities
but excluding current or deferred income tax liabilities
as shown in the consolidated statement of financial
position) less cash and cash equivalents. Adjusted capital
comprises all components of equity (including share
capital and premium, reserves, accumulated losses and
non-controlling interests as shown in the consolidated
statement of financial position).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ZEMERRME

For the year ended 31 December 2013
HE-_Z—=6+-_A=+—BLEE

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3.
3.2 Capital risk management (continued)
During 2013, the Group’s strategy, which was unchanged
from 2012, was to maintain the debt-to-adjusted capital
ratio within 50%. The debt-to-adjusted capital ratios as at
31 December 2013 and 2012 were as follows:

MBEEEREZ)

3.2 BEfEBEERE)
REBE S -FHEFT_T—
ZERNKRE BEABEHRELCHARE
FEAEL R M5 7E50% K « R —=
N —E——HF+-_A=t—HzZE®BY

CHBRALEDMT

2013 2012

—g—-=F —E——4F

HK$ HK$

T BT

Total debt RIET 30,309,266 44,181,982

Less: Bank balances and cash, o IRITAE SR NIRE

including bank trust accounts BIERITEERP

(Note 26) (K 7x26) (83,131,819) (20,352,602)

Net debt B FE (52,822,553) 23,829,380

Total equity S BE 118,757,815 98,142,045

Adjusted capital SRR 118,757,815 08,142,045

Debt-to-adjusted capital ratio BRI A L K N/AF & F 24%

The decrease in the debt-to-adjusted capital ratio during
2013 resulted primarily from increase in bank balances
and cash during the year ended 31 December 2013.

BEEMEHKREERRLF
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For the year ended 31 December 2013
HE-_Z—=6+-_A=+—BLEE

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.3 Fair value estimation

The table below analyzes financial instruments carried at
fair value, by valuation method. The different levels have
been defined as follows:

° Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for
identical assets or liabilities (level 1).

° Inputs other than quoted prices included within
level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability,
either directly (that is, as prices) or indirectly (that
is, derived from prices) (level 2).

° Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based
on observable market data (that is, unobservable

inputs) (level 3).

As at 31 December 2013 and 2012,
transfers of fair value measurements between Level 1 and
Level 2 and no transfers into or out of Level 3.

As at 31 December 2013 and 2012, the Group did not
have any assets and liabilities that were measured at the
fair value measurement hierarchy.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
HEMBHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2013
HE-_Z—=6+-_A=+—BLEE

3.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3. MBEREEEE)
3.4 Financial instruments by category 34 ERMIADE
The Group The Company
xE AAT
2013 2012 2013 2012
—g—-=F -z —g-z=F -z
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
BT 7T &I om
Financial assets as per &R THBE 7
statements of financial £ F & E
position
Loans and receivables &3 & fEU 18
Statutory deposits and AT & M B
other assets BE 6,907,850 2,030,000 - —
Trade receivables e E 55 6,488,374 4,148,882 - —
Deposits and other e & E A RE U
receivables A 10,916,016 16,109,021 1,177,340 71,600
Amounts due from JE W BT B A &)
subsidiaries IR - — 79,206,519 68,462,951
Bank balances and cash R1745 8% MIR& 83,131,819 20,352,602 39,421,954 364,241
107,444,059 42,640,505 119,805,813 68,898,792
HENRPAEEEBERAR T ="FF#H
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3.

98

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.4 Financial instruments by category (continued)

MEBERERE)
34 &MIASEE)

The Group The Company
AEE AAT
2013 2012 2013 2012
—F-=F —T—= —E-=F —ZT—=
HK$ HKS$ HK$ HK$
#ET BT #ET BT
Financial liabilities as per ME#k Rz 2 &
statements of financial R B &
position
Financial liabilities at R #H B A E
amortized costs ZERMERE
Trade payables JE 2 5 508 8,681,727 8,137,097 - —
Other payables and Hab A RIER
accruals FEET BB 7,421,149 2,978,423 2,084,136 777,500
Amounts due to JFE AT BfY /B A &)
subsidiaries A - — 14,503,942 1,285,991
Amount due to an FEAT —E B & A A
associate IR 298 290 - —
Borrowings BN 14,206,092 33,066,172 - —
30,309,266 44,181,982 16,588,078 2,063,491
CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND EXEHEFTRHE

JUDGMENTS

Estimates and judgments are continually evaluated and are
based on historical experience and other factors, including
expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable
under the circumstances.

Critical accounting estimates and assumptions

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the
future. The resulting accounting estimates will, by definition,
seldom equal the related actual results. The estimates and
assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
within the next financial year are addressed below.

First China Financial Network Holdings Limited Annual Report 2013

AEERERBELREEMARE
HAEt R AE - BRERRETERTHE
EBAEZARERME -

EXEst st RES
AEEBLRRELBRER - B
EEHAERLBESBBERERE
RN BT EAVBRFEZEER
BEREMEERNEAHABZEANAR
et RBREZTH/MT -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
GREUMBHRME

For the year ended 31 December 2013
HE-_Z—=6+-_A=+—BLEE

4,

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGMENTS (continued)
Critical accounting estimates and assumptions (continued)

@)

(®)

©

@

Estimated impairment of goodwill

The Group tests annually whether goodwill has suffered
any impairment, in accordance with the accounting policy
stated in Note 2.8. The recoverable amounts of cash-
generating units (“CGU”) have been determined based on
value-in-use calculations. These calculations require the
use of estimates.

Estimated impairment of intangible assets other than
gooawill

The Group periodically reviews internal or external
resources to identify indications that the intangible
assets other than goodwill have suffered any impairment
in accordance with accounting policy stated in Note
2.9. If the recoverable amount of an intangible asset
is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the
carrying amount of the intangible asset is reduced to its
receivable amount. The assessment of the recoverable
amount requires the use of estimates and assumptions.

Estimated impairment of trade and other receivables

The Group’s management determines the impairment
of trade and other receivables on a regular basis. This
estimate is based on the credit history of its customers
and current market conditions. Management reassesses
the impairment of trade and other receivables at the end
of the reporting period.

Estimated useful lives and impairment of property, plant
and equipment

The Group has significant property, plant and equipment.
The Group is required to estimate the useful lives of
property, plant and equipment in order to ascertain the
amount of depreciation charges for each reporting period.
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4,

100

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGMENTS (continued)
Critical accounting estimates and assumptions (continued)

@

€

®

Estimated useful lives and impairment of property, plant
and equipment (continued)

The useful lives are estimated at the time of purchase
of these assets after considering business developments
and the Group’s strategies. The Group performs annual
reviews to assess the appropriateness of the estimated
useful lives. Such review takes into account any
unexpected adverse changes in circumstances or events,
including declines in projected operating results, negative
industry and economic trends. The Group extends
or shortens the useful lives and/or makes impairment
provisions according to the results of the review.

Estimated fair value of investment property

The investment property of the Group was stated at fair
value in accordance with the accounting policy stated
in Note 2.7. The fair value of the investment property
is determined by an independent qualified professional
valuer. The valuation was based on certain assumptions,
which is subject to uncertainty and might materially differ
from the actual results.

In making the judgment, consideration has been given
to assumptions that are mainly based on market
conditions existing at the end of the reporting period
and appropriate capitalization rates. These estimates are
regularly compared to actual market data and actual
transactions entered into by the Group.

Income taxes

The Group is subject to income taxes in certain
jurisdictions other than Hong Kong. Significant judgment
is required in determining the provision for income taxes.
There are many transactions and calculations for which
the ultimate tax determination is uncertain during the
ordinary course of business. The Group recognizes
liabilities for anticipated tax issues based on estimates of
whether additional taxes will be due. Where the final tax
outcome of these matters is different from the amounts
that were initially recorded, such differences will impact
the income tax and deferred tax provisions in the period
in which such determination are made.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ZEMERRME

For the year ended 31 December 2013
HE-_Z—=6+-_A=+—BLEE

5. REVENUE Bx#
An analysis of the Group’s revenue for the year from continuing AEERFEREFBEKEEHNE
operations is as follows: XEONMWMT:
2013 2012
—g-=f —E—_F
HK$ HK$
BT T
(Restated)
(FeE5))
Continuing operations FHIEREER
Income from provision of RHXRS
a trading platform FalA 105,803 156,714
Commission income from BERBPE
securities and futures brokerage Lo mel A 1,587,840 3,481,371
Commission income from precious &% B
metals brokerage L fe A 2,799,223 —
Spot trading profit on precious EeBHREANRS
metals contracts, net I FEE 9,874,117 -
Interest income from clients KEEPZFBERA 370,985 537,944
Net fair value gains on BERGZ
securities trading NEERZEFE - 19,272
Income from provision of wealth MU EEE
management services AR 7 2 WA 71,892 124,796
Income from provision of stock REREEN
information and research services Rt 7R 2 A - 4,865,893
14,809,860 9,185,990

BEEMEHKREERRLF
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6.

102

SEGMENT INFORMATION

The chief operating decision-maker has been identified as the
executive directors (the “Executive Directors”) of the Company.
The Executive Directors review the Group’s internal reporting in
order to assess performance and allocate resources. Operating
segments were determined based on these reports.

The Executive Directors consider the Group has seven
reportable segments: (1) provision of a trading platform; (2)
provision of brokerage and securities margin financing services;
(8) precious metals spot trading and brokerage; (4) provision of
corporate finance services; (5) trading and principal investments;
(6) provision of wealth management services; and (7) provision
of stock information and research services.

During the year ended 31 December 2013, the Group
discontinued its property investments business after entering
into a sale and purchase agreement on disposal of its
investment property to an independent third party. The segment
information reported below does not include any amounts for
this discontinued operation, which are described in more detail
in Note 15. Accordingly, comparative figures of the Group’s
segment results have been restated to present the discontinued
operation separately.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ZEMERRME

For the year ended 31 December 2013
HE-_Z—=6+-_A=+—HILt=EE

6.

SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

The segment information of the reportable segments from

6. SEEHE

HE-_Z—=F+-_A=+—HILtEE

continuing operations for the year ended 31 December 2013 is REFBLEEB 2 BREDE S
as follows: HERDT:
Continuing operations
REGEEY
Brokerage
and securities Precious Stock
Provision of margin metals spot Corporate Trading and Wealth information
a trading financing trading and finance principal management and research
platform services brokerage services investments services services Total
BEREHR BeMB& HER REER
RU#XHFEE ELMERE RERELE LEMERE BERE WEEERE RURRE @it
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
ET ET & ET ET & ET ET
Segment revenue from external SN R EF
customers FEBRA 105,803 1,958,825 12,673,340 - - 71,892 - 14,809,860
Segment results PEEE 7,943 (3,622,594) 116,840 (10,350) (753,323) 49,392 (12,966,427) (17,178,519)
Net unallocated expenses AOBRAXZEE (24,856,101)
Finance costs BERA (457,438)
Interest income FERA 24,530
Share of losses of associates  fE{5 & A 7B 1B -
Loss before income tax BREEHAEE (42,467,528)
Income tax expense FERAX (844,111)
Loss for the year from FRREHE
continuing operations WEEKzBE (43,311,639)
BENKRAKREEAERLAR —T—=FF%
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HE-_Z—=6+-_A=+—RHILt=EE

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continueq) 6. HHEEHGE)
The segment information of the reportable segments from B E——F+-_A=+—HILFE
continuing operations for the year ended 31 December 2012 is REBEBERKEXEB 2ARESE 2D
as follows: HERDT:
Continuing operations
FERREL
Brokerage Stock
and securities Corporate Trading and Wealth information
Provision of a  margin financing finance principal management and research
trading platform services services investments services services Total
BRREFR i3 BER 0E BRER
REXHFR EEWARSB BERS BERE ER RS L% RS fahs
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT BT BT BT BT BT
Segment revenue from IREP
external customers L ON 156,714 4,019,315 - 19,272 124,796 4,865,893 9,185,990
Segment results GEES | 1,715 (4,325,105) (10,350) (533,510) (2,687) (19,451,483) (24,311,420)
Net unallocated expenses AORHAZFE (19,592,479)
Finance costs BERK (508,885)
Interest income FEBA 54,432
Share of losses of associates EEBEAREE (328,356) (328,356)
Loss before income tax BRETEHATER (44,686,708)
Income tax credit REHESR 181,522
Loss for the year from FERREHE
continuing operations BEEK 2B (44,505,186)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
HEMBHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2013

HE

6.

—E-=f+-A=t—RLFEE

SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

Other segment information from continuing operations for the HEZZ

year ended 31 December 2013 is as follows:

6. SEEHE

o
T

Continuing operations

+ 4 g Mk
HELE

—=F+ZRA=+—HILFE
Xz Eftn BERD

RREGEEE
Brokerage Stock
and securities Precious information
Provision of margin metals spot Corporate  Trading and Wealth and
a trading financing  trading and finance principal  management research
platform services brokerage services  investments services services Unallocated Total
Rt CLRESR BH2ERE oE S BE HE REEAR
X5H¥e HEMEARE XHIREE  HERE BE#RE EERE HRRE RPE @zt
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
ET ET ET & ET ET ET ET ET
Additions to property, plant and
equipment - 5,450 3,201,739 - - - 9,421 846,467 4,063,077
Depreciation and amortization NERBH - 49,065 392,272 - 58,684 - 1,898,458 4,645,246 7,043,725
Impairment of goodwill BERE - - - - - - - 3,700,843 3,700,843
Impairment of trade receivables  [EYTE 5 7B H - 36,000 - - - - - 83,484 119,484
Write-down of inventories FEMR - - - - - - 5,036,720 — 5,036,720
Other segment information from continuing operations for the HE - ET——F+-_A=+—HIFEE
year ended 31 December 2012 is as follows: KEFBERLER o EER W
T

BEEMEHKREERRLF
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HE-_Z—=6+-_A=+—RHILt=EE

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continueq) 6. HE&EHE
Continuing operations
REREEB
Brokerage
and securities Stock
Provision margin Corporate Trading and Wealth information
of a trading financing finance principal  management  and research
platform services services investments services services Unallocated Total
BRERES
R RES i3 BEWR #E KRREEAR
X5TA REARS BARS BERE EERB HERS APE st
HK$ HKS HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT BT BT BT BT BT BT
Additions to property, plant and mE BERXERE
equipment - 87,196 - - - 30,089 178,121 295,406
Additions to intangible assets BYEERE - 500,000 - - - - 9,189,162 9,689,162
Depreciation and amortization WEREH - 63,417 - 28,195 - 1,992,765 5,190,726 7,275,103
Impairment of goodwill AERE - - - - - - 581,950 581,950
Impairment of intangible assets EREENE - 499,999 - - - - - 499,999
Impairment of trade receivables e B 5 B R E - - - - 51,884 - - 51,884
Impairment of other receivables Hih MR IERE - - - - - - 874,185 874,185
Write-down of inventories FEMA - - - - - 4,903,800 - 4,908,800
Note: Additions to non-current assets exclude those relating to discontinued fie: SEMBEERETERZFEHERIERL
operation and exclude financial instruments. BEBEBENEERTBESRIA -
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HE-_Z—=6+-_A=+—BLEE

6.

SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

The segment assets and liabilities as at 31 December 2013

and 2012 for the years then ended are as follows:

6. SE&EHGE
BE-_ZT-=Ffhk-_FT——F+-A=
T—RAEFENOIREERABNT:

Segment assets 2013 2012
SEEE —¥-=FK —E—_F
HK$ HK$
B T
(Restated)
(FeE5))
Continuing operations FHIEREER
Provision of a trading platform REXS5FEE 101,743 94,974
Brokerage and securities margin LRELRBHRBTBHERE
financing services 28,719,243 22,283,436
Precious metals spot trading and EeBEERSREL
brokerage 16,734,165 —
Corporate finance services TCEBERS 302,383 207,733
Trading and principal investments EBENEERE 1,480,450 1,533,728
Wealth management services FEEERS 550,120 500,712
Stock information and research % = & & KRB 5T IR 7%
services 30,081,103 25,470,941
77,969,207 50,091,524
Assets relating to property VMEREXFEBEE
investments business A&
(now discontinued) - 46,854,332
Unallocated FOE 76,153,148 49,575,983
Consolidated assets REEBE 154,122,355 146,521,839

BEEMEHKREERRLF
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HE-_Z—=6+-_A=+—BLEE

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) SEEH(E)
Segment liabilities 2013 2012
SHEHARE —E—=%F —T——4F
HK$ HK$
BT T
Restated
(geE:5)
Continuing operations BEGCEER
Provision of a trading platform REZXSHFES - 1,173
Brokerage and securities margin BEREBEBSRITHERSE
financing services 8,101,610 7,610,832
Precious metals spot trading and EeBHERSD
brokerage TS 3,854,296 —
Corporate finance services TERME RS 10,000 5,000
Trading and principal investments EBENBERE 20,215 52,664
Wealth management services HEERRG 25,579 25,578
Stock information and research % 52 & &0 R A 7 AR 7
services 267,739 137,809
12,279,439 7,833,056
Liabilities relating to property MEREEFHBEEE
investments business (GRE &)
(now discontinued) — 17,497,000
Unallocated ROE 23,085,101 23,049,738
Consolidated liabilities maffE 35,364,540 48,379,794

Segment assets consist primarily of property,
equipment, intangible assets,

plant and
statutory deposits and other
assets, investment in an associate, trade receivables,

prepayments, deposits and other receivables, and bank

A RRIA

DHREETEBRME  MELRE -
BVEE ZERENREMEE R
—HABERARZRE BRESHA
e N H R W R IR A R

balances and cash. Segment liabilites comprise primarily of
trade payables, other payables and accruals and amount due
to an associate.
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HE-_Z—=6+-_A=+—BLEE

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)
The Group mainly operates in Hong Kong and the PRC.

DEEHE)
ARBEEREBRTELE -

2013 2012
—F—-=f —T—_fF
HK$ HK$
#IT BT
(Restated)
(&)

Revenue from continuing REBEEELER

operations ZEERE

Hong Kong &5 2,136,520 4,300,825
The PRC Fh 12,673,340 4,885,165
14,809,860 9,185,990

Revenue from continuing operations from external customers
are allocated based on the country in which the customer is

KENIBEPHITBEREEREER
MEPHEBRZKED -

located.

2013 2012
—E—-=F —E——F
HK$ HK$
#IT BT
(Restated)
(=E5))

Total assets BEHEE
Hong Kong &5 110,503,960 64,824,898
The PRC Fh 43,602,475 34,827,139
154,106,435 99,652,037
Investment in an associate R—REBERFZ2EE 15,920 15,470
154,122,355 99,667,507

Total assets from continuing operations are allocated based on
where the assets are located.

Note: Total assets exclude those relating to discontinued operation.

KEFBEREXBHNEEREREE
PREEE D e

M AERETEFEESKRELEEBHRB

e
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6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 6. SEEAHGE)
2013 2012
—g-=f =
HK$ HK$
T T
Capital expenditure BXMX
Hong Kong BB 851,917 594,726
The PRC s 3,211,160 9,389,842
4,063,077 9,984,568
Capital expenditure from continuing operations is allocated on RAEEREEBNEARABELIZEE
where the assets are located. FTfE 2] 5
Information about major customers FEXRZ2EE
As as 31 December 2013 and 2012, none of the customers N E—=FEF - ZFET——F+_F=+
accounted for 10% or more of total revenue from continuing —B - UEREEESEERBBEIK A
operations. 10%sk A E 2 &P -
7. OTHER INCOME 7. H{th dg A
2013 2012
—g-=f ==
HK$ HK$
& T
Continuing operations BEGEER
CCASS fee income FREFEFEABA 77,232 232,367
Handling fee income FEBWA 54,607 76,552
Interest income on bank deposits RITIF A B U A 23,859 53,890
Other interest income H b A B A 671 542
Sundry income HMIEUW A 314,310 780,745
470,679 1,144,096
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8.

FINANCE COSTS ME A
2013 2012
—g-=F —ZT——F
HK$ HK$
BT BT
(Restated)
(F&E5)
Continuing operations BEGCEER
Interest expenses on bank B BARREHIME
borrowings not wholly repayable HERERET—FNR
within one year from the end of HHEERERBEEEX
the reporting period but contain a  E& 2 & FHK 2 RITHER
repayment on demand clause 457,438 508,885
LOSS BEFORE INCOME TAX B B 48 B 5 5 18
2013 2012
—F-=% —E—C—F
HK$ HK$
BT 7T
(Restated)
(FeE5))
Loss before income tax from RARBEKEXEBZ
continuing operations has been bR ET1S R AT ES 1B
arrived at after charging: ENBRT &I
Auditors’ remuneration Z BRI & 450,000 450,000
Foreign exchange difference, net 5 =8 FE 118,680 500,643
Loss on acquisition of additional Ui — R E AR 2
interest in a subsidiary (included HINER 2 BB
in other operating expenses) (BETAEMEEAE)
— Loss on remeasurement of — EFFELERIBEZ
previously held equity interest g ol SE = - 58,346
Loss on disposal of subsidiaries HEWBAR 2 EE
(Note 35 (a)) (included in other (Bt #£35())
operating expenses) (BETAEMEEME) - 4,354,581
Loss on disposal of property, plant &% - #e2
and equipment (included in other M BB
operating expenses) (BETAEMEERAET) 12,061 20,353
Operating lease rentals in respect of A& %
rented premises ZREEMHES 2,593,284 3,472,336

BEEMEHKREERRLF

TE-ZFER
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
HEMBHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2013
HE-_Z—=6+-_A=+—BLEE

10. EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSES 10. EEEBFIRAX
2013 2012
—g—-=F —ET—=
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Continuing operations: FEGEER:
Wages and salaries TENF & 15,222,187 13,270,073
Pension costs — defined RIS KR
contribution schemes — THHRETE 210,939 221,311
Employee benefits expenses, BEBEAMFAX
including directors’ remuneration BEEEME 15,433,126 13,491,384
11. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S 1. ESERFTETBHASMN:
EMOLUMENTS
Year ended 31 December 2013 BE-S—=%+-A=+—HILLEE
Salaries,
allowances, Employer’s

and benefits contributions
in kind to pension

Name of director Note Fees (Note (ii)) scheme Total
e BER
BEYHE  BHhestE
EEnE i3 wE (B = (i) ZREEHER @zt
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
B I B I
Executive directors BITES
Mr. Wang Wenming (Chairman) ~ EX &4 (X E) - 1,200,000 15,000 1,215,000
Mr. Lee Yiu Sun (Chief Executive) Z= 12 #75C 4
(TER 4 E) - 1,200,000 15,000 1,215,000
Mr. Wang Jiawei ITEEEE (i - 240,000 12,000 252,000
Ms. Song Binyang KI5 2+ () 80,000 - - 80,000
Non-executive director FRITESE
Mr. Liu Runtong 2RMEAE - - - -

Independent non-executive  HITIEHIT

directors BEE
Professor Zhang Benzheng RANIEHIE 130,000 - - 130,000
Mr. Tony | Tong BEEE 125,000 - - 125,000
Mr. Li Jianxing TETRE 120,000 - - 120,000
Mr. Chen Shu Wen BR 18 358 A 120,000 - - 120,000

575,000 2,640,000 42,000 3,257,000

1 1 2 First China Financial Network Holdings Limited Annual Report 2013



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
GREUMBHRME

For the year ended 31 December 2013

HE

1.

—E-=f+-A=t—RLFEE

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S 1.

EMOLUMENTS (continued)
Year ended 31 December 2012

EERTETHRAENE (E)

BE—_F——+-A=+—BHILEE

Name of director Salaries,
allowances, Employer’s
and benefits contributions
in kind to pension
Note Fees (Note (ii)) scheme Total
R e 2R
EWM = RIKESEE
Bt & ke GE) ZIEEHR @t
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
BT 78T BT 78T
Executive directors BITES
Mr. Wang Wenming (Chairman) ~ EX &4 (EE) - 1,200,000 13,750 1,213,750
Mr. Lee Yiu Sun (Chief Executive) Z= 1 # 55 &
(T8 E) - 1,200,000 18,750 1,213,750
Non-executive director ERITEE
Mr. Liu Runtong 2IBmEE — - - -
Independent non-executive  BIFEHITEE
directors
Professor Zhang Benzheng RAIEZH IR 130,000 — — 130,000
Mr. Tony | Tong EExE 125,000 — — 125,000
Mr. Li Jianxing TRITRE 120,000 — — 120,000
Mr. Chen Shu Wen BR 151 3 5% A 120,000 — — 120,000
495,000 2,400,000 27,500 2,922,500
Notes: B &

(i) Appointed on 3 May 2013.

(i) Benefits in kind include share options. No share options were granted to
the directors of the Company under the Company’s share option scheme
during the year ended 31 December 2013 (2012: Nil).

During the year, no emoluments were paid by the Group to the
directors as an inducement to join or upon joining the Group
or as compensation for loss of office (2012: Nil). None of the
directors waived or agreed to waive any remuneration during
the year (2012: Nil).

(i) RZZE—=FRLA=REZE-

(ii) EVH=aitERkE 2T —=F+
ZAZ+-BULFE BEBRERER
AABEREFEMBETARAESR(CS
——FE) o

FAANEE L EE AT A
SEARSIMBRRMBREBRZ
BESEABRBEE(CT——F &)
FR - WESENEXREWEMLM
e (ZT—=F: &)

BEEMERKXEEERLE —T-—=FF%K
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
HEMBHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2013

HE

12.

114

R+ A=t—RLFE

FIVE HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS

The five individuals whose emoluments were the highest in the
Group for the year include two (2012: two) directors of whose
remuneration are set out in Note 11. The emoluments payable
to the remaining three (2012: three) individuals during the year
are as follows:

12.

AEREHAL
FAAKELRREHALTREMA(Z
E-_F MBEF REZHEH
REEN - FRABRENHT=2(=ZF—
—EIZRATZMENT

2013 2012
—E—-=5F —E—=
HK$ HK$
#&IT BT
Salaries, allowances and e o RBh
benefits in kind LEYF = 1,386,000 1,386,000
Pension costs — defined RIRE AR
contribution scheme — FREHENETE 45,000 41,250
1,431,000 1,427,250

Their emoluments fell within the following bands:

BEZBME N FIATEE

2013 2012

—E-=F —E——F

Number of Number of

individuals individuals

EE ANE BB AR

Nil to HK$1,000,000 £ %1,000,000/% 7T 3 3

During the year, no emoluments were paid by the Group to the
five highest paid individuals as an inducement to join or upon
joining the Group or as compensation for loss of office (2012:
Nil).

First China Financial Network Holdings Limited Annual Report 2013

FR - AEBYERARIARSFAL
SASHE ) BN € 1E & R S| o0 B2 sk 7 o B8
REER BESIEARBRHECS
—ZF i fE) e



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
HEMBHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2013

HE

13.

—E-=f+-A=t—RLFEE

INCOME TAX EXPENSE/(CREDIT)

13. FifeBilEX (&)

Hong Kong Profits Tax has been provided at the rate of 16.5% BEBENGUBRAEFEREBEENIR
(2012: 16.5%) on the estimated assessable profit arising in or B & B b 5T E R R B IR B %£16.5%
derived from Hong Kong for the year. No provision for Hong ZE-ZF:165%) i E - BAKE
Kong Profits Tax has been made in the financial statements as FAKE B BEIE - 0 &N B W
the Group incurred a tax loss for the year (2012: Nil). Taxation EHAEBNEBIELEE( T ——F:
on overseas profits has been calculated on the estimated ) BINNE 2 IR IR AN B E T
assessable profit for the year at the rates of taxation prevailing FERERBRACHE  BEEM

in the countries in which the Group operates.

&SRB B E

2013 2012
—E-=5 —F—=
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Continuing operations FHIEREER
Current income tax: BVER AT 15 75 -
Current tax on profits for the year — FJE ) 2 B1HAF: 18
— Hong Kong Profits Tax — BEMNEM - -
— PRC Enterprise Income Tax — PR EMEH 1,025,660 —
Total current tax BN EAR IH 488 1,025,660 —
Deferred income tax (Note 30): iR JE BT 15 % (M9 3E30) -
Current year NEE (181,549) (181,522)
Income tax expense/(credit) FTEfAs (%) 844,111 (181,522)

BEEMERKXEEERLE —T-—=FF%K
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
HEMBHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2013

HE

13.

14.

R+ A=t—RLFE

INCOME TAX EXPENSE/(CREDIT) (continued)

13.

The tax on the Group’s loss from continuing operations before
income tax differs from the theoretical amount that would arise
using the Hong Kong Profits Tax rate of 16.5% (2012: 16.5%)

i8R (&)

WMEANTE BB B E165% (ZF
—ZF165%) T E  AEEKBFE
MEER RIS RATEEREE S

as follows: BReBErR:
2013 2012
—E-=f —E——F
HK$ HK$
BT BT
(Restated)
(#e &)
Loss from continuing operations REFBEREEG 2
before income tax B FT 1S B AT S 18 (42,467,528) (44,686,708)
Tax calculated at Hong Kong Profits 1% & /& F| 5 8 £16.56% (=2 —=
Tax rate of 16.5% (2012: 16.5%) F:16.5%) T E 2B 1A (7,007,142) (7,373,307)
Tax effects of: NTIHEZMBTE:
— Different tax rates of subsidiaries — FAE R EME R &L Z KB A
operating in other jurisdictions A 2 AR & (1,765,528) (2,290,659)
— Income not subject to tax — BARBEA (168) (543)
— Expenses not deductible for tax — FLFLTEB KRR 2 H X
purposes 849,751 3,365,344
— Others — HAh 8,585,649 5,936,121
— Utilization of deductible temporary — i@ 1E i 7 #& 52 7] 1 i
differences previously not ETREEC2BA
recognized 181,549 181,522
Income tax expense/(credit) FTiSRiAx (HEkR) 844,111 (181,522)
LOSS ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERS OF THE 14. RABHEHAELEE

COMPANY

The loss attributable to owners of the Company is dealt with
in the financial statements of the Company to the extent of

HK$14,922,679 (2012: HK$9,441,578).

First China Financial Network Holdings Limited Annual Report 2013
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
HEMBHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2013

HE

15.

—E-=f+-A=t—RLFEE

DISCONTINUED OPERATION

In March 2013, First China Property Limited, a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company, entered into a sale and purchase
agreement with an independent third party in relation to
disposal of the investment property at a cash consideration of
HK$56,000,000. The disposal was completed on 31 May 2013.

The profit for the year from discontinued property investments
business is set out below. The comparatives in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income
have been restated to re-present the property investments
business as a discontinued operation.

15.

ERILEEXTR

RZE—=F=F BEMHEBRAF
(KRalzz2EWBE AR H—FEL
FE=HEMNEEWHS
% 856,000,000/ T HHEREWE -
ZEEEEOIR - E—=FRA=+—

HIEMX °

FARBEREMEREXZHOMNE
FIMT - e BRE MEMBE2EKA
BRANLEBHRFECEIANEHRZH

BEBIAR

MEREXRHRORIEEEETR -

2013 2012
—g—-=F —E—=
HK$ HK$
BT om
Profit of property investments REFYHERE FEBHE
business for the year 9,333,152 5,097,537
HENRPAEEEBERAR T ="FF#H
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
HEMBHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2013
HE-_Z—=6+-_A=+—BLEE

15. DISCONTINUED OPERATION (continued)
The results of the property investments business for the year
ended 31 December 2013 and 2012, which have been included

in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other

ERIEEEEEE)

HE-_ZT—=FR-_T——-F+=-A=
+—HIEFE B AGEBERE
HEERAREOVNEREEFT ¥

15.

comprehensive income, were as follows:

U

2013 2012
—E-=f —E——F
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Profit for the year from FRERIL
discontinued operation: EEEBRENE:
Revenue = 624,000 1,164,373
Other gains H A = 8,898,530 4,400,000
Other income E g A 6,498 —
Finance costs A& AR (172,655) (455,677)
Other operating expenses Hib &g (23,221) (11,159)
Profit before income tax B BT 15 ¢ B I 9,333,152 5,097,537
Income tax expense FIEHAx - —
Profit for the year FRFE 9,333,152 5,097,537
Profit for the year from FRHERIL
discontinued operation HEEEREHNE
includes the following: BEFEUTRIE:
Rental income HaHBA (624,000) (1,164,373)
Less: direct operating expenses B REEEHESKRAN
from an investment property WEMELZEELERS
that generated rental income 174,671 457,777
(449,329) (706,596)
Gain arising on change in fair value & ¥ % A FEHE
of an investment property EEr R - (4,400,000)
Gain on disposal of an investment  HEREWMERE I
property (8,898,530) —

First China Financial Network Holdings Limited Annual Report 2013



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
HEMBHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2013

HE

15.

—E-=f+-A=t—RLFEE

DISCONTINUED OPERATION (continued)

15. ERIEEEFE(E)

2013 2012
—g-=f —E——F
HK$ HK$
B T
Cash flows from discontinued ERILEZERE
operation: FBRERH:
Net cash (used in)/generated from  #& & )E &)
operating activities (BR),/ EEzHReFE (38,591,598) 1,659,131
Net cash generated from "EES
investing activities EfXZREFE 55,398,530 —
Net cash used in b & & &
financing activities PRZBESRE (17,089,274) (1,466,517)
Net cash (outflow)/inflow BeOrd) WA FE (282,342) 192,614
EREMERAEEERAT —T-=FEH
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ZEWERRME

For the year ended 31 December 2013
HE-_Z—=6+-_A=+—BLEE

16. (LOSS)/EARNINGS PER SHARE 16. B (EBE) 2F

From continuing and discontinued operations

The calculation of the basic and diluted loss per share
attributable to owners of the Company is based on the
following data:

RERBERCKRIEGEEETH
ARBFEBARIEERERNRBEE
BIREBEATHETE:

2013 2012
—F-=f —E——fF
HK$ HK$
BT 78T
Loss B8
Loss for the purpose of basic and Rt &
diluted loss per share EREAREBEEHEEIE (34,033,645) (39,019,328)
Number of shares & B
Weighted average number of BRATEERERAREEEE

ordinary shares for the purpose of 3@ I% h1# 15 &
basic and diluted loss per share

4,188,003,736 4,028,964,120

The computation of diluted loss per share for the year ended
31 December 2013 does not assume the exercise of the
Company’s outstanding warrants since their exercise would
result in an decrease in loss per share. In addition, the
computation of diluted loss per share for the year ended 31
December 2012 and 2013 does not assume the exercise of the
Company’s outstanding share options as the exercise price of
those options are higher than the average market price of the
Company’s shares during the year.

1 20 First China Financial Network Holdings Limited Annual Report 2013
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ZEMERRME

For the year ended 31 December 2013
HE-_Z—=6+-_A=+—BLEE

16. (LOSS)/EARNINGS PER SHARE (continued) 16. B (BE) BHE)

From continuing operations

The calculation of the basic and diluted loss per share from
continuing operations attributable to owners of the Company is
based on the following data:

RERECEER
AATEAABERORELLLES
CEREAREEEEDEATAR
B E:

2013 2012
—E-=f —E——F
HK$ HK$
B BT
Loss for the year attributable to FARQFHEEANEN
owners of the Company &5 18 (34,033,645) (39,019,328)
Less: e
Profit for the year from discontinued FRKLEDKRIFEEEKEN
operation IS 9,333,152 5,097,537
Loss for the purpose of basic BRETERGFBELEEG 2
and diluted loss per share from EREARLEEEEEE
continuing operations (43,366,797) (44,116,865)

The denominators used are the same as those detailed above
for both basic and diluted loss per share.

The computation of diluted loss per share for continuing
operations for the year ended 31 December 2013 does not
assume the exercise of the Company’s outstanding warrants
since their exercise would result in an decrease in loss per
share. In addition, the computation of diluted loss per share for
continuing operations for the year ended 31 December 2013
and 2012 does not assume the exercise of the Company’s
outstanding share options as the exercise price of those
options are higher than the average market prices of the
Company’s shares during the year.

From discontinued operation

Basic and diluted earnings per share for the discontinued
operation is HKO0.22 cent per share (2012: HK0.13 cent per
share), based on the profit for the year from the discontinued
operation of HK$9,333,152 (2012: HK$5,097,537) and the
denominators detailed above for both basic and diluted
earnings per share.

PRRAD B8R EXFINERRERER
KEFEEERR -

HE-_E—=F+-A=+—RItFEE "
REBELEXEBNEREEHFE Y
FrEEBRARR 2 RITEREE
BETE AOTEeRISIBRES -
oy BE_ET—=FR_-_T—-F+
AT BLFEREFHEREE
BHEREEEE CFELTERSE

RAIZHRITEBERECETE B
BRZEBREZOFEESNARAF
WD 2 FHTHE -

RECRILESERE
REDRIERCEEBRZEREALE
EERMAERO22BIM(ZE——4F:
FRROASE W) EBEFHERAFE
KB B E ¥ 2 FH9,333,152
BT (ZZE——%F:5097537%8T) &t
NHAMERNEREAREERT
DEmMEFESL -

BEEMERKXEEERLE —T-—=FF%K
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
GREUMBHRME

For the year ended 31 December 2013
HE-_Z—=6+-_A=+—RHILt=EE

Y
17.  PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 17. 9% HAREE
Office
Land and Leasehold  equipment and Computer
The Group buildings improvements furniture equipment  Motor vehicles Total
BAZRE

£ 10 T REF HENEEE RigH EHRE RE @5t

HKS$ HK$ HK$ HKS$ HK$ HK$

B B BT B B BT
As at 1 January 2012 R-®--§-H-H
Cost A 40,327,455 2,275,078 14,077,615 883,003 5,769,962 63,333,113
Accumulated depreciation 2EIE (1,478,838) (1,286,277) (8,239,808) (821,358) (2,869,258) (14,695,539)
Net book amount EHEE 38,848,617 988,801 5,837,807 61,645 2,900,704 48,637,574
Year ended HE-B--#+-8

31 December 2012 =t-HLEEE
Opening net book amount BYREFE 38,848,617 988,801 5,837,807 61,645 2,900,704 48,637,574
Additions RE - - 206,758 88,648 - 295,406
Currency translation differences EREREE - 1,366 25,537 - 6,084 32,087
Disposals of subsidiaries HEMBAH - - (88,965) - - (88,965)
Disposals & - - = - (20,353) (20,353)
Depreciation charge NERZ (1,612,933) (363,754) (1,718,097) (49,303) (1,079,116) (4,823,203)
Closing net book amount HEREmEE 37,235,684 626,413 4,263,040 100,990 1,807,319 44,033,446
As at 31 December 2012 R-¥--§+-A=+-H
Cost A 40,327,455 2,279,450 14,079,703 971,651 5,764,719 63,422,978
Accumulated depreciation 2EIE (3,001,771) (1,653,037) (9,816,663) (870,661) (3,957,400) (19,389,532)
Net book amount BEFE 37,235,684 626,413 4,263,040 100,990 1,807,319 44,033,446
Year ended HE-T-=%+=R
31 December 2013 =t-HLEEE

Opening net book amount BYREFE 37,235,684 626,413 4,263,040 100,990 1,807,319 44,033,446
Additions wE - 2,462,292 777,978 - 822,807 4,063,077
Currency translation differences EREREE - 32,187 110,849 - 45,051 188,087
Disposals e - - - - (42,281) (42,281)
Depreciation charge fERX (1,613,098) (709,517) (1,684,579) (51,024) (467,147) (4,525,365)

Closing net book amount mFE 35,622,586 2,411,375 3,467,288 49,966 2,165,749 43,716,964

As at 31 December 2013 R-Z¥-=Zf+-A=+-H

Cost KA 40,327,455 3,750,820 15,186,529 899,761 6,459,657 66,624,222

Accumulated depreciation 2EME (4,704,869) (1,339,445) (11,719,241) (849,795) (4,293,908) (22,907,258)

Net book amount REFE 35,622,586 2,411,375 3,467,288 49,966 2,165,749 43,716,964

Note: As at 31 December 2013, land and buildings held in Hong Kong Me: WZZT—=F+_A=+—H BRERH
under a long lease with a carrying amount of HK$35,622,586 (2012: HMONEBEHEBRMEEA35622,586/8 T
HK$37,235,684) was pledged to secure the bank borrowings of the (ZZT — -4 :37,235684/% 7T) 2 + # |
Group (Note 29). BFEREBERAEE 2 RITEREF

29) °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ZEMERRME

For the year ended 31 December 2013
HE-_Z—=6+-_A=+—HILt=EE

17. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued)

17. Y% HBRBEE

L hold Office equip t Computer
The Company improvements and furniture equipment  Motor vehicles Total
WAZRE
FAT HEMERE R R RE @t
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT BT BT BT
As at 1 January 2012 N-¥—--%—-HF—H0
Cost AR 678,000 191,611 295,407 1,731,412 2,896,330
Accumulated depreciation i E (46,331) (109,604) (279,692) (1,058,085) (1,493,712)
Net book amount BREFE 631,669 81,907 15,715 673,327 1,402,618
Year ended B8FE-F--%+=H
31 December 2012 =t+-HIEFE
Opening net book amount HEREFE 631,669 81,907 15,715 673,327 1,402,618
Additions NE - 4,380 3,150 — 7,630
Depreciation charge HERX (226,000) (30,999) (13,466) (577,137) (847,602)
Closing net book amount W RERE 405,669 56,288 5,399 96,190 562,546
As at 31 December 2012 R-¥—--%+=-A=+-H
Cost AR 678,000 195,891 298,657 1,731,412 2,903,860
Accumulated depreciation L E (272,331) (140,603) (293,158) (1,635,222) (2,341,314)
Net book amount BREFE 405,669 55,288 5,399 96,190 562,546
Year ended 31 December 2013 BE-F-=%
+ZA=+—-HLEE
Opening net book amount HYERFE 405,669 55,288 5,399 96,190 562,546
Additions NE - 23,660 - - 23,660
Depreciation charge HERX (226,000) (37,220) (4,349) (96,190) (363,759)
Closing net book amount HREREFE 179,669 41,728 1,050 - 222,447
As at 31 December 2013 R-¥-=Z4+-RA=+-H
Cost AR 678,000 208,408 292,557 1,731,412 2,910,377
Accumulated depreciation i E (498,331) (166,680) (291,507) (1,731,412) (2,687,930)
Net book amount BREFE 179,669 41,728 1,050 - 222,447
HEMSPREBERAT —T-=ZFFH
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ZEWERRME

For the year ended 31 December 2013
HE-_Z—=6+-_A=+—BLEE

18. INVESTMENT PROPERTY BEME
The Group
AEHE
2013 2012
—F—-=f —F—

HK$ HK$

#ETT BT
At fair value BAFEE
Opening balance at 1 January R—A—BZBV&Ee 46,500,000 42,100,000
Disposal & (46,500,000) —
Net gains from fair value adjustment £ FEFHE 2 W FE - 4,400,000
Closing balance at 31 December RT+ZA=+—BZHRE&E# - 46,500,000

(@ On 31 May 2013, First China Property Limited, a wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company, disposed of the
investment property to an independent third party for
a total cash consideration of HK$56,000,000. The
Company recognized a disposal gain of approximately

HK$8,898,000, net of related disposal
approximately HK$602,000.

(b)  Investment property held under long-term

Hong Kong was valued at 31 December 2012 on an
open market value basis by Roma Appraisals Limited,

independent professional valuers.

() As at 31 December 2012, an investment property with
fair value of HK$46,500,000 was pledged to secure the

bank borrowings of the Group (Note 29).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ZEMERRME

For the year ended 31 December 2013
HE-_Z—=6+-_A=+—HILt=EE

19. INTANGIBLE ASSETS 19. BEAE
The Group Goodwill Software Trading rights Total
*% ik B RHHE @z
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT BT BT
As at 1 January 2012 R-¥--%£—-8F—-H
Cost B AR 689,681,065 3,628,967 2,724,000 696,034,032
Accumulated amortization and impairment T EHE A (689,596,257) (3,628,967) (2,723,999) (695,949,223)
Net book amount REFE 84,808 - 1 84,809
Year ended 31 December 2012 BE-F-—"5+-H=+-BILEE
Opening net book amount BEEEE 84,808 - 1 84,809
Additions NE — — 500,000 500,000
Acquisition of subsidiaries (i) &) 4,231,082 4,957,880 - 9,189,162
Currency translation differences BRHhES (6,687) (27,040) = (33,727
Disposal HE (84,540) — - (84,540)
Impairment (i) and (v) SR (i) R (v (581,950) - 499,999) (1,081,949)
Amortization charge HEAZ - (2,451,900) - (2,451,900)
Closing net book amount BRRETEE 3,642,913 2,478,940 2 6,121,855
As at 31 December 2012 R=—B--f+=-RA=+-H
Cost KA 693,827,539 8,586,847 3,224,000 705,638,386
Accumulated amortization and impairment ZEBERRE (690,184,626) (6,107,907) (3,223,998) (699,516,531)
Net book amount FEFE 3,642,913 2,478,940 2 6,121,855
Year ended 31 December 2013 BE-E-=f+-RA=+-BHLEE
Opening net book amount HREFEE 3,642,913 2,478,940 2 6,121,855
Currency translation differences SRR 57,930 39,420 - 97,350
Impairment () A (3,700,843) - - (3,700,843)
Amortization charge BHAY - (2,518,360) - (2,518,360)
Closing net book amount HREEEE - - 2 2
As at 31 December 2013 R-B-=Z%+-A=+-H
Cost B AR 693,827,539 8,586,847 3,224,000 705,638,386
Accumulated amortization and impairment 2 BERRE (693,827,539) (8,586,847) (3,223,998) (705,638,384)
Net book amount REFE - - 2 2
HENRPAEEEBERAR T ="FF#H
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19.

126

INTANGIBLE ASSETS (continued)

Notes:

For the purpose of impairment testing at 31 December 2013, goodwill
has been allocated to a CGU representing the operating activities of 7
JEERLHBRIEBRAT (‘BERL) (transliterated as “Shenzhen
First China School Safety Network Technology Company Limited”) (formerly
FYIE A BRI EBRAAF (transliterated as “Shenzhen
Lian He Wu Xian Investment Company Limited”)).

known as
An impairment test
of this goodwill was carried out by management based on value-in-use
calculation and with reference to a business valuation conducted by an
independent professional valuer.

The recoverable amount of a cash-generating unit is determined based
on value-in-use calculation. This calculation uses pre-tax cash flow
projections based on financial budgets approved by management
covering a five-year period. The discount rate applied to the cash flow

projections is 23.75%.

The management of the Group reviewed the business operations of &
#R % and considered that & ZE K % would not generate positive cash
flows. The goodwill amount of HK$3,700,843 was determined to be
fully impaired with reference to a business valuation conducted by an
independent professional valuer.

First China Financial Network Holdings Limited Annual Report 2013
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19. INTANGIBLE ASSETS (continued) 19. BREE(E
Notes: (continued) B aE: (48)
(ii) During the year ended 31 December 2012, the Group acquired the (ii) HE-Z -+ -A=+—HILFE"

remaining 85.715% interests in FY B ER LT A BRI B ER QA A,
thereby resulting in a goodwill of HK$3,642,913. An impairment test
of this goodwill was carried out by management based on a value-in-
use calculation and with reference to a business valuation conducted
by an independent professional valuer. The recoverable amount of
the cash generating unit (“CGU”) in which R E FER L B4R
APR/AT] operates, has been determined based on a value-in-use
calculation, which uses pre-tax cash flow projections based on financial
budgets approved by management covering a five-year period. The
key assumptions used for the cash flow projections include budgeted
revenue and budgeted expenses during the forecasting periods, which
are determined by management based on past performance and its
expectation of market development. Cash flows beyond that five-year
period are extrapolated using an estimated growth rate of 3%. The
growth rate does not exceed the long-term average growth rate for the
industry in which the CGU operates. All cash flows are discounted at a
pre-tax discount rate of 23.75% which reflects the specific risks relating
to this CGU.

During the year ended 31 December 2012, the Group acquired the
remaining 50% interests in AT TBR AR AR A A (transliterated
as “Shenzhen Yuan Tong Video Technology Company Limited”), thereby
resulting in a goodwill of HK$588,369. Such goodwill was determined to
be fully impaired with reference to a business valuation conducted by an
independent professional valuer.

The trading rights as at 31 December 2013 represent two (2012: two)
trading rights on the Stock Exchange and one (2012: one) trading right
on the Hong Kong Futures Exchange Limited (“HKFE”).

During the year ended 31 December 2012, the Group acquired a
trading right on the Hong Kong Futures Exchange Limited (“HKFE”) at a
consideration of HK$500,000. An impairment loss of HK$499,999 was
recognized in respect of such trading right as at 31 December 2012.

BEN

AEBRBEFNEERTEENEAR
NABTZ85715% Em  BIHEEZHE
E /36429138 - EEEUFFELAE
BAEEVKSEBUSEGEMET
CEBEERZABETRENR R
NEERZPEBRBEARRAXEBZR
SESEN(ReEESEM)MAIKE S
BhEGECERABEEER M=KD
FERANEEEN EREFHARFZM
BEEAEEZBABRESRERAGE -
ReneBAMAzEEZREBEEAN
HEAZEEREREEHY  2BE
W kBERYVHEEREERBTREA
RHEEHZMEEEBRAET - AHA
FHERZBERE IATEEERA3%
HEH G ZEREXTEHEZBRSE
SENBEBAMNZRBFHERER -
FiBREmEIET AR E23.75% 851
RMEBBESEABUMSZETERAR -

HE-ZT-——F+-_A=+—HILEFE"
AEBRERNTTBEBRALMERA
R T 250% E# B EE2EER
588,360/ L - Z W BKL LS EBH U B EM
EMETZEBHEREET ABEM
=

RIB-—=ZF+-_A=+—RzX 5
MECE-——F MBABIARIER
—H(CE-F: -R)BEERERSMHM
BERATDTHZANZ P -

HE-ZT-——F+-_A=+—HILEFE"
AEBEESESMERIMER AR (TH
AT 2 X 5 #E -+ {E{8500,000% 7T o K
—E-—F+ZA=+t—H ZXRZERE
R A E518499,990%8 TT ©
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20. STATUTORY DEPOSITS AND OTHER ASSETS

20. ZEZERAMEE

The Group
XEH
2013 2012
—F—-=f —=—=
HK$ HK$
T om
Hong Kong Securities Clearing BAEFREEERR
Company Limited (“HKSCC?”) ((BEEE]D
— Contribution fund deposit — REHSRS 100,000 100,000
— Admission fee deposit — WmEIRe 100,000 100,000
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong iﬁ;‘%ﬂﬁ%éﬁ&%ﬁﬁ
Limited BRA
— Compensation fund deposit — B faﬁ Ry g 100,000 100,000
— Fidelity fund deposit — BERESES 100,000 100,000
— Stamp duty deposit — iR & 30,000 30,000
The Securities and Futures BEEEAFLEE
Commission of Hong Kong EHEREEY
— Deposits for responsible officers — BE A% & 100,000 100,000
HKFE Clearing Corporation Limited &EHEL&EBRA
(“HKFECC”) ([BEHE: %%J)
— Reserve fund deposit — REEeke - 1,500,000
Guangdong Precious Metals F?‘é\‘%/ﬁ%?&% FLBRAR
Exchange Limited (“PMEC”) (EeBXHF 0]
— Reserve fund deposit — f% Ae&kse 6,377,850 —
6,907,850 2,030,000

128
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21. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

RMBABZIRE

The Company

EAT
2013 2012
—E—-Z=F —E——F
HK$ HK$
#EIT BT
Unlisted shares, at cost JE LT AR 4,771,262 4,771,262
Less: Impairment loss recognized B SRR E R 18 (2) @)
4,771,260 4,771,260

Amounts due from and due to subsidiaries

For the year ended 31 December 2013, the amounts due from
and due to subsidiaries as shown on the Company’s statement
of financial position are unsecured, interest-free and repayable
on demand. For the year ended 31 December 2012, except
for an amount due from a subsidiary of HK$24,632,958 which
is unsecured, interest bearing at prime rate of commercial
banks minus 2.25% per annum and repayable on demand, the
other amounts due from and due to subsidiaries as shown on
the Company’s statement of financial position are unsecured,
interest-free and repayable on demand.

FE W % FE B B A S R 1B

BE-_Z—=H+-A=+—HLEE"
AR E) B Tk 3R 3R BT R 2 FE MR &
ENHBARRELBEET - &8
MEBEREREE - BHE-TE——-F+
—AZ+—HIEFE BEKHERT
FKIE24,632,95878 L BB - IR
BITHREENRF2.25E 2 FF R:t
BRARBEREZIN  RARB T
RO R 2R BT R 2 Bt R % FE A B B
REIREHAEERR 2B RERE

som

SKIEE o

BEEMERKXEEERLE —T-—=FF%K
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RMBABSZIRE(E
ATRR—_F—=F+-_A=t—RHZ

21. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 21.

130

The following is a list of the Company’s principal subsidiaries

as at 31 December 2013:

Place of incorporation/

ARBEEMBRARBE:

Principal activities

Particulars of issued

establishment and kind of legal and place of share capital/ Interest
Name entity operations registered capital held
E1 A ST R 3Lt B % TEEBREERE ERTRE ERBEAFE REED
HEEBBRER

First China Financial Holdings (BVI) Limited British Virgin Islands, Limited liability —Investment holding 611,700 ordinary shares of US$1 each 100%
company

First China Financial Holdings (BVI) Limited HBEXHE BARAAF REER 611,700 B R E E155 7T 2 & B A

Stockmartnet Limited Hong Kong, Limited liability Securities trading in Hong Kong 3 ordinary shares of HK$1 each 100%
company

ERMUBRAR B BRRRA REBRFEFER SREBREEVE T2 L BB

First China Financial Capital Limited Hong Kong, Limited liability Provision of corporate finance 2,400,000 ordinary shares of HK$1 100%
company services in Hong Kong each

BEECRBAARAA EE ARRA REBRECERERS 2,400,000/ & R EE17E 7T 2 @R

First China Securities Limited Hong Kong, Limited liability Securities and futures brokerage 67,000,000 ordinary shares of HK$1 100%
company and securities margin financing each (2012: 57,000,000 ordinary

services in Hong Kong shares of HK$1 each)
HEZHERAA B BRRRA REBRFEFRAEEMLARE 67,000,000 &% @ E1E T2 L @K
FRESBERYG (ZZ —=4 : 57,000,000/ & & &
BT ERR)

First China Processing Services Limited Hong Kong, Limited liability Provision of a trading platform in 2 ordinary shares of 100%
company Hong Kong HK$1 each

First China Processing Services Limited B BRAR REBRHRHFA 2REREES T2 L AR

IFN-GT Financial Holdings Limited British Virgin Islands, Limited liability Investment holding 1 ordinary share of 100%
company US$1 each

IFN-GT Financial Holdings Limited HERAEE  ARAA REER IREREBBIETZEBR

First China Global Wealth Management Limited Hong Kong, Limited liability Provision of wealth management 6,000,000 ordinary shares of HK$1 100%
company services in Hong Kong each

HERKEHNERRAF i BRRA REBRBUEEERRY 6,000,000 & fR @ E178 T 2 & il R

First China Property Limited Hong Kong, Limited liability Property investment 1 ordinary share of 100%
company HK$1 each

HEMEFROA B BRRARA MERE TREREENET TR

First China Estates Company Limited Hong Kong, Limited liability Property holding 1 ordinary share of 100%
company HK$1 each

BEEZARAA B BRRE BENE TREREEVETEBR

Aceview International Limited British Virgin Islands, Limited liability Investment holding 1 ordinary share of 100%
company US$1 each

HREBREFRRQA HEELEHE  ARAA REERK 1REREEIZTZEBK

GoHi Holdings Limited British Virgin Islands, Limited liability —Investment holding 35,000 ordinary shares of US$1 each 100%

GoHi Holdings Limited

company
RERELHES  BRARA

RERR

First China Financial Network Holdings Limited Annual Report 2013
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(transliterated as Shenzhen Guoyin Brilliant brokerage (of which RMB10,000,000 has been
Precious Metals Limited (“Guoyin”)) paid up at 31 December 2013)
RYEFEREECBLEERAF(HR]) HE - FRRA E2RBAERIRER & &% A R #20,000,0007T

(% AR #10,000,0000CE R =8 —
=F+ZA=+—BHR)

21. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 21. RBATSIZIRE(E
Place of incorporation/ Principal activities Particulars of issued
establishment and kind of legal and place of share capital/ Interest
Name entity operations registered capital held
E3 SE M RIL R 3T B R TREBREERY ERTRE ERBREFE REER
HEERBER
HEZHFZRACRIDEBRAA PRC, Foreign wholly-owned Provision of stock information and ~ Registered capital of RMB40,000,000 100%
(transliterated as First China Securities enterprise research services in the PRC
Consultancy (Shenzhen) Co., Ltd.)
BEEFAARINERAF HE 2HERE RPBERERZEARFARRE  EMERSARS40,000,0007T
RYEBREEEBERAF PRC, Limited liability company Investment holding and provision Registered capital of RMB3,000,000 100%
(transliterated as Shenzhen Sky Picture of development and design of
Culture Communications Company Limited) TV programs and artwork in the
(Note) PRC
Y BREREEBEERDA) HE BERAF RABRRERR MERRFER FEMEXRKRARES0000007T
HENES
R EBBERMERRE PRC, Limited liability company Development and sales of Registered capital of RMB10,000,000  100%
(transliterated as Shenzhen Wealth Alliance software for information network
Networking Company Limited) (“Wealth equipment, terminal products
Alliance”) (Note) and calculators in the PRC
R ERBERMERRA(EE]) ) HE BERAA RPERERHEERDRRAEL  FMERRSARS100000007T
ft BmERRGESR
RN EERTREREBERAT PRC, Limited liability company Development and sales of school Registered capital of RMB7,000,000 100%
(transliterated as Shenzhen First China safety products
School Safety Network Technology
Company Limited) (formerly known as
AEERRIREFRAA)
RIEERLTBERRBERRE HE ERAF RBERHEERER2ER & &% A R%7,000,0007T
(FIBRRYMABRIREARAR)
RAYEREEESBELERAA PRC, Limited liability company Precious metals spot trading and ~ Registered capital of RMB20,000,000  55%

Note: The equity interests in these subsidiaries are directly or indirectly held by sk HRBARKAEEEENBEEEZ
nominees on behalf of the Group and the Group holds 100% effective EWB AT RAER  RAEEBEZ
interest in these subsidiaries. 0B A F100% E R AES -

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Group which, in FRENEETRAABUAERREELE

the opinion of the directors, principally affect the results or
assets of the Group. To give details of other subsidiaries would,
in the opinion of the directors, result in particulars of excessive

length.

BEEMEHKREERRLF

TE-ZFER

EBRIBZEZIMBAR - EFER
B HIIEMMEB AR ZE KB ER
FERBNITER -
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R+ A=t—RLFE

INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

Material non-controlling interests

The total non-controlling interests for the year is HK$2,607,017,
of which HK$2,607,016 is for Guoyin. The non-controlling
interests in respect of the other subsidiary is not material.

Summarized financial information on the subsidiary with
material non-controlling interests

Set out below are the summarized financial information for the
subsidiary, Guoyin, that has a non-controlling interests that is
material to the Group. Guoyin was incorporated on 9 July 2013.

21.

RHBASIZIRE(Z)
BEREHERERS

FAIEE R = 4818 /2,607,017 7T
H o F 4R fE 152,607,016 7T A B H
B AR IR ER T AE KX -

FEXHBREDBZHEBLSZHME
TXEINMBRARER(EMER I
RS HASEN S BEAN) ZHH
BEHBZE -BEER-_ZT—=FtAh
HaEM AL

Summarized statement of financial position B IR E
2013
—E-=5
HK$
T
Current k)
Assets BE 7,510,278
Liabilities =R (3,854,296)
Total current net assets MEEELFE 3,655,982
Non-current e ED
Assets BE 9,223,887
Liabilities = -
Total non-current net assets IERBEELFE 9,223,887
Net assets EEFE 12,879,869
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21. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)
Material non-controlling interests (continued)
Summarized financial information on the subsidiary with
material non-controlling interests (continued)
Summarized statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income

21. RMBABZIRE(E)
EXkiEkERE)
FEXHEREZZHBLEZHE
BHHEE)

Ba REMEERAFLHE

2013
—T—-=%
HK$
B
Revenue EER 12,673,340
Profit before income tax B BT 15 4 AT A1) 1,148,234
Income tax expense TS (1,025,660)
Profit for the year F AT HE 122,574
Other comprehensive income Efh 2w A 1,595
Total comprehensive income FERABE 124,169
Total comprehensive income 2of®
allocated to non-controlling FEVE R A
interests ZEERANBE 55,876

BEEMERKXEEERLE —T-—=FF%K
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21. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 2. PHBASZERE(E)
Material non-controlling interests (continued) BEXFERERE)
Summarized financial information on the subsidiary with FEXHIEREZZHBLSEZHF
material non-controlling interests (continued) BEHBEE)
Summarized statement of cash flows B REaXkmE
2013
—E—-=5
HK$
T
Cash flows from operating meEE
activities FiRB&RE
Cash used in operations KEFHAZE® (5,347,563)
Interest received 2 Y B 5,736
Net cash used in operating activities & /EBEFHZIRE FE (5,341,827)
Net cash used in investing activities R EEHEH 2R FE (3,201,739)
Net cash generated from & EE)
financing activities EEXZR®FE 12,591,800
Net increase in cash and HeRBELEE
cash equivalents IEH i E 4,048,234
Exchange gains on cash and RehkBHeE
cash equivalents HEB 2 EH W 52,693
Cash and cash equivalents FRZHES
at end of year MRS FEEIER 4,100,927
The information above is the amount before inter-company N EBERABMBARBEE S5 -
eliminations.
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22. INVESTMENT IN AN ASSOCIATE 22, R—HEBEATZRE
2013 2012
—g—-=F —E——F
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Beginning of the year F4 15,470 1,676,076
Disposals & - (1,341,765)
Currency translation differences B ER 450 9,515
Share of losses FEiLE B - (328,356)
End of the year FR 15,920 15,470
Details of the Group’s associate as at 31 December 2013 are RZZE—=F+-A=+—H Kr&EE
as follows: fERNB BT T
Interest
Name Place of incorporation Principal activities Particulars of issued shares held held
&8 = M B 3 #h 25 EEERB MBERTROFESE iR
AN B AR R PRC, Limited liability Development and sales of software  Registered capital of RMB1,000,000  40%
AR AR company for information network equipment,
terminal products and calculators
in the PRC
RINIFERBEE S FE - BRAA RPBEAEREEEMBARREL SEMELXAARY1,000000T 40%
K AR AR i BIRERRITES
There are no contingent liabilities relating to the Group’s interest TWHEABAEEN —BEEL AR R
in an associate. S AETE -

BEEMERKXEEERLE —T-—=FF%K

135



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
GREUMBHRME

For the year ended 31 December 2013

HE

22.

136
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INVESTMENT IN AN ASSOCIATE (continued) 22.

Summarized financial information for an associate
Aggregate information of an associate that are not individually
material

R—EBEATZREE)
BMEATMBEHBE
B 5T E 2 2 — B & 2\ A [E AR &

2013 2012

—g-=f —E——fF

HK$ HK$

BT 78T

The Group’s share of loss NEBEEEE - —
The Group’s share of other REEEGHEMEERA

comprehensive income - —
The Group’s share of total AEBEEEZEWRARE

comprehensive income - —

Aggregate carrying amount of the REBER—HBEAREREZ
Group’s interest in an associate EHE 15,920 15,470

Amount due to an associate

As at 31 December 2013 and 2012, the amount due to an
associate is unsecured, interest-free, denominated in RMB and
repayable on demand.

First China Financial Network Holdings Limited Annual Report 2013
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INVENTORIES 23. &E&
The Group
XEH
2013 2012
—g—-=£F —E—=
HK$ HK$
#EIT BT
Finished goods X o 694,038 5,458,255
24. TRADE RECEIVABLES 24. BWEBESRE
The Group
xE
2013 2012
—E-=fF —E——F
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Amounts receivable arising from BECILET
securities broking: FFr B A JE WK TR
Margin clients REFEZEP 4,311,263 2,058,785
Cash clients Re®P 862,750 1,970,362
Brokers and dealers KRR 5HE 6 6
HKSCC (net) BEAHEECEE) 904,923 —
Amounts receivable arising ECBRERSGK
from precious metals SR
spot trading and brokerage: EE 2 ERFRE :
PMEC (net) BEeBRX5%0(CFE) 409,432 —
Other trade receivables EihfEWE 5508 120,570 119,729
6,608,944 4,148,882
Less: Provision for impairment loss 3 : J8i 18 &5 18 4 4& (120,570) —
Trade receivables, net EWE ZFIE - FE 6,488,374 4,148,882
ERMEREEEERAT —T-FFR 137
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TRADE RECEIVABLES (continued)

Amounts receivable from margin clients are repayable
on demand, bearing interest at prevailing market rates
and are secured by clients’ pledged securities which are
listed on the Stock Exchange with a total market value of
approximately HK$23,300,000 as at 31 December 2013
(2012: HK$14,248,000). No aged analysis is disclosed as,
in the opinion of the directors, the aged analysis does not
give additional value in view of the nature of the business of
securities margin financing.

The settlement terms of amounts receivable arising from
securities broking are one or two trade days after the trade
execution date. Except for the amounts receivable from margin
clients as mentioned above, these balances are aged within 30
days.

Other trade receivables arising from the provision of corporate
finance services and wealth management services are due
immediately from date of biling but the Group will generally
grant a credit period of 30 days on average to its customers.
Trade receivables arising from the provision of stock information
and research services are with credit term of 30 to 90 days (2012:
30 to 90 days).

The following is an aged analysis of other trade receivables at
the reporting period:

24,

FEWE S RIE (&)
EURRFSBEFRNEAKEERE
B -RBTIMBMEFE LUE
FRZZE—=F+-_A=+—H#EW
{8 #J23,300,000% jT(= & — = F:
14,248,000% JT) 2 Bt 22 B 0 5 17 2&
FEHE - AENBHFRESHEED
S EERAERKROMILELM
BIMEE  HRBHEBEERR DT -

EFRLEBELRBBARETT
RXHAPME-IMEIZEAZN - B
i EWREFEEEPRIEIN R
BERA=THR -

RECEREREULG = EERE
EtzHMERESIHE  RELE
EEANEIE HAEE—RSH
FEHEPFPFH=Z+HZEEH - 24
BREEMRMERBEELEZERES
REZEEHA=TEATRA(CET—
ZF=+ERFH) -

Hit BN E HHRIAR REHE 2 KK
DT :

The Group
AEH

2013 2012
—E—-=F —ET—_F
HK$ HKS$
BT BT
0-30 days 0£30H - 83,729
31-90 days 31£90H - —
91-180 days 91£180H - —
181-365 days 1812365H - 36,000
Over 365 days 365H A + - —
- 119,729
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TRADE RECEIVABLES (continued)

The maximum exposure to credit risk at the end of the
reporting period is the carrying amounts of trade receivables.
Other than the amounts receivable from margin clients, the
Group does not hold any collateral as security in respect of its
trade receivables.

As at 31 December 2013, none of the trade receivables (2012:
HK$36,000) were past due but not impaired. These relate to a
number of independent customers for whom there is no recent
history of default. The aged analysis of these trade receivables

24,

EWESRIE(E)

RBEHEERE SR EERRR
BREZFEZKREE - RRESE
P2z BYRIESN » AK B &L HE
B S RIAR B E AR SRR -

R-E—=F+-F=+—H WEE
WE S HIB(ZF — =4 136,000/ 7T
BEBAHARE ZERRFKEYS
MEFWETAESHEREEZ BT

is as follows: BP e %ERIEZHIEZREK T
e
The Group
XEH
2013 2012
—F—-=f —EF—
HK$ HK$
BT T
0-30 days 0£30H - —
31-90 days 31£90H - —
91-180 days 91£180H - —
181-365 days 1812365H - 36,000
Over 365 days 365H KA - —
- 36,000

As at 31 December 2013, trade receivables of HK$119,484
(2012: HK$51,884) were impaired. The amount of the
provision was HK$120,570 as of 31 December 2013 (2012
Nil). The individually impaired receivables mainly relate to a
few customers, which are in unexpected difficult economic
situations.

BEEMEHKREERRLF

R-ZE—-—=F+-A=+—H0"El
B 5 MIAN94848 L (Z T — = F
51,8848 L) ME - R_ZT—=F+=
A=+—B8 %< % A120,570/%8 T
(ZE—=F8) - @RI EEKKE
FESREBERREBREBERSESD
HETEPF -

TE-ZFER
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
HEMBHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2013
HE-_Z—=6+-_A=+—BLEE

24. TRADE RECEIVABLES (continued) 24, BWESERIE(E)
Movements on the provision of impairment of trade receivables JEWE SR IERERE 2 BB RN
are as follows: T
The Group
xEH
2013 2012
—E-=F —E——F
HK$ HK$
BT & T
At 1 January n—H—H - —
Receivables written off during the FAERBE R EFIEME
year as uncollectible JE W R IE - (51,884)
Provision for impairment of trade FEWE 5 5 R
receivables AL 1E B 119,484 51,884
Currency translation differences B HRERR 1,086 —
At 31 December R+-—A=+—H 120,570 —
The carrying amounts of the Group’s trade receivables are AEBREWKESZHBEZEBERZAT
denominated in the following currencies: BHYIME
The Group
xEH
2013 2012
—g—-=F —E——F
HK$ HK$
BT om
Hong Kong dollars BT 6,078,942 4,066,705
RVMB AR¥ 409,432 82,177
6,488,374 4,148,882
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
GREUMBHRME

For the year ended 31 December 2013

HE

25.

—E-=f+-A=t—RLFEE

PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER

RECEIVABLES

Included in other receivables of the Group as at 31 December
2013 and 2012 were the following amounts due from related

25, ARRE - ZERAMEKRIE

A — o
Jrap———

E——EN_T-—_F+_A=+
CAEEZHMERRESET

—H

companies: b fE U B B E AR FUE -
Highest balance The Group The Company
outstanding 55 FAT
during the year 2013 2012 2013 2012
ERREXR
Ko —T-=% -—T--F CZ¥-=%f -—T —F
HK$ HK$ HKS HK$ HKS
BT T BT BT BT
Amounts due from related parties EWRAREALRIE
RITEEREFERRA RITERE
(transliterated as “Shenzhen Guangxin BEBRAR
Investment Company Limited”) (‘Shenzhen (RIIEED
Guangxin”) (Note (a)) (@) 5,405,358 - 5,405,358 - -
BEREREFREZHERAA BEREREFRE
(transliterated as “Guangdong Brightzone HRABRRA
Financial Company Limited”) (“Guangdong (ExRER])
Brightzone”) (Note (b)) (GEIW) 2,374,982 - 2,374,982 - -
- 7,780,340 - -
Other receivables H & e k08 5,764,091 7,484,850 - —
Other deposits and prepayments Hipize REAKE 7,403,297 1,138,312 1,301,613 179,724
13,167,388 16,403,502 1,301,613 179,724
Notes: B & -
(@) Shenzhen Guangxin is a limited company established in the PRC and is (@) FINEEH—HMRFEKLZERAF
controlled by Ms. Chen Dongjin, the spouse of Mr. Wang Wenming who HARAEEHREIZRREIXHEEZ
is a director and a substantial shareholder of the Company. Bt (B PR 238 22 %l o
(b) Quangdong Br|ggtzone is aGI|m|ted lcomp.anyl established in the PRC and ) EEES T —RREERY Y ERAT
is controlled by Shenzhen Guangxin which is a related company of the AT RS AT R = ]
Company.
() The amounts due from the above related parties are unsecured, interest- © Rl AR A HOR A 65, -

free, denominated in RMB and repayable on demand.

BEEMEHKREERRLF

ANREEFNE R RIR BRIEE -

TE-ZFER
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ZEWERRME

For the year ended 31 December 2013
HE-_Z—=6+-_A=+—BLEE

26. BANK BALANCES AND CASH 26. SRITHBRIR:
The Group The Company
X&EH EAT

2013 2012 2013 2012
—E-=% —T——fF —F—-=%F —E——F
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
I AT &I BT
Cash at bank and on hand WITERFHEES 83,131,819 20,352,602 39,421,954 364,241
Maximum exposure to credit risk  {E @K LR 83,131,819 20,352,602 39,421,954 364,241

As at 31 December 2013, the Group had bank balances and
cash of approximately HK$18,068,000 (2012: HK$432,000)

which are denominated in RMB.

The remittance of these funds

out of the PRC is subject to the exchange control restrictions
imposed by the PRC government.

The bank balances are deposited with creditworthy banks with

no recent history of default.

Bank balances and cash include the following for the purposes

RZE—=F+-—A=+—H *5H
BUAREBIBEZRITEHEHBEE S
18,068,000/ JT (= & — = 4F : 432,000
W IT) o 52 EFRIAE H AP B RINZ A
Bl AT & B 2 SNEE B FT IR o

ERRTERKERNEERFEENN
R FC 8k 2 SRAT o

EARERERME  |RITEHRR

of the consolidated statement of cash flows: REeEBREATRE:
The Group
XEH
2013 2012
—g—-=F —E——F
HK$ HK$
#EIT BT
Cash at bank and on hand RITRFEES 83,131,819 20,352,602
Segregated trust bank balances BIYEARFPER (6,041,107) (5,790,644)
Cash and cash equivalents BekBEE&EEIER 77,090,712 14,561,958
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ZEMERRME

For the year ended 31 December 2013
HE-_Z—=6+-_A=+—BLEE

27. TRADE PAYABLES

27. EFRESRIE

The Group
XEH
2013 2012
—g—-=£F —E—=
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Amounts payable arising from BHLLET
securities broking: T EE A& FEF 5RIA
Margin clients RESEF 123,968 101,722
Cash clients RexP 7,762,795 6,109,461
HKSCC (net) EBEECFE) - 1,164,750
Other trade payables HibERE 5 5IE 794,964 761,164
8,681,727 8,137,097

Amounts payable to margin clients are repayable on demand
and bearing interest at prevailing market rates.
analysis is disclosed as, in the opinion of the directors, the
aged analysis does not give additional value in view of the

nature of the business of securities margin financing.

No aged

e AT o

BEEMEHKREERRLF

BNREZEPRAARBRER
BIRITMGHNERFR - ERBHRE
TRMEXBIUE EFTRRERED
1 3 B (E ] FEAMEME - R A TR

TE-ZFER
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ZEWERRME

For the year ended 31 December 2013
HE-_Z—=6+-_A=+—BLEE

27.

TRADE PAYABLES (continued)

The settlement terms of amounts payable arising from securities
broking are one or two trade days after the trade execution
date. Except for the amounts payable to margin clients as
mentioned above, these balances are aged within 30 days.

The following is an aged analysis of other trade payables at the

27.

BAESRIEE)

ERRCEGRELRNRRANE
TRHEME-IMEIBZERAN -
B b BN RE &P KIBIN 8-

AR=THNFE -

HiENESRARERENEER

end of each reporting period: B TaA T -
The Group
xEH
2013 2012
—E-=5 —F—=
HK$ HK$
&I BT
0-30 days 0£30H - 1173
31-90 days 312 90H - —
91-180 days 912180H - —
181-365 days 181£365H - 754,094
Over 365 days 365H KA 794,964 5,897
794,964 761,164
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ZEMERRME

For the year ended 31 December 2013
HE-_Z—=6+-_A=+—BLEE

28. OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS

28. HittEHRIERERIE

Included in other payables of the Group as at 31 December KEBR-_ZE—=FR_Z—=-F+=
2013 and 2012 were the following amounts due to related A=+ —BzEMENREBEBBRFEUT
parties: FERT B RE AL FIE
The Group The Company
& AAT
2013 2012 2013 2012
—Eg—-=5F —ET——F —g—-=5F —ET—_4F
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
EIT BT BT I
Amounts due to related parties: EHAREAL
MIE:
FYITEEREARAR wYITE A
(Shenzhen Guangxin) HEBRANF
(Note (a)) (RINERED
(B 5% (@) 815,058 — - —
A director of the Company AAREFZ A 254,673 50,000 - -
1,069,731 50,000 - —
Other payables and H At FE A KT8 &
accruals FEET A 6,351,418 2,928,423 2,084,136 777,500
7,421,149 2,078,423 2,084,136 777,500
Notes: B &
(@) Shenzhen Guangxin is a limited company established in the PRC and is @ FINEER—ERFPEKINBRAA

controlled by Ms. Chen Dongjin, the spouse of Mr. Wang Wenming who
is a director and a substantial shareholder of the Company.

(b) The amounts due to the above related parties are unsecured, interest-
free, denominated in RMB and repayable on demand.

BHARREERIERREXHLELEZ
FLB MR A 2 o

(b) BN BEBEALZRBEREEAF
o UNARBHERBREREE -

BEEMERKXEEERLE —T-—=FF%K
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ZEWERRME

For the year ended 31 December 2013
HE-_Z—=6+-_A=+—BLEE

29. BORROWINGS 29. &R
The Group
£ |
2013 2012
—g—-=£F —E—=
HK$ HK$
#ETT BT
Borrowings included in current FFAMEBBEMNER
liabilities
— Secured bank borrowings — BEPIRITER 14,206,092 33,066,172
Notes: B 7
(@) The maturity of borrowings is as follows (Note (o)): (@) BEREPEFBEOT (M) :
The Group
x&EHE
2013 2012
—E—-=%F —T—=F
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Within one year —ER 1,829,486 3,280,545
In the second year B _F 1,882,732 3,373,020
In the third to fifth year FZEAF 5,997,897 10,698,770
Over five years [k c Ak 4,495,977 15,713,837
14,206,092 33,066,172

(b) At 31 December 2013, bank borrowings of the Group were secured by
the charges over the Group’s land and buildings (Note 17) and corporate
guarantees executed by the Company (Note 38). At 31 December 2013,
the Group’s bank borrowings are denominated in HK$, bearing floating
interest rate of 3.00% (2012: 2.25% to 3.00%) per annum.

(@] The amounts due are based on the scheduled repayment dates set out
in the loan agreement.

d) The bank borrowings are shown under current liabilities as the loan
agreements contain a repayment on demand clause.

First China Financial Network Holdings Limited Annual Report 2013

(0) RZZB—=Z®¢+"F=+—H A%£ER
TEREAAER Y i RIEF (7)1
B WHARFREAFERME
38) c R_E—Z=ZF+-_A=+—H &%
B2 RITEREUETIE - TFFUF
BI00E (=T ——f :225E £3.00F) 5+
B o

(©) N8I E R E AT EE & HRA
HEtE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
HEMBHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2013
HE-_Z—=6+-_A=+—BLEE

30. DEFERRED INCOME TAX LIABILITIES 30. ELFM%?HE%
The movement on the deferred income tax liabilities account is EEFMESHRaEzE8mT:
as follows:
The Group
XEH
2013 2012
—E-=f —T—F
HK$ HK$
BEIT BT
At 1 January w—H—H 4,197,812 4,379,334
Credit to the consolidated statement st A4rAEZF LK EME2E
of profit or loss and other PN E
comprehensive income (181,549) (181,522)
At 31 December R+ZA=+—H 4,016,263 4,197,812
The deferred income tax liabilities are attributable to accelerated FELEMESHREBERENRTEEITE -

tax depreciation.

A deferred tax asset has not been recognized in the fﬁt MR BEHEE B & F) B 2ROR - o &
consolidated financial statements in respect of estimated REREHBEHRERIA BUAKIEBEF
unused tax losses available for offset against future profits due HZ M REAMEEERRELER
to the uncertainty of future profit streams. These unrecognized HEE - ZSARERE R E5 LA
temporary differences have no expiry date. MR o
As at 31 December 2013, the unrecognized deferred tax assets RZE—=F+ZA=+—0 &~&H
of the Group and the Company are as follows: NARRB 2 RERIEEFTEHE E W
T
The Group The Company
AEH XATF
2013 2012 2013 2012
—E—-=f —ZT——F —E—=§ —ZT——F
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
I BT &I BT
Unused tax losses AEBEHRKEE 13,859,620 14,190,313 1,575,316 2,487,022

HEMCEEEEERAT —T-=H55% 147
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
HEMBHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2013
HE-_Z—=6+-_A=+—BLEE

31. SHARE CAPITAL AND PREMIUM 3. BAREGE
Number of Ordinary
issued shares shares Share premium Total
BT

308 4| TLiE R % 63 itk {8 et
Note (in thousands) HK$ HKS$ HK$
B = (FH&) BT BT BT

As at 1 January 2012 and 31 RZZ—ZF—A—HRK
December 2012 —E——F#+-fA=+—H 4,028,964 40,289,642 1,028,819,484 1,069,109,126
Issue of shares by way of placements i B il & #1715 ¢ (i) 429,996 4,299,960 47,729,556 52,029,516

Transaction costs attributable BATH R FE(S

to issue of new shares 2R — - (1,048,353) (1,048,353)

31 December 2013 R-F—-=%#+=RA=+-—H 4,458,960 44,589,602 1,075,500,687 1,120,090,289

The total authorized number of ordinary shares is A TE i AR 48 81/310,000,000,000/ (=

10,000,000,000 shares (2012: 10,000,000,000 shares) with a £ — =% :10,000,000,0008%) * & & @

par value of HK$0.01 per share (2012: HK$0.01 per share). All BEROOTETL(ZE —Z4F : B#RKR0.01E
issued shares are fully paid. ) FTBEETROBRFHEHE -

Note: Bt 3% -

(i) In August 2013, the Company placed, through the placing agents, (i) RZB—=FN\A ARABEBEERE
429,996,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each in the share capital of the AFRRO1E T Z B E SR AR BRAF
Company to independent investors at a price of HK$0.121 per share. 5 I T {50.017% 7T 2429,996,000/% & i %

FEIRESE -
32. SPECIAL RESERVE 32. FiRlf e

The special reserve of the Group represents the difference
between the nominal amount of the shares issued by the
Company and the aggregate of the nominal amount of the
issued share capital and share premium of First China Financial
Holdings (BVI) Limited acquired pursuant to the corporate
reorganization undertaken in preparation for the listing of the
Company’s shares on GEM on 11 January 2002.

First China Financial Network Holdings Limited Annual Report 2013

AEB2ERREIEARRDRER
EHEARAROR=ZBEZ=_F—AT
—BEAIER ETAMETEESAM
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
GREUMBHRME

For the year ended 31 December 2013
HE-_Z—=6+-_A=+—BLEE

33. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES

(@)

The Old Share Option Scheme

The Company operates a share option scheme (the “Old
Share Option Scheme”) under which persons working for
the interest of the Group are entitled to an opportunity
to obtain equity interest in the Company. The number
of shares in respect of which options may be granted
under the Share Option Scheme and any other share
option schemes is not permitted to exceed 30% of
the shares of the Company in issue from time to time,
without prior approval from the Company’s shareholders.
The maximum number of shares issued and to be issued
upon exercise of options granted and to be granted
pursuant to the Old Share Option Scheme and any other
share options schemes of the Company to any person
(including both exercised and outstanding options) in any
12-month period up to the date of grant of options shall
not exceed 1% of the shares of the Company in issue,
without prior approval from the Company’s shareholders.

The Old Share Option Scheme was adopted pursuant
to a resolution passed on 17 December 2001. The
purpose of the Old Share Option Scheme is to provide
the people and the parties working for the interest of
the Group with an opportunity to obtain equity interest
in the Company, thus linking their interest with the
interest of the Group and thereby providing them with
an incentive to work better for the interest of the Group.
Under the Share Option Scheme, the Board of Directors
of the Company may grant options to eligible employees,
including directors of the Company and its subsidiaries,
to subscribe for shares in the Company. Additionally, the
Company may, from time to time, grant share options to
outside third parties for settlement in respect of goods or
services provided to the Group.

HK$1 is payable on the acceptance of the option per
grant. Options may generally be exercised at any time
during a period to be notified by the Board to each
grantee provided that the period within which the option
must be exercised shall not be more than 10 years from
the date of grant of the share option.

BEEMEHKREERRLF

33. MR HERHE

(a)

EfRkkEsTE
ARBIRBEBERESS(ERBRK
TR mAKRKENETIF
ZATRBEES AR R RRE 2
- BRIFBEBARABRRELL
e B BIAR IR R AR R 5T 8 S AT AR
H B R & A TR ZBERKR
BASEENEE  TFEBBAN
RETERDETERMI0% © BRIE
ERSARBIBRRELLE B
P IR B8 Pk 4 B BB AT T+ — {8
ABRE - RIREBBE S RA
NREMEMEAMBRET 2L R
BaRTEMALZBERER
RO IT B Rt R AT (8 B8 A ) 2
TEREEESEHTZESK
T BBEARAEEHITHN
1% °

KRARBRER-ZZEZE—F+=A
TEHBRZRER  KNERE
feiEatEl - EBRETEEER
BAREBEFZTEZ ALTREE
SARARE HE  EMEE
E2FmEARER 7 FSELE
NEBRSEANER MM
BARES - REEREE - K
AREEGRMAEAKEER®R
BARARIREHBARESR R
BRI - UARBARRRKD -
gEoN » RAR A NEERINRE =
FREERE  UXNZEAL
MALEERHERIREZER °

EMBRERARSRAEEZE
PRAESZ BT - B — R
REFSBANZTARAZHHEA
EEETE  ERREZITE
HAMR e 1% H AR AUHE F R FT N 13
Bl

TE-ZFER
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
GREUMBHRME

For the year ended 31 December 2013
HE-_Z—=6+-_A=+—BLEE

33. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued)

(@)

The Old Share Option Scheme (continued)

The exercise price is determined by the Board, and will
not be less than the higher of (i) the closing price of the
Company’s shares on the date of grant; (i) the average
closing price of the shares for the five business days
immediately preceding the date of grant; and (i) the
nominal value of a share.

On 5 September 2007, share options to subscribe for
an aggregate of 32,400,000 shares of the Company
were granted to certain directors and employees of the
Company.

On 13 April 2010, share options to subscribe for an
aggregate of 84,000,000 shares of the Company
were granted to certain directors and employees of
the Company. The fair value of 84,000,000 share
options granted under the Share Option Scheme on
13 April 2010 was determined by the directors to be
HK$23,382,573 with reference to a valuation performed
by an independent firm of professional valuers using a
binomial model. The inputs into the model included grant
date share price of HK$0.4, exercise price of HK$0.419
per share, expected volatility of 103.41%, expected option
life of 10 years, no expected dividend and estimated risk-
free interest rate of 2.833%.

The Old Share Option Scheme adopted by the Company
on 17 December 2001 had expired on 16 December
2011. The Company has adopted the New Share Option
Scheme (the “New Share Option Scheme”) on 21 June
2012.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
HEMBHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2013
HE-_Z—=6+-_A=+—BLEE

33. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued)

(@)

The Old Share Option Scheme (continued)

33. BEIRHEEsTEI(E)
(a) EEEBERMESRTEI(E)

The following table discloses the movements of the share
options granted under the Old Share Option Scheme
during the year ended 31 December 2013:

TREEHEZE_Z—=%+—-A4
—t+—BHLFEREEBERES

) IS 0 R

Number of share options

BRiEYE
Outstanding Outstanding
as at  Exercised Lapsed as at
Exercise 1 January during the during the 31 December
Name of grantee Date of grant price Exercisable period 2013 year year 2013
RZB-Z% RZB-Z%
—-A—-H +ZA=+-H
RBEAEE RHBEH fTEE TRER HRTE FERTRE  ERKY i R AT &
Mr. Wang Wenming 13 April 2010 HK$0.419  13/04/2010-12/04/2020 11,682,577 - - 11,682,577
(executive director)
EXHEE —T-FT£MA+=H 0419 —F-FEMA+=HE
(BITES) —B-¥£MA+CH
Mr. Lee Yiu Sun 13 April 2010 HK$0.419 13/04/2010-12/04/2020 31,861,575 - - 31,861,575
(executive director)
FRMLE “E¥-FEMA+=E 049ET —FT-FFMA+=AE
(BITES) —E-EEMA+ZH
Mr. Lee Yiu Sun 5 September 2007 HK$0.215 05/09/2007-04/09/2017 4,248,210 - - 4,248,210
(executive director)
FRALE —E¥%tEnARA 0215%%T —FRtENARBE
(BITES) —¥-tERAWmA
Mr. Liu Runtong 13 April 2010 HK$0.419 13/04/2010-12/04/2020 31,861,575 - - 31,861,575
(non-executive director)
AHREEE “¥-FEMA+=H 041987 —FT-FFEMA+=HE
(EBTES) —¥-EEMA+CH
Professor Zhang Benzheng 13 April 2010 HK$0.419 13/04/2010-12/04/2020 2,124,105 - - 2,124,105
(independent non-
executive director
RAEHR “E-F£MA+=E 04M9ET —F-FEMA+=AHE
(BAEHTES) —¥-FTEMA+ZH
Sub-total for directors ES it 81,778,042 - - 81,778,042

BEEMEHKREERRLF
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For the year ended 31 December 2013

BE—Z-—=F+-A=+—-RALFE

33. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued)
The Old Share Option Scheme (continued)

152

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

33. BEIRHEEsTEI (&)
(a) EEEBERMESRTEI(E)

Number of share options

BRERE
Outstanding Outstanding
as at Exercised Lapsed as at
Exercise 1 January during the during the 31 December
Name of grantee Date of grant price Exercisable period 2013 year year 2013
RZF-=F RZF-=F
-A—-H +ZA=+-H
REANER BB fTfefE fTEHH HATE ERTE  ERXR i R AT €
3 employees 13 April 2010 HK$0.419 13/04/2010-12/04/2020 8,496,421 - - 8,496,421
=Z&E8 —E-TEMA+ZE 041987 —F-TEMA+ZHE
“¥-¥£MA+=H
1 employee 5 September 2007 HK$0.215 05/09/2007-04/09/2017 531,026 - - 531,026
—&&8 —BT¥tENAENR 021585 —FEtENREEE
—¥-tERAWmA
Sub-total for employees 9,027,447 - - 9,027,447
=ty
Total 90,805,489 - - 90,805,489
@it
Weighted average 0.408 - - 0.408

exercise price

WEFHTREE

First China Financial Network Holdings Limited Annual Report 2013
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ZEMERRME

For the year ended 31 December 2013
HE-_Z—=6+-_A=+—BLEE

33. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued) 33.

(@) The Old Share Option Scheme (continued)
The following table discloses the movements of the share
options granted under the Old Share Option Scheme
during the year ended 31 December 2012:

R Mx#ERT 8 (2

(a) ERRHESEGE)

TREBBE-F——F+=]
=B R E R

1 P L P 7

Number of

share options

EREHE

Outstanding
asat  Exercised

Outstanding

Lapsed

Exercise 1 January  during the  during the 31 December
Name of grantee Date of grant price Exercisable period 2012 year year
i S RoE—
—A—H +ZA=+-H
HEANETE KA E TRE TEHAE HATTE  FATE  FRENR AT R
Mr. Wang Wenming 13 April 2010 HK$0.419  13/04/2010-12/04/2020 11,682,577 - - 11,682,577
(executive director)
EXHEE —T-ZEMATZR 041987 —Z-TEMA+T=HE
BITES) —Z-TFMATZRA
Mr. Lee Yiu Sun 13 April 2010 HK$0.419  13/04/2010-12/04/2020 31,861,575 - - 31,861,575
(executive director)
FREEE “Z-ZENMATZE 041987 —T-ZTFMATZEZE
(B1TES) “F-TFMATZ=A
Mr. Lee Yiu Sun 5 September 2007 HK$0.215  05/09/2007-04/09/2017 4,248,210 - - 4,248,210
(executive director)
TRMAL “EE+EARRR 0215% T —EE+ENARAZE
#B1TES) “E-tFNANA
Mr. Liu Runtong 13 April 2010 HK$0.419  13/04/2010-12/04/2020 31,861,675 - - 31,861,675
(non-executive director)
ABmELE “F-ZFWNATZH 04191 —ZT-TEMA+ZHE
(FHTES) “Z-ZEMA+ZH
Professor Zhang Benzheng 13 April 2010 HK$0.419  13/04/2010-12/04/2020 2,124,105 - - 2,124,105
(independent non-executive
director
RAEH “E-ZENAT=A 0419% L —E-ZTEMA+T=HZ
(BUFRHITES) —Z_TFMATZRA
Sub-total for directors 81,778,042 — — 81,778,042

Bt

BEEMEHKREERRLF
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ZEWERRME

For the year ended 31 December 2013
HE-_Z—=6+-_A=+—BLEE

33. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued) 33. BEIRHEEsTEI (&)

(@) The Old Share Option Scheme (continued)

ERkEsta )

Number of share options

BRESE
Outstanding Outstanding
asat  Exercised Lapsed as at

Exercise 1 January  during the  during the 31 December

Name of grantee Date of grant price  Exercisable period 2012 year year 2012
RZZ—=F RZZ—=F
—A—H +=ZRA=+-H
EEAGT RILEH TRE TEHE HATHE  FRAOR FREXR AT
3 employees 13 April 2010 HK$0.419  13/04/2010-12/04/2020 8,496,421 - - 8,496,421
%8 “E-ZENMATZHE 041987 —E-ZFMATZEE
ZZ-ZEMATZH
1 employee 5 September 2007 HK$0.215  05/09/2007-04/09/2017 531,026 - - 531,026
—%E8 “EE+EARRR 0215% T —EE+ENAARAZE
“E-tFNANA
Sub-total for employees 9,027,447 — — 9,027,447
EE/at
Total 90,805,489 - - 90,805,489
@t
Weighted average exercise 0.408 - - 0.408
price

MEFHTEE
As at 31 December 2013, the Company had 90,805,489 R-_E—=F+-_A=+—8"

(2012: 90,805,489) share options outstanding for the
share options granted under the Old Share Option
Scheme. The exercise in full of the remaining share
options would, under the present capital structure of
the Company, result in the issue of 90,805,489 (2012:
90,805,489) additional ordinary shares of the Company
and additional share capital of HK$908,055 (2012:
HK$908,055) and share premium of HK$36,164,481 (2012:
HK$36,164,481).
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RN E)H90,805,48910 (— & ——
F 1 90,805,48917) 1R ¥ & B8 Az 1
FrEIRH BRERRITE - R
BARAGBIRITERNEERTE - W
BRTEREEZAETE 88
B 5 3£ 1790,805,4890% (—ZF —
£ :90,805,4890%) AN A &) i@
A% - DA K 7 A EE S AR ZN908,055
Bt (=& —— 4 : 908,055/ 7T)
X B 15 3% (836,164,48178 L (=
— T 4F : 36,164,481 7T) °



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
GREUMBHRME

For the year ended 31 December 2013
HE-_Z—=6+-_A=+—BLEE

33. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued)

(b)

The New Share Option Scheme

The Company operates a new share option scheme
(the “New Share Option Scheme”) under which person
working for the interest of the Group are entitled to an
opportunity to obtain equity interest in the Company. The
number of shares in respect of which options may be
granted under the New Share Option Scheme and any
other share option schemes is not permitted to exceed
30% of the shares of the Company in issue from time
to time, without prior approval from the Company’s
shareholders. The maximum number of shares issued
and to be issued upon exercise of options granted and
to be granted pursuant to the New Share Option Scheme
and any other share options schemes of the Company
to any person (including both exercised and outstanding
options) in any 12-month period up to the date of
grant of options shall not exceed 1% of the shares of
the Company in issue, without prior approval from the
Company’s shareholders.

The New Share Option Scheme was adopted pursuant
to a resolution passed on 21 June 2012. The purpose
of the New Share Option Scheme is to provide the
people and the parties working for the interest of the
Group with an opportunity to obtain equity interest in the
Company, thus linking their interest with the interest of
the Group and thereby providing them with an incentive
to work better for the interest of the Group. Under the
New Share Option Scheme, the Board of Directors of
the Company may grant options to eligible employees,
including directors of the Company and its subsidiaries,
to subscribe for shares in the Company. Additionally, the
Company may, from time to time, grant share options to
outside third parties for settlement in respect of goods or
services provided to the Group.

HK$1 is payable on the acceptance of the option per
grant. Options may generally be exercised at any time
during a period to be notified by the Board to each
grantee provided that the period within which the option
must be exercised shall not be more than 10 years from
the date of grant of the share option.

BEEMEHKREERRLF

33. MERxHERTEI(Z)

(b)

MR HEET
ARBRBHBERETS (B
PetgstE)) mARKEENET
EZ ALTREES AR REZ
e  BRIFBSARABRRESL
HAE - B RIAR IR 3 B A AT 8 2
EMEMBRESESTTREZ
BREM SRR ODEE - T5H8
BARRA D ETRNE0% °
FRIFESARA R RELLE
BRI IR B A i B A AT 7+
—EAME - REFHERES
RARTHEMEMERETEE
BERBERTEMALZBRE
(BIEEAT6E K i R AT 8 B 4)
BITEROREREERTZIRES
BE - THRERARBERITR
191% ©

RARBBER=T—Z=—FX A=
T—HRBZRER  RAMB
PetgstEl - BB EEER
RAREENGE THEZ ATRHE
BARRIRE 2 EE - TR
FM @ BEAREEZF &
A B % R AN R B 2 M s 5 i
BABN - RIFFHBRAEE
ARRIEZEAAEEREER (R
BARARERANBRARAES)®
W - ARBARR KD
BES  ARR A AEFRNRE =
FTEROBRE UAXNZFEAL
AAKERHERKRHER

EMBRERSARSRAEEZE
MRS UE T - IR — R
REZEBNSEARAZBEAR
TR BFRITTE - HERBREZITE
HAMR e 1% B AUHE H B R ET N 13
iR+ EF -

TE-ZFER
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For the year ended 31 December 2013
HE-_Z—=6+-_A=+—BLEE

33. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued)

(b)

The New Share Option Scheme (continued)

The exercise price is determined by the Board, and will
not be less than the higher of (i) the closing price of the
Company’s shares on the date of grant; (i) the average
closing price of the shares for the five consecutive
Trading Days immediately preceding the date of grant;
and (iii) the nominal value of a share of the Company.

As at 31 December 2013 and 2012, no share options
were granted under the New Share Option Scheme.

34. BUSINESS COMBINATIONS

(@)

156

Acquisition of additional interests in Shenzhen
Yuan Tong Video Technology Company Limited

On 27 February 2012, the Group acquired the
remaining 50% interests in R I T T B R A KM A
f[R/AF] (transliterated as “Shenzhen Yuan Tong Video
Technology Company Limited”) at a cash consideration of
RMB1,000,000 (equivalent to HK$1,239,470).

33. MERxHERTEIZ)

34.

(b)

MR Et a2
TEERESSET  BTER
TH=Z=Fz2&=EB%K: ()XQF
MR B B2 R E ()i
PREERIBHATEERMR
SR 2FEHWTE: KRN AF
BRADEE -

RZE—=FR-_F——-F+=
B=+—H WEREHNERE
5T &9 AT (o] BB B AE -

EBEH

(@)

8 S Wi B iR 9N v o A 4R AR A 4
FRABIZH#ER

RZE——F-_A=++tH 'K
EEWBRYIMTREMEITE
RAT 78 T50%#  WEr
8 & A E#1,000,0007 (18 & %
1,239,470 7T) °

Consideration transferred EE(CE
HK$
BT
Cash BE 1,239,470

Acquisition-related costs amounting to HK$1,759 have
been excluded from the consideration transferred and
have been recognized as an expense in the period,
within the “other operating expenses” line item in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income.

First China Financial Network Holdings Limited Annual Report 2013
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ZEMERRME

For the year ended 31 December 2013
HE-_Z—=6+-_A=+—BLEE

34. BUSINESS COMBINATIONS (continued)

(@)

34. ¥BEHE)

Acquisition of additional interests in Shenzhen Yuan

(@) EEIMGEEFRYIT T BERAKN

Tong Video Technology Company Limited (continued) ARATIZHER (E)
Assets acquired and liabilities recognized at the date of R EARE W EEEREHER
acquisition: BE:
HKS$
& 7T
Current assets REEE
Prepayments, deposits and other TETRRE
receivables e N E A FE R 3,966,303
Bank balances and cash RITHEBRIRS 5,162
Non-current assets kRBEE
Property, plant and equipment Y% - SR EE 32,542
Current liabilities nBAE
Other payables and accruals E fth pE (S F0IE K B R FUB (2,701,803
Net assets BEEFE 1,302,204

Gooawill arising on acquisition of Shenzhen Yuan Tong

W 8 RN T TT BB R

Video Technology Company Limited: FIELEZHE:
HK$
78T
Consideration transferred R IRE 1,239,470
Plus: Fair value of the previously n: AR A R
held equity interest ZAFE 651,103
Less: Fair value of net assets W BWEEEFE
acquired — shown as above (W Ex#EFHm)zAFE (1,302,204)
Goodwill arising on acquisition KEWBEELEZEHE
(Note 19) (BF7E19) 588,369

Goodwill arose in the acquisition of Shenzhen Yuan Tong
Video Technology Company Limited because the cost
of the combination included a control premium. Such
goodwill is not deductible for tax purpose.

WERYMTREAXMERA
AELBEDRAAHKRAREE

HlERE - BRHEMS - ZEE
I FORL
BEVEHAKXEEARLE —T-=F5FH
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
GREUMBHRME

For the year ended 31 December 2013
HE-_Z—=6+-_A=+—BLEE

34. BUSINESS COMBINATIONS (continued)

(@)

(b)

Acquisition of additional interests in Shenzhen Yuan
Tong Video Technology Company Limited (continued)
Net cash outflow on acquisition of a subsidiary:

34. ¥BEHE)

(a)

B S W B 2R 91 i e 3 4R AR A% A
ARABIZHEE (F)

W B — I B 22 A 2 B & i HF
/A

HK$

T

Consideration paid in cash NS ZRE 1,239,470
Less: Cash and cash equivalents BB KERE R

acquired ReEMEIER (5,162)

1,234,308

Had this business combination been effected at 1
January 2012, the revenue of the Group would have been
approximately HK$10,350,000, and the loss for the year
would have been approximately HK$39,438,000. The
directors consider these ‘pro-forma’ numbers to represent
an approximate measure of the performance of the
combined group on an annualized basis and to provide a
reference point for comparison in future periods.

Acquisition of additional interests in in Shenzhen
First China School Safety Network Technology
Company Limited

On 21 November 2012, the Group acquired the
remaining 85.715% interests in FIIE ER L BLE R
AR AT (formerly known as “FIEEAERIREER
‘AA)") (transliterated as “Shenzhen First China School
Safety Network Technology Company Limited”) at a
cash consideration of RMB6,000,000 (equivalent to

(b)

WZEBRAHER T ——F—
A—BER REEZEEEE
/& #910,350,00058 7T - M 4 E &
18 JiE /5 #939,438,000/8 T - & =
RE ZEEZIRTBEARE
FEHEFECAGEBELE 2T
BEETEWEARRBEBZ LEE
B o

BEIMBRINEERRAER
RERATEIZH#R

R—E——F+—A=+—8"

AEEWERIIEGERTBER
BERAG (RBORYIEEER
HEBRAR]) Z#HT85.715%
&= B e RERARYE,000,000
7T (18 & 7°7,436,820/8 7T) °

HK$7,436,820).
Consideration transferred HEME
HK$
BT
Cash HE 7,436,820

First China Financial Network Holdings Limited Annual Report 2013



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ZEMERRME

For the year ended 31 December 2013
HE-_Z—=6+-_A=+—BLEE

34. BUSINESS COMBINATIONS (continued) 34.

(b) Acquisition of additional interests in in Shenzhen
First China School Safety Network Technology

Company Limited (continued)

Acquisition-related costs amounting to HK$10,292 have
been excluded from the consideration transferred and have
been recognized as an expense in the period, within the “other
operating expenses” line item in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income.

Assets acquired and liabilities recognized at the date of

acquisition:

EBsHAE)

(b)

FIMMBRINEERZEER
RERASZHEE(E)

B2 I B8 5 B8 2 PR 810,292 JT I
AAABRZARERCEARY
MARMX  MAGREEZ MEM
2 [ M A TR ER AT E A A 2 B XX
S8 o

IR B AR E B EEREHER
RIE:

HK$
BT
Current assets RBEE
Inventories FE 212,035
Trade receivables FEWE 55 A 102,405
Prepayments, deposits and other FENRE - EZER
receivables H b g Y 5k I8 448,931
Bank balances and cash RITEBRERE 33,780
Non-current assets ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment L Y 134,346
Intangible assets BEEE 4,957,880
Current liabilities nEBAME
Trade payables B E S FIB (61,490)
Other payables and accruals E {th pE {4 F0IE K B R FUAB (1,401,664)
Net assets EEFE 4,426,223

Gooawill arising on acquisition of Shenzhen First China
School Safety Network Technology Company Limited:

W R B E R LA B R
RAEELZHE:

HKS$
7S T
Consideration transferred HEERE 7,436,820
Plus: Fair value of the previously N AR A e
held equity interest AN ] 632,316
Less: Fair value of net assets BoBKEEESE
acquired — shown as above (w0 Exx#H )z AF¥E (4,426,223)
Goodwill arising on acquisition REWBEEE BB
(Note 19) (Bt 5£19) 3,642,913

BEEMEHKREERRLF
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ZEWERRME

For the year ended 31 December 2013
HE-_Z—=6+-_A=+—BLEE

34. BUSINESS COMBINATIONS (continued)

(b) Acquisition of additional interests in in Shenzhen
First China School Safety Network Technology

Company Limited (continued)

Gooawill arising on acquisition of Shenzhen First China
School Safety Network Technology Company Limited:

(continued)

Goodwill arose in the acquisition of Shenzhen First China
School Safety Network Technology Company Limited
because the cost of the combination included a control
premium. In addition, the consideration paid for the
combination effectively included amounts in relation to
the benefit of expected synergies and revenue growth of
Shenzhen First China School Safety Network Technology
Company Limited and these benefits are not recognized
separately from goodwill because they do not meet the
recognition criteria for identifiable intangible assets. Such

goodwill is not deductible for tax purpose.

Net cash outflow on acquisition of a subsidiary:

34. ¥BEHE)

(b)

FIMMBRINEERZEER
RERASZHEE(E)

WIBFRI B ER AT BB IR
RAELEZHE: (B)

WERNEERZHEERZER
REAELBEBETEG HKRARE
ZHREEE - MO AN
REEHRBEEBHRBRME 2
MERRYEERLZBEMEE
RARZEXBERBBAITR -
R E Mt N7 A A R T
BEZERFRE  RAHEEE
DHRER -HEMES  ZEE
I 4 R ©

W BB — [T B 22 1.2 3 2 i i1 F
1 :

HK$

BT

Consideration paid in cash WS Z2RE 7,436,820
Less: Cash and cash equivalents BoBWERe R

acquired ReEHEIER (33,780)

7,403,040

Had this business combination been effected at 1
January 2012, the revenue of the Group would have
been approximately HK$10,357,000, and the loss for the
year would have been approximately HK$37,030,000. The
directors consider these ‘pro-forma’ numbers to represent
an approximate measure of the performance of the
combined group on an annualized basis and to provide a

reference point for comparison in future periods.

First China Financial Network Holdings Limited Annual Report 2013
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ZEMERRME

For the year ended 31 December 2013
HE-_Z—=6+-_A=+—BLEE

(@)

35. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES 35. HEKBAT
Disposal of equity interest of Shenzhen First China (@ HEFIHEHEEEFTRE
Financial Information Company Limited Bz EER
On 19 November 2012, the Group disposed 51% equity RZZE——F+—A+NLB &K
interest of RINEEILEEHBMRAT (transliterated as £ BI%E & K E ARM550,800
“Shenzhen First China Financial Information Company 7t (8 & 1682,70078 7T) £ & F I
Limited”) and its subsidiaries at a cash consideration of BEMKERBERARKRANE
RMB550,800 (equivalent to HK$682,700). N ZE1% A RE D
HK$
om
Consideration receivable e 2 RAE 682,700
Analysis of assets and liabilities over which control was ELITHREZ EERBEZ -
lost:
HK$
ome
Current assets REEE
Inventories BE 206,037
Trade receivables FEWE 5 IE 119,015
Prepayments, deposits and other ENFIE- e K
receivables H fth JiE Y 5K 1E 2,924,189
Bank balances and cash RITEBRERE 375,364
Non-current assets ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment Y% - SN EE 83,199
Goodwill EkS 85,473
Current liabilities BB fF
Other payables and accruals Efh AR R EET A (2,189,422)
Amount due to immediate holding — JEf & #
company ERRARIFIR (8,056,555)
Net liabilities disposed of EHEAaEFE (6,452,700)

BEEMEHKREERRLF
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ZEWERRME

For the year ended 31 December 2013
HE-_Z—=6+-_A=+—BLEE

35. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 35. HEMBASE)
(a) Disposal of equity interest of Shenzhen First China () HEFINHEMEESIHRD
Financial Information Company Limited (continued) Bz EERE)
Loss on disposal of subsidiaries: HENENFZEE -
HK$
7T
Consideration receivable FEW 2 KB 682,700
Net liabilities disposed of EREBEFE 6,452,700
Release of amount due to i R JE 1~
immediate holding company BEEZERARZHKIE (8,056,555)
Non-controlling interests FE1E e b = (3,978,222)
Cumulative exchange differences ZEHER
reclassified from equity to profit EREHER
or loss EfoEEER 544,796
(4,354,581)

Net cash outflow on disposal of subsidiaries:

HERE 272 2 i FiE

HKS

BT

Cash consideration received 2R RE -
Less: Bank balances and cash BB HE

disposed of RITEBRER S (375,364)

(875,364)

First China Financial Network Holdings Limited Annual Report 2013
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GREUMBHRME
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HE

36.

37.

—E-=f+-A=t—RLFEE

WARRANTS RESERVE

On 29 December 2011, the Company issued an aggregate of
800,000,000 warrants by way of placing. The holders of the
warrants have the right to subscribe for 800,000,000 ordinary
shares of the Company at an initial subscription price of
HK$0.124 per share within 3 years from the date of issue.

As at 31 December 2013, the Company had 800,000,000
(2012:  800,000,000) warrants outstanding. The exercise in
full of the warrants would, under the present capital structure
of the Company, result in the issue of 800,000,000 (2012:
800,000,000) additional ordinary shares of the Company and
additional share capital of HK$8,000,000 (2012: HK$8,000,000)
and share premium of HK$91,200,000 (2012: HK$91,200,000).

OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS

The Group as lessee

As at 31 December 2013, the Group had future aggregated
minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating
leases in respect of rented premises as follows:

36.

37.

R ERE it e

RZE——F+ZA=Z+NB ' ARF
LABE & 77 = 8 17 & $£800,000,00017 7R
fRiERE - BREEFBEABERNET
AR =F ALY L RIEETKR0124%E
JC 52 B 7K 2 71800,000,000 % 3 37 % °

R-ZE—=F+-_A=+—H0 &
A &) 800,000,000/ (= & — = & :
800,000,0001%) i# A& 1T £ R IR HE & -
EARRBRAIZBALER T RBKE
BEFENERHTE BLARAA
% £7800,000,000f% (= & — = F:
800,000,0004% ) 8 ML B A% » DA K AR AR
N P& 57 3% (B 9 Bl 44 518,000,000 7t (=
T —— 4 : 8,000,0003% 7T.) % 91,200,000
T (=T —— 4 : 91,200,000/ 7T °

WERYRE

AEEEBAEAAN
R-FE—Z=ZF+-A=+—H A&H
BETARECEROMBERDENE
MzRREERERELBEDT

The Group
AEH
2013 2012
—E—-=%F —E—
HK$ HK$
T BT
No later than one year —FR 4,764,734 76,867
Later than one year and no later —F 1%
than five years ERAFA 5,515,054 —
10,279,788 76,867

Leases in respect of rented office premises are negotiated for
an average period of one to three (2012: one to two) years.

BEEMEHKREERRLF

HAANAEE CHBPFEYIRELS—
EZF(ZE—-F: —EWF) -

TE-ZFER
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2013

HE

37.

164

R+ A=t—RLFE

OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS (continued)

The Group as lessor

At 31 December 2013, the Group had future minimum rental
payments receivable under certain non-cancellable leases as
follows:

37.

WEROREZE)
AEEEAEHBEA
R-E—Z=F+-A=1+—H £5%H
EETAAFHEAE T Z RKRERME
cRIESEOT:

The Group
xEH
2013 2012
—E-=F —E——F
HK$ HK$
B T
No later than one year —FR - 1,185,600

At 31 December 2012, the Group leased its investment
property (Note 18) under operating lease arrangement which
ran for an initial period of one year, without an option to renew
the lease terms at the expiry date. The terms of the lease
generally also required the tenants to pay security deposits.
The Company did not have significant operating lease
commitments at 31 December 2013 (2012: Nil).

First China Financial Network Holdings Limited Annual Report 2013
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
HEMBHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2013
HE-_Z—=6+-_A=+—BLEE

38. SIGNIFICANT RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 38. EXHHAEALRS
In addition to the transactions and balances disclosed BRIt BREXEMEHRELR
elsewhere in these consolidated financial statements, the Group SREGIN REBRFRNGTLUAT
had the following significant related party transactions during BABREBEALRS:
the year:
The Group
A%
2013 2012
—E-=% —E——F
Note HK$ HK$
B 5% T BT
Brokerage commission income BEZWELL
received from directors (RPN 0] 6,419 1,267
Office rentals paid to a director XNTFTEFZHAZERSE (i 1,175,577 950,572
Sales agency fee paid to Guangdong /& R B R
Brightzone ZIHERESE (iii) - 602,125
2013 2012
—E—-=%F —E——F
HK$ HK$
AT &I
Key management compensation FEEBEABZH B
— Salaries and other short-term — He R EMMEE
employee benefits EE®H 3,839,000 3,519,000
— Post-employment benefits — BEBEA 57,000 41,250
3,896,000 3,560,250
Notes: ik
(i) The commission rates were substantially in line with those normally 0] MeWBRHN FTEAEE-—RAE=FH
offered by the Group to third party clients. As at 31 December 2013, the EPRHEEEF RZTE—Z=F+=A=
outstanding balances with these related parties amounted to HK$6,433 TR B EEEEALAEHEZIAREER
(2012: outstanding balances with the related parties amounted to BEHRAELRANBHBEL(ZT—F:BE
HK$2,528) in aggregate, which were included in the amounts payables to 2 REIBEH2528E L) ;FABHK
cash clients and margin clients arising from securities broking (Note 27). REBEEZBNBRSEFPRRIESER
The amounts due were unsecured, interest-free and repayable within one REAE27) - EERERERR £
or two trade days after the trade execution date. BRARKRBEZE —SMEISAANERE -
(i) The office rentals were based on terms agreed between the parties (ii) WMAEHRLSTIREBEEBSITETEZBER
involved. BE -

EERCAREBERAT —T--HF5H 165
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38. SIGNIFICANT RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

38. EXHHAEALRH(E)

166

39.

(continued)
Notes: (continued)

(iif) On 26 March 2011, Wealth Alliance (a wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company) entered into an agreement with Guangdong Brightzone
pursuant to which Guangdong Brightzone has agreed to provide a
platform to Wealth Alliance, and be responsible for, the sales and
marketing of the stock investment analysis software and software
packages developed and owned by the Group and, in return, Guangdong
Brightzone is entitled to receive a sales agency fee from Wealth Alliance
subject to and upon the terms contained in the agreement (the “Sales
Agency Agreement”). Guangdong Brightzone is owned as to 88.75% by
Shenzhen Guangxin and 11.25% by independent third parties.

Ms. Chen
Dongjin is the spouse of Mr. Wang Wenming (who is a director and a

Shenzhen Guangxin is controlled by Ms. Chen Dongjin.

substantial shareholder of the Company) and is therefore an associate of
a connected person of the Company as defined in the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on GEM (the “GEM Listing Rules”). Accordingly,
the transactions between Wealth Alliance and Guangdong Brightzone
under the Sales Agency Agreement constitute continuing connected
transactions on the part of the Company under the GEM Listing Rules.

The Company has given a corporate guarantee to the extent
of HK$30,230,000 (2012: HK$57,130,000) to a bank in respect
of general banking facility granted to two (2012: three) of its
subsidiaries. During the year ended 31 December 2013, such
facility was not utilized by the subsidiaries (2012: Nil). In the
opinion of the directors, no material liabilities will arise from the
above corporate guarantee which arose in the ordinary course
of business and fair value of the corporate guarantee granted
by the Company is immaterial.

COMPARATIVE AMOUNTS

The comparative consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income has been re-presented as if
the operation discontinued during the current year had been
discontinued at the beginning of the comparative period.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
GREUMBHRME

For the year ended 31 December 2013

HE

40.
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EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

Proposed formation of an associated company

In February 2014, the Group announced the incorporation
of an associated company in which the Group owns 38%
equity interest of the associate. According to the agreement,
the Group is required to make total capital contribution of
approximately RMB38,000,000 within two vyears after the
completion of the business registration of the associated
company.

In March 2014, the Group announced the initial capital
contribution of RMB19,000,000 has been duly received by the
China Construction Bank and will be subsequently verified by
the State Administration of Foreign Exchange.

BEEMEHKREERRLF
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY
L7 R

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the BTN ERKERGEATHHREZ
Group for the last five financial years as extracted from the published ANEBBETETBFEEEUNEESRE
audited consolidated financial statements is set out below: BMEHIAT

Year ended 31 December

BE+-A=t—-HLFE

2013 2012 2011 2010 2009
—E-=f “T—CfF —ET——F —T-TF —ZTNEF
HK$ HK$ HK$ HKS HK$
BT BT BT BT BT
(Restated)
(' E5)
RESULTS ¥i5
Revenue BEE 14,809,860 9,185,990 12,686,091 48,989,233 85,320,229
(Loss)/profit BRETSE AT (E8),/
before income tax 8 (42,467,528) (44,686,708) (34,727,222)  (250,567,434) 10,699,895
Income tax (expense)/credit FEMEELR),/
i) (844,111) 181,522 (4,702,505) 31,927,626 (7,654,821)
Profit from discontinued operation 4 IF & & E S FE 9,333,152 5,097,537 — — —
(Loss)/profit for the year FR(EE),/FH (33,978,487)  (39,407,649)  (39,429,727)  (218,639,808) 3,045,074
Attributable to: AL
Owners of the Company EUNSEZEUN (34,033,645)  (39,019,328)  (37,855,857)  (215,332,026) 3,404,795
Non-controlling interests iR R 55,158 (388,321) (1,573,870) (3,307,782) (359,721)
(33,978,487)  (39,407,649)  (39,429,727)  (218,639,808) 3,045,074

As at 31 December

R+=ZA=+—8
2013 2012 2011 2010 2009
—E-=5 —T—CfF —T——F —T-TF —ZTNEF
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
P BT BT AT BT
ASSETS, LIABILITIES AND NON- ZE - BEER
CONTROLLING INTERESTS FiERED
Total assets BESE 154,122,355 146,521,839 195,251,602 215,767,840 336,728,989
Total liabilities BEHE (35,364,540)  (48,379,794) (61,807,003)  (43,531,038)  (173,836,780)
Non-controlling interests FEE R = (2,607,017) ) 3,557,730 (2,889,706) (664,922)

116,150,798 98,142,044 137,002,329 169,347,096 162,227,287
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